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          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you all

          3  very much for coming. My name is Jim Gennaro,

          4  Chairman of this Committee. I have a prepared

          5  statement here, but I think I'm just going to depart

          6  from it a little bit to thank all of the various

          7  parties who have come together for this very

          8  important issue.

          9                 It is certainly a critical public

         10  safety issue, critical economic issue, and one that

         11  has inflamed passions on certainly both sides.

         12                 I'd like to I guess, you know, thank

         13  the people from Entergy, who have been very

         14  accommodating. I took a tour of the facility last

         15  Tuesday, and it was certainly very illuminating, and

         16  I, you know, bore out some of the things that I had

         17  concerns about, and maybe, you know, it relieved

         18  some of my concerns in other areas, but certainly it

         19  was a very important thing to do. I'm glad they

         20  provided that opportunity to me.

         21                 I also would like to thank the good

         22  folks in the environmental community who have been

         23  keeping us up-to-date with some critical information

         24  that will help us, you know, do our work here. And

         25  as you all know, we're here to take a look at
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          2  Resolution 64, which calls for the immediate

          3  shutdown of the facility for the purposes of making

          4  it more secure.

          5                 Now, certainly that is one position

          6  that people hold, but there are other people that

          7  are calling for the permanent closure of the

          8  facility, there are others that are calling for the

          9  status quo. It's a very complicated situation and

         10  we're here today to sort of start the process of how

         11  the City Council weighs in on this, and I thank you

         12  all for coming forward and being available to give

         13  us your views on this very, very critical issue.

         14  It's not an understatement to say that we're talking

         15  about live and death here, and, so, because now

         16  everything is looked at in a, you know,

         17  post-September 11th world, this is the world we live

         18  in now, and, you know, although perhaps we should

         19  have been sensitized when the truck bomb went off in

         20  front of the Oklahoma City federal building, and,

         21  you know, what a device like that could do, and we

         22  saw the World Trade Center Towers come down, and now

         23  everyone has a lot of trepidation about what

         24  essentially a rider truck full of explosives with

         25  wings so-to-speak might be able to do to the Indian
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          2  Point facility, particularly the spent fuel pools,

          3  which I won't hide, are sort of like my number one

          4  concern, so-to-speak. I certainly have other

          5  concerns, but the security of those spent fuel pools

          6  are of great concern to me, and why I believe we

          7  have to see that situation addressed, as well as

          8  many other things.

          9                 So, we have the resolution on the

         10  table. Everybody knows the resolution, everyone has

         11  read it, we're interested in hearing your views on

         12  it. We've tried to orchestrate the speakers' panels

         13  in such a way as to be fair. We would like, you

         14  know, each panel essentially not to filibuster and

         15  to eat up the clock, but to get through their

         16  statements, each person that has a statement in just

         17  a few minutes so that we will have the opportunity

         18  to hear from everyone on that panel and move on to

         19  successful panels that have very differing points of

         20  view.

         21                 And, so, I don't think there is

         22  anyone here in the room that is not very versed on

         23  this subject, and I don't know what value added my

         24  continued remarks in the way of an opening statement

         25  would have, so with that said, let me just thank you
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          2  all for being here once again, and I would like to

          3  call -- but let me also recognize the members of the

          4  Committee that are here. Council Member Serrano from

          5  the Bronx; Council Member Koppell from the Bronx;

          6  Margarita Lopez from Manhattan.

          7                 I would like to introduce to everyone

          8  here Donna DeCostanzo, the new Counsel to the

          9  Committee. She just came on to the Committee staff

         10  on Earth Day, kind of a good portent there I think,

         11  from the EPA. We're very grateful to have her.  I'd

         12  like to thank her for her good work on this issue

         13  and all of the other staff members who participated,

         14  most notably my friend and mentor at the Council

         15  Jeff Haberman, who also brought a lot of value to

         16  this process.

         17                 So with that said, I would like to

         18  call the first panel, that would be the Entergy

         19  panel, and let me read out the names. James Knubel,

         20  Vice President for Operations Support. Michael

         21  Slobodien, I hope I'm saying that correctly, he's a

         22  Director of Emergency Programs. Marie Gillman. There

         23  might be one or two others from Entergy. And David

         24  Harrison. Is that right? David Harrison from NEIRA

         25  Economic Consulting will be testifying with the
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          2  Entergy panel.

          3                 The way this is going to work, we're

          4  going to be swearing in all of our witnesses,

          5  placing everyone under oath. My Counsel, Donna

          6  DeCostanzo -- Donna DeCostanzo will give the oath,

          7  and once the oath is given, we'll ask people to

          8  provide the testimony to the Sergeant-At-Arms. It

          9  will be distributed, and then people will identify

         10  themselves and proceed with their testimony.

         11                 So, if we'll get everyone up there

         12  from Entergy, we will commence.

         13                 I'd like to recognize Bill DeBlasio,

         14  Council Member from Brooklyn. I'd like to recognize

         15  the fact that he's here.

         16                 Okay, are the people from Entergy

         17  fully assembled? Okay, Donna is going to proceed

         18  with the oath.

         19                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: And if each of you

         20  can actually state your names first and position,

         21  and then we'll swear all of you in at the same time.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: You have to

         23  speak into the microphone, and make sure that the

         24  light for the microphone is off. Off means on. It's

         25  complicated.
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          2                 MR. KNUBEL: Good afternoon. My name

          3  is Jim Knubel. I'm the Vice President.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I don't think

          5  the microphone is on.

          6                 MR. KNUBEL: It says it's on. I'm

          7  talking. Is that better?

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, yes. Make

          9  sure, and I'll say this for all the speakers, please

         10  make sure you speak, you know, right into the

         11  microphone, just like I'm doing.

         12                 MR. KNUBEL: Okay.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, thank you.

         14                 MR. KNUBEL: My name is Jim Knubel. I

         15  am the Vice President of Operations Support for

         16  Entergy Nuclear Northeast.

         17                 MR. SLOBODIEN: I'm Michael Slobodien.

         18  I'm the Director of Emergency Programs for Entergy

         19  Nuclear Northeast.

         20                 MS. GILLMAN: I'm Marie Gillman, I'm

         21  the Operations Manager of Indian Point 3.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: You have to have

         23  the light off. Off means it's on. And you can also

         24  move the microphone. You can pick it up and do

         25  whatever you want with it.
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          2                 DR. HARRISON: David Harrison, and I'm

          3  a Senior Vice President at National Economic

          4  Research Associates.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Welcome.

          6                 MR. MEEHAN: I'm Eugene Meehan and I'm

          7  a Senior Vice President at National Economic

          8  Research Associates.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Terrific. Okay.

         10                 Donna, if you could proceed with the

         11  oath and then I would ask you to proceed with your

         12  testimony.

         13                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: If you could all

         14  raise your right hand, please.

         15                 Do you swear or affirm to tell the

         16  truth and nothing but the truth so help you God?

         17                 (Witnesses sworn.)

         18                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: You may now all

         20  regard yourselves as being under oath, and we would

         21  ask whoever is going to go first to once again state

         22  their name for the record and proceed with your

         23  testimony.

         24                 MR. KNUBEL: Yes, Mr. Councilman. My

         25  name is Jim Knubel. I am the Vice President of
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          2  Operations Support for Entergy Nuclear Northeast.

          3                 Ladies and gentlemen, first, on

          4  behalf of Entergy Nuclear Northeast, let me take the

          5  opportunity to thank you for inviting us here this

          6  afternoon to address you on this important issue.

          7                 My name is Jim Knubel, I am the Vice

          8  President of Operations Support for Entergy Nuclear

          9  Northeast, the owner and operator of the Indian

         10  Point Nuclear Powerplants, and I also live within

         11  six miles of that plant.

         12                 My association with nuclear power

         13  began in 1969, when I graduated from the United

         14  States Naval Academy, and then entered the Naval

         15  Nuclear Submarine Service.

         16                 In 1974, I left the Navy, after

         17  proudly serving my country, and entered a civilian

         18  nuclear program - a common path followed by many of

         19  this nation's nuclear operators. I have been

         20  licensed by the Nuclear Regulatory Commission as a

         21  Senior Reactor Operator, and held many responsible

         22  positions at nuclear facilities, including, and most

         23  notably, Training Director, Security Director,

         24  Quality Assurance Director, Site Vice President, and

         25  most recently I was, just previous to my current
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          2  job, the Chief Nuclear Officer for the New York

          3  Power Authority.

          4                 This is my background, and now to why

          5  I am here today, and why I feel so passionate about

          6  the subject and about Indian Point.

          7                 I trust that when I finish my

          8  testimony, you will have a clearer picture of why

          9  Entergy and many elected officials, government

         10  agencies, and business organizations, some of whom

         11  you'll hear from today, believe Indian Point is

         12  safe, secure and vital.

         13                 There's a lot of misinformation and

         14  half-truths floating around in the media about the

         15  Indian Point Nuclear Power Plants. Most of that

         16  misinformation is spread by those who have always

         17  been opposed to nuclear power and are using the

         18  horrific events of September 11th to further their

         19  cause.

         20                 Here are just some of the facts.

         21  There are two nuclear units in Indian Point. Each

         22  one produces more than 1,000 megawatts of

         23  electricity that's used for New York City and

         24  Westchester County for a total of about 2,000

         25  megawatts of clean, low-cost electricity, or enough
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          2  electricity for about 2 million homes.

          3                 Both units are designed to withstand

          4  tremendous impacts, both from natural and manmade

          5  phenomenon and projectiles. That includes the spent

          6  fuel pool, which I'll talk a little bit more about,

          7  because I know you're interested, and related

          8  structures. Statements to the contrary are untrue

          9  and have no scientific basis.

         10                 No government agency responsible for

         11  public safety or security, which includes all local,

         12  county, state or federal levels, have ever suggested

         13  or called for Indian Point to be closed down for

         14  security or safety reasons.

         15                 Since September 11th, all of those

         16  agencies and several military organizations,

         17  including the Department of Defense and the National

         18  Guard, have worked together to keep a watchful eye

         19  over Indian Point, leading one federal official to

         20  call Indian Point the "best defended plant in the

         21  United States." This includes ground, water and air

         22  protection, in addition to the sites well-armed,

         23  well-trained security force.

         24                 All four counties within the

         25  emergency planning zone around Indian Point, and
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          2  that's Westchester, Rockland, Orange and Putnam

          3  Counties - recently endorsed the emergency plan, and

          4  as did New York State. And while we believe carrying

          5  out the plan will never be necessary, a thorough

          6  review of the plan by the counties' and state's

          7  respective emergency management offices determined

          8  that the plan would work. No event at Indian Point,

          9  however, would require the evacuation of New York

         10  City.

         11                 Let me repeat that. No event at

         12  Indian Point would ever require the evacuation of

         13  New York City.

         14                 The real effect Indian Point has on

         15  the quality-of-life in New York City is the

         16  much-needed economical power it provides to the

         17  City, and the significant additional pollutants it

         18  helps avoid for the millions of residents who live

         19  and breath in the five boroughs.

         20                 These facts are undeniable and should

         21  not be dismissed. They are backed by years of

         22  engineering studies, radiological studies,

         23  continuous monitoring, planning, prepping, upgrading

         24  and refinements made to safety plans and operational

         25  programs at considerable expense and time. They also
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          2  speak to the dedication of the people who work at

          3  the site, the people who protect the site and the

          4  government entities who regulate the operation of

          5  the site.

          6                 We contend that while Entergy runs

          7  Indian Point, it is really a strong collaboration

          8  between private and public sector that helps ensure

          9  safety and security of the people who live and work

         10  in and around Indian Point.

         11                 With your permission, I would like to

         12  address safety in slightly greater detail.

         13                 Nuclear plants, such as Indian Point

         14  units, are designed with safety as the prime

         15  operational objective. That is why there are

         16  multiple systems and back-up systems designed to

         17  automatically shut the plant down and maintain the

         18  reactor in a safe condition.

         19                 This basic design requirement is

         20  necessary in order to get a license from the Nuclear

         21  Regulatory Commission, to build and to operate a

         22  nuclear power reactor, and can shut the reactor down

         23  in less than two seconds. Two seconds. And this can

         24  be done from multiple remote locations from within

         25  the plant. A terrorist would have to take out all of

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            17

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  these systems, which would still only lead to the

          3  safe shutdown of the plant. And, Councilman, as you

          4  know, you were at the site last week, and you

          5  personally witnessed the ease at which the plant can

          6  be shut down in an emergency situation.

          7                 Safety is as much a part of the

          8  people who manage and operate the site, as it is

          9  these systems. The plants at Indian Point are

         10  staffed with over 1,500 union and management

         11  workers. These workers are dedicated, highly trained

         12  and skilled. Many Indian Point workers hold advanced

         13  degrees or received specialized training in the

         14  areas of maintenance, electrical or mechanical

         15  engineering. Many of these individuals come to the

         16  nuclear industry, as I did, from the United States

         17  Armed Services. They are committed to the highest

         18  standards of safety and are trained and certified in

         19  all aspects of plant operations, from valve

         20  maintenance to reactor operations.

         21                 These workers and their families live

         22  in the communities surrounding the plant. They live

         23  and breathe safety. It is their highest priority,

         24  their top goal and engrained in their culture.

         25                 In addition, the United States
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          2  Regulatory Commission oversees the safe operation of

          3  the plant.

          4                 The NRC has two full-time inspectors

          5  at each reactor at Indian Point, for a total of four

          6  inspectors full-time.

          7                 Individuals and teams from the NRC's

          8  regional office in Pennsylvania periodically

          9  supplement the on-site inspectors, and this federal

         10  regulatory oversight is extremely thorough, diligent

         11  and constant.

         12                 Approximately every six months, the

         13  NRC issues its assessment of every reactor in the

         14  United States. In early March, Indian Point units 2

         15  and 3 both received their NRC Assessment Reports.

         16                 The NRC concluded that both units,

         17  and I quote, "operated in a manner that preserved

         18  public health and safety."

         19                 Additionally, the NRC uses objective

         20  indicators to monitor performance again at all

         21  reactors in the United States. These indicators are

         22  color coded from green, meaning good, to red,

         23  meaning not good. For Indian Point 2 and 3, all

         24  objective indicators are green, and have been green

         25  since the NRC initiated its new Reactor Oversite
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          2  Program in 1999.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Pardon me. If I

          4  could just jump in for a minute. It's my

          5  understanding that -- is it your testimony that IP 2

          6  currently has a green safety rating? Because at my

          7  tour of the plant last week, the NRC people and the

          8  Entergy staff that brought me around indicated that

          9  you're still under red.

         10                 MR. KNUBEL: Let me get to my next

         11  part, because I will address that.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

         13                 MR. KNUBEL: I'm talking about the

         14  objective indicators. All of the reactors are given

         15  objective indicators that are not measured by

         16  inspection. They're merely information that we

         17  provide that measured us against certain parameters

         18  the NRC thinks is important, and all of those areas

         19  we are green and have been green.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right. But for

         21  the record, I just want to indicate that the people

         22  at the NRC indicated to me during my tour last week,

         23  that, you know, notwithstanding it still has this

         24  red condition.  I believe it's the only facility in

         25  the country that has a red condition, but the NRC
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          2  people were sanguin on your ability to proceed past

          3  that and to get back into the green.

          4                 MR. KNUBEL: Yes, I will address that.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Fine.

          6                 MR. KNUBEL: Actually, the next part

          7  of my testimony, I would be remiss if I did not

          8  mention that as a result of the NRC inspection

          9  program, they also issue findings, and these

         10  findings are also color coded. Much has been made of

         11  the fact that prior to our purchase of the plant,

         12  Indian Point 2 was issued a red inspection finding

         13  that was, preliminary finding was issued in August

         14  of 2000. This was a result of a poor steam generator

         15  tube inspection program that resulted in a steam

         16  generator tube leak in February of 2000. Since that

         17  time the steam generators have been replaced, the

         18  inspection program has been updated to meet today's

         19  standard, and I think, as you found from your

         20  conversation with the NRC, the only action required

         21  to close this finding is for the NRC to do a

         22  follow-up inspection, and confirm what we've told

         23  them about what we've improved, which will be done

         24  some time late this summer. Okay?

         25                 Since Indian Point 2 and 3 were
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          2  purchased in September 2001, and November 2000

          3  respectively, both units have had the best safety

          4  and operating performance in their history.

          5                 Entergy takes safety very seriously.

          6  We're committed to a level of excellence, unmatched

          7  by any other nuclear operator in the nation.

          8                 I would like to talk next about

          9  security. Prior to the horrific attacks of September

         10  11th, all nuclear power plants had well-established

         11  security programs. They were enhanced, expanded and

         12  substantially bolstered since then.

         13                 The security measures at Indian Point

         14  fall into four broad categories:

         15                 Plant Design Features.

         16                 Personnel Screening and Clearance

         17  Requirements.

         18                 Security Equipment and Features; and

         19                 Security Response Requirements.

         20                 As I mentioned earlier, the plants

         21  are designed so that no single event can prevent the

         22  safe shutdown of the plant. There are many ways to

         23  shut down the reactor. Each way is physically

         24  separated from the other.

         25                 The Indian Point plants can withstand
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          2  an airplane hitting the reactor containment

          3  buildings. Some have challenged the Sandia Lab test

          4  that did not use a 767, and obviously the plant was

          5  designed before there were 767s. So the lab test did

          6  not use a 767 to demonstrate the robustness of

          7  containment. Having seen the test, reviewed the

          8  drawings and implications of new and larger planes,

          9  I can state in my engineering judgment and the

         10  judgment of many other structural engineers, that

         11  Indian Point containment structures will withstand

         12  the impact of a 767 or any other oversized jet

         13  plane.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: If I could just

         15  jump in here, I would just like to point out for the

         16  record that that is the first time I've ever heard

         17  anybody assert that. I respect the fact that this is

         18  your testimony, I have never heard that asserted by

         19  anyone else, including the NRC people, to whom I

         20  posed that question to, but let me just let you

         21  proceed.

         22                 MR. KNUBEL: Okay.

         23                 The often-discussed Indian Point 2

         24  and 3 fuel pool designs are not susceptible to

         25  attack from the air, in spite of statements to the
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          2  contrary. The pools themselves are six-foot thick

          3  reinforced concrete with a steel liner, and the

          4  nuclear fuel sits under 25 feet of water, most of

          5  which is below ground.

          6                 I've heard claims that since the roof

          7  above the pool is not as strong as the containment

          8  building, the spent fuel pool is vulnerable. Not

          9  true.

         10                 The most the plane could do is

         11  penetrate the building, the upper portion of the

         12  building, knock debris into the pool and initiate a

         13  jet fuel fire. It would not penetrate the pool

         14  walls. Pool walls are over six-foot thick. They're

         15  actually about twice as thick as the containment

         16  dome. It would not penetrate the pool walls. Since

         17  the water will not burn, and we have multiple

         18  methods to add water to the pool, there would be no

         19  nuclear fuel damage and the pool would remain

         20  intact.

         21                 People who have access to the nuclear

         22  plants are special people. Aside from their

         23  education, training and experience, they have to

         24  undergo rigorous screening for suitability to work

         25  at a nuclear plant. They are fingerprinted, and

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            24

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  these fingerprints are checked by the FBI.

          3  Additional background investigation is done on each

          4  person. All persons must pass a psychological exam,

          5  and are tested for the presence of drugs and

          6  alcohol. After being found acceptable by the

          7  screening process, all persons then are subject to a

          8  random drug and alcohol-testing program.

          9                 Also, before entering the plant, and

         10  each and every time they enter the plant, all

         11  persons, packages and vehicles are searched for

         12  weapons and explosives.

         13                 Finally, I would like to speak about

         14  security systems and hardware. I think we have a

         15  drawing behind me which gets to this.

         16                 The plant is laid out in a way that

         17  protects the equipment needed for the safe shutdown

         18  of the plant by a concentric series of barriers. The

         19  outermost barrier is called the "Owner Controlled

         20  Area." Since 9/11, all people entering through this

         21  barrier must be identified and have a need to be

         22  there. All vehicles are checked. Entergy Security

         23  and the National Guard patrol this area.

         24                 As you move closer to the plant, the

         25  next barrier is called the "Protected Area." All

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            25

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  people entering this area must be screened and

          3  searched, as I described before. This barrier is

          4  designed to stop any unauthorized vehicle. It would

          5  also physically prevent intruders from coming

          6  through. If an intruder were to attempt illegal

          7  entry, they would be detected and intercepted before

          8  reaching any safeguard equipment.

          9                 And this gets me to the last and

         10  innermost area, which is called the"Vital Area," and

         11  these areas again are internal to the plant, they

         12  are protected by substantial barriers and access is

         13  limited to few key individuals.

         14                 Finally, Indian Point has a

         15  well-trained, well-armed security force. They are

         16  trained to respond to all attempted intrusions with

         17  deadly force. This includes attacks from the land or

         18  water.

         19                 After 9/11, Governor Pataki

         20  commissioned a special taskforce to independently

         21  assess security at Indian Point. This task force

         22  included current and former law enforcement

         23  personnel with counter terrorism expertise.

         24                 Mr. Jim Kallstrom, former head of the

         25  FBI's New York office and then Director of the New
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          2  York Office of Public Safety led the task force. The

          3  task force determined that Indian Point is well

          4  protected and people living near the plant should be

          5  comforted by the level of security and safety

          6  systems employed in and around the plant.

          7                 He also stated publicly, and I quote,

          8  "if you walked into any other part of our

          9  infrastructure..." -- Meaning the State's overall

         10  infrastructure -- "... This is" -- and he means

         11  Indian Point --..."geometrically more secure than

         12  you'll find anywhere else." Again, this is a direct

         13  quote from Mr. Kallstrom.

         14                 Since 9/11, we have spent an

         15  additional $4 million on security at the plant. We

         16  intend to invest another $3 million this year, in

         17  order to upgrade security hardware.

         18                 In closing, Entergy is here today to

         19  present you with the facts. We are not celebrities,

         20  we are just nuclear operators. We represent a team

         21  of men and women who go to work every day and

         22  perform the unglamourous job of producing

         23  electricity for New York City and the surrounding

         24  area. The people who work at Indian Point are not

         25  celebrities, they are not activists, rather, they
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          2  are hard-working employees dedicated to ensuring

          3  Indian Point is safe and secure. I know I speak on

          4  behalf of these employees, their families, their

          5  friends, their neighbors, when I say we would not

          6  work at Indian Point if we thought it was unsafe.

          7                 Ladies and gentlemen, we welcome your

          8  further inquiries into this matter and invite you to

          9  visit Indian Point, like the Councilman has, and

         10  learn why the site is safe, secure and vital.

         11                 Thank you. We can take questions.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you, sir.

         13  I think what we'll do is we'll proceed with other

         14  people that have testimony. But I've got to tell

         15  you, I was willing to provide you, as a senior

         16  officer of the company, a little bit of latitude to

         17  read your statement in full, however, the next

         18  statement, Mr. Slobodien, is just thousands and

         19  thousands of words. You would be our last witness if

         20  I was to let you read this whole thing.

         21                 Now, you're the Director of Emergency

         22  Programs, right? You're the Director of Emergency

         23  Programs?

         24                 MR. SLOBODIEN: Yes, sir, I am.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, why don't
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          2  we do this, if I could, let me just mention a couple

          3  of things.

          4                 You have a section of your testimony

          5  that talks about what would happen in the case of a

          6  real, you know, serious accident. "Now I want to

          7  turn to the issue of emergency planning in the

          8  highly unlikely, but not impossible, event of a

          9  serious accident:"

         10                 Again, as I was going through the

         11  facility, I guess just by way of sort of setting up

         12  your testimony, if I could, just to let you know

         13  what I am particularly interested in, and I think

         14  some of my colleagues are interested in. I was

         15  particularly struck by when I was at the spent fuel

         16  pool area, while I agree that the containment zones

         17  appear to be pretty robust, I mean I was taken aback

         18  at what I thought the vulnerability of the spent

         19  fuel pools were, with regard particularly to the

         20  roof, and I'm glad you mentioned the roof in your

         21  testimony.

         22                 You know, a metal roof, and it's

         23  difficult for me to believe that if someone was able

         24  to pack a light plane or medium-sized plane with

         25  explosives, were it to be able to penetrate through
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          2  that roof, which I don't think would have been a

          3  difficult thing to do, you have an explosion in your

          4  spent fuel area and it seems to me you would have a

          5  difficult time. You would be very compromised in

          6  being able to provide cooling water to those spent

          7  fuel rods, which, of course, as we know had to be

          8  cooled on a continuous basis, and the resulting fire

          9  and so on and so forth.

         10                 So, if you could speak to that issue,

         11  as well as summarize what you think are the most

         12  fundamental elements of your testimony, without

         13  reading the whole thing, otherwise we just won't get

         14  past the Entergy panel, and certainly won't have the

         15  ability to ask you questions after this and still

         16  leave room for others. I do a good job about eating

         17  up the clock myself, don't I? Sorry about that. But

         18  if you could proceed with your testimony with what I

         19  just said in mind, by summarizing and just speaking

         20  to those items, I'd be very grateful. Thank you.

         21                 MR. SLOBODIEN: Sir, let me address

         22  your question then. The fuel pool, as was pointed

         23  out, is largely underground.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: The fuel pools.

         25                 MR. SLOBODIEN: The fuel pools, both
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          2  of them.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Three, no?

          4                 MR. SLOBODIEN: There is one that is

          5  at Indian Point 2.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

          7                 MR. SLOBODIEN: That was described by

          8  Mr. Knubel. And one at Indian Point 3 that was

          9  described, as well.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         11                 MR. SLOBODIEN: They're essentially

         12  the same.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: But, you know,

         14  IP 1 still has a fuel pool.

         15                 MR. SLOBODIEN: Yes.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: It's not as hot

         17  as the other ones, but it's still there.

         18                 MR. SLOBODIEN: Yes, and the Indian

         19  Point 1 also has a fuel pool with a small quantity

         20  of fuel, old fuel, sitting in it.

         21                 In particular, the Indian Point 2 and

         22  3 fuel pools, as were pointed out, have very strong

         23  side walls and base. They are six and a quarter feet

         24  thick, they are lined with a steel liner. The

         25  concern of something penetrating the roof is one of
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          2  our concerns as well; however, the important points

          3  to note is that there are a large quantity of water

          4  about 25 feet or more that covers the fuel, water is

          5  a very good energy cushion, so it would absorb

          6  materials.

          7                 The only way that you can imagine a

          8  release of radioactivity, which is, of course, is

          9  our concern, is if the water is removed for a long

         10  period of time, and that would require breaching one

         11  of the walls of that pool. Merely penetrating the

         12  roof and having a fire above the roof or an

         13  explosion in that vicinity is not sufficient to

         14  cause water to leave the pool, and as water remains

         15  in the pool, the fuel assemblies inside are

         16  protected.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: However, and I

         18  don't want to proceed with the questions right away,

         19  but, however, if your ability to bring new coolant

         20  water and to recirculate that water, because if the

         21  water is just left there stagnating, the water of

         22  course would heat up and boil, right? I mean, so --

         23                 MR. SLOBODIEN: Yes, over a period of

         24  time the water will evaporate because it's being

         25  warmed by the fuel, and it would --
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: It would boil,

          3  would it not? Because it's my understanding that the

          4  fuel pool that I was at is something like 2,500

          5  gallons of, you know, water is moved through that

          6  per minute, so it's a very high level of circulation

          7  that you all believe is necessary to keep those rods

          8  cool, and any comprise in the ability to keep, you

          9  know, new water coming in there to act as a heat

         10  sink for those rods, we've got problems. We've got

         11  boiling water, we've got a big mess.

         12                 Okay, go ahead.

         13                 MR. SLOBODIEN: Boiling is, of course,

         14  an interesting phenomenon, but boiling in and of

         15  itself does not compromise the fuel. It would take

         16  seven days to commence boiling, once the heat

         17  exchangers were taken out of service. So, we would

         18  have that period of time to deal with boiling as an

         19  example.

         20                 But as I said, boiling is not the

         21  concern. The concern is removal of the water, or all

         22  of the water, so that the fuel began to heat up in

         23  such a way that it might degrade. There is a large

         24  amount of time. In fact, boiling commences at seven

         25  days, and then there is a fair amount of time, since
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          2  there is so much water to boil off to a level where

          3  it would be of concern.

          4                 Let me address some key points, since

          5  I know you want me to abbreviate my testimony.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

          7  you.

          8                 MR. SLOBODIEN: And I only have five

          9  key points that are very brief.

         10                 First, the safe operation of the

         11  Indian Point plants is Entergy's first and foremost

         12  objective. Mine and every employee at Entergy. The

         13  chances of a series accident at Indian Point are

         14  extremely low, I don't believe there is anyone who

         15  would say otherwise.

         16                 Even so, Entergy, the counties of

         17  Westchester, Rockland, Putnam, Orange, and the State

         18  of New York, have comprehensive plans in place to

         19  deal with radiological emergencies. All our plans

         20  are tested with challenging drills and exercises

         21  regularly. In fact, it's my organization's

         22  responsibility to develop those bills and exercises

         23  and make sure that we challenge the operators, such

         24  as Marie, sitting on my right, in a very vigorous

         25  way.
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          2                 There are no circumstances, even a

          3  serious accident -- and let me reiterate: There are

          4  no circumstances involving Indian Point that require

          5  an evacuation of any of the residents of any part of

          6  New York City. None.

          7                 Releases of radioactivity from Indian

          8  Point that might occur would follow a plume, much

          9  like that from a smoke stack. A plume covers a very

         10  small area. It's size and shape are determined by

         11  wind and the wind speed, forces of nature over which

         12  the plant has no control. It does not, this is the

         13  plume, does not spread out in all directions as

         14  portrayed by some. It's a narrow plume that

         15  typically covers only a few percentage points of the

         16  area of a circle, two to eight percent typically.

         17                 These are not matters of speculation.

         18  They are based on hard science.

         19                 I personally have a very strong

         20  investment in Indian Point and the safety of Indian

         21  Point, because I have two daughters attending

         22  Barnard in Manhattan. They are of my paramount

         23  concern. I will do nothing to sacrifice their

         24  safety. And believe me, we do everything, and I do

         25  everything, and I'm very convinced that they are
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          2  indeed safe.

          3                 Thank you, sir.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you very

          5  much for your testimony, I appreciate that. And what

          6  you've provided in terms of, you know, written

          7  testimony, will certainly help us as we proceed on

          8  this issue. It's quite voluminous and I appreciate

          9  the detail that you provided to the Committee.

         10                 Thank you.

         11                 And you know, actually we're going to

         12  finish the statements and then the Council members

         13  will direct questions to anyone who they wish to on

         14  the panel, just to get the statements sort of out of

         15  the way.

         16                 Did Ms. Gillman have a statement as

         17  well?

         18                 Thank you for being brief, Mr.

         19  Slobodien, we do appreciate that. Thank you.  Brief,

         20  yet passionate. We like that.

         21                 MS. GILLMAN: Are you ready?

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes. I'd like to

         23  ask you to state your name once again for the record

         24  and proceed with your testimony.

         25                 MS. GILLMAN: Okay. I'm Marie Gillman.
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          2  Good afternoon, everybody. I'm the Operations

          3  Manager at Indian Point 3 Nuclear Power Plant.

          4                 To give you my background, I'm a

          5  married mother. I've got three children, 15, 13,

          6  seven years old. I live in Stoney Point in Rockland

          7  County, which is directly across the river from the

          8  plant, as the crow flies it's three miles.

          9                 I graduated from Manhattan College in

         10  1989 with the Mechanical Engineering degree, I

         11  started working at the plant and I've been there for

         12  13 years. I've had positions in engineering. From

         13  engineering I went to operations. I worked in

         14  various jobs in Operations, from Shift Technical

         15  Advisor, Control Room Supervisor, Shift Manager,

         16  and, finally, I'm the Operations Manager.

         17                 As a licensed control room

         18  supervisor, I directly supervised operation at the

         19  plant for four years.

         20                 As ops manager, I have 110 people

         21  working directly under my supervision.  They operate

         22  the plant 24 hours a day, 365 days of the year, in a

         23  safe, reliable manner.

         24                 Our training program is one of the

         25  most stringent in the country, with each operator
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          2  and each crew spending one week in six in training,

          3  learning how to deal with every credible accident

          4  imaginable, including the laws of spent fuel pool

          5  fueling.

          6                 The testing criteria are strict, and

          7  operating principles are getting more and more

          8  stringent as we constantly raise the bar in our

          9  performance.

         10                 In addition to the training we

         11  receive on plant operations, operators are also

         12  members of the Fire Brigade and HazMat team. In

         13  fact, on a couple of occasions, team members have

         14  assisted local government agencies with clean-up

         15  activities unrelated to the plant.

         16                 Operators are also members of the

         17  Emergency Planning team and we train on worst-case

         18  scenarios in drills in which the state and local

         19  towns, counties participate.

         20                 The health and the safety of the

         21  public is paramount in every action we take, and

         22  every recommendation we make. As operators of the

         23  plant, we carry emergency cards, which will allow us

         24  to drive to the plant in the event of an emergency,

         25  even as people are evacuating the areas, including
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          2  our own friends and family.

          3                 I've often heard references to

          4  Chernobyl, as if what happened there could happen

          5  here. But the fundamental design of the plants are

          6  radically different. In the U.S. we have containment

          7  buildings with walls three to four feet thick -

          8  Chernobyl does not. Core designs differ in terms of

          9  reactor theory - as power escalates in the U.S., our

         10  reactors shut down, as opposed to Chernobyl, where

         11  the opposite occurs. We use water for cooling in our

         12  reactors, they used graphite. Graphite is flammable

         13  under high temperatures, and it went on fire.

         14                 At Three Mile Island, the location of

         15  the worst commercial nuclear accident in U.S.

         16  history, no one was even hurt.

         17                 Finally, I would like to state --

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: If I can just

         19  jump in on that point, I mean that was certainly not

         20  my understanding of what happened at TMI, but if

         21  that's your -- I mean, it was my understanding that

         22  there were, you know, certainly health problems as a

         23  result of what happened there.

         24                 MR. SLOBODIEN: Mr. Chairman, I can

         25  address that directly.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: All right.

          3                 MR. SLOBODIEN: In 1979 I worked for

          4  the Nuclear Regulatory Commission. I was a responder

          5  to the Three Mile Accident at that time.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

          7                 MR. SLOBODIEN: Subsequently, between

          8  the period of 1982 to 1987, I was in charge of the

          9  radiological clean-up of the Three Mile Island

         10  reactor.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         12                 MR. SLOBODIEN: The reports of the

         13  State Health Department in Pennsylvania, the

         14  National Institutes of Health, and many other

         15  groups, both public and private, that studied the

         16  Three Mile Island accident, found that there were no

         17  discernible health effects as a result of that

         18  accident.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Then let's just

         20  proceed. But I would ask you, to the extent that

         21  there's anything in your testimony that's not

         22  covered by the previous two, it seems like we're

         23  covering kind of a lot of the same ground here, and

         24  we're very eager to get to the question and answer

         25  section of this panel. And we do have more testimony
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          2  yet to come from the economic people sitting to your

          3  right. And so to the extent there's anything in your

          4  testimony you think hasn't been sort of put out on

          5  the table, we'd sort of like to hear it.

          6                 It seems like you're covering similar

          7  ground of the first witness. I just want to be

          8  sensitive to time, there's a lot of people that have

          9  to get on. So, anything new there that you want to

         10  put out?

         11                 MS. GILLMAN: The only thing that I

         12  would say is that we do provide 2,000 megawatts of

         13  electricity to the metropolitan area.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: No one disputes

         15  that.

         16                 MS. GILLMAN: I've heard a lot of

         17  reports that you don't need the power, but I sat in

         18  the control room in the summer months, in July and

         19  August, and we received daily phone calls from the

         20  system grid operator cautioning us to do nothing, no

         21  operation which could potentially jeopardize that

         22  power to the grid because it was so very vital at

         23  the time. So, I would add that, and I'll skip the

         24  rest.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay. Well,
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          2  thank you very much for that important anecdote

          3  there.

          4                 Now, you two gentlemen are part of

          5  the same panel, as well, right? Okay. And I

          6  understand that there's Mr. Harrison and Mr. Meehan,

          7  am I saying that right? Mr. Meehan. Once again, if I

          8  could ask perhaps one of you to sort of just -- if I

          9  could ask just perhaps one of you, rather than both

         10  of you, to summarize this very impressive and

         11  lengthy document that you have entitled "Electricity

         12  System Impacts of Nuclear Shutdown Alternatives."

         13  Oh, I see you have a presentation; is that right?

         14                 DR. HARRISON: Yes, we do.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: How long does it

         16  take?

         17                 DR. HARRISON: Well, I think we were

         18  thinking about ten minutes. Ten minutes or so.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: How about six?

         20                 DR. HARRISON: Okay.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Six, you're on.

         22  Speak fast.

         23                 DR. HARRISON: We have a number of

         24  slides that you have. Let me first say good

         25  afternoon.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

          3  you very much. Pardon my manners, I will just ask

          4  you to state your name for the record and proceed.

          5                 DR. HARRISON: Yes. I'm David

          6  Harrison. I am a Senior Vice President at National

          7  Economic Research Associates, or NEARA, a firm of

          8  consulting economists with headquarters in White

          9  Plains and offices in New York City and elsewhere

         10  around the world.

         11                 Before joining there I was Associate

         12  Professor at the Kennedy School at Harvard, where I

         13  taught economics and energy and environmental

         14  policy, and earlier I was a senior staff member of

         15  the Council of Economic Advisors.

         16                 The person who will be presenting

         17  along with me, Gene Meehan, is also a Senior Vice

         18  President at NEARA.

         19                 What we'd like to do is summarize the

         20  results of our study, in terms of its objectives,

         21  briefly describe its methodology, and then focus on

         22  the conclusions.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes. If we could

         24  sort of speed to the punchline, that would sort of

         25  be good, because that's really, I just want to know

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            43

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  where you all end up on this thing. I mean, this is

          3  really what we kind of need.

          4                 I mean, everyone knows you're smart

          5  and did a great job and all that, but we want to

          6  know, you know --

          7                 DR. HARRISON: Well, let me focus --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes.

          9                 DR. HARRISON: There are sort of two

         10  issues really, and they're somewhat different. One

         11  is the issue of reliability, and let me ask my

         12  colleague Gene Meehan to focus on that.

         13                 The second issue is the effects on

         14  electricity rates and consumer expenditures. So,

         15  what I'd like to do, though, just for 30 seconds --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Great.

         17                 DR. HARRISON:-- Is to emphasize that

         18  this is a detailed study, that it's based on

         19  individual plant specific information, projections.

         20  We have a study here that --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: We got it. We

         22  got it.

         23                 DR. HARRISON: That may have been made

         24  available to you, so that it provides --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: That's this one,
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          2  right?

          3                 DR. HARRISON: It provides a lot of

          4  the details.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.

          6                 DR. HARRISON: So what we'd like to do

          7  is emphasize three things. One is that this is a

          8  detailed study that you can look and see what the

          9  specific assumptions are.

         10                 Two, we'd like to talk about the

         11  reliability results.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Sure.

         13                 DR. HARRISON: And, three, we'd like

         14  to talk about the results on consumer expenditures.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay. And let me

         16  just put this out here. I just want everyone to know

         17  that this is not the last hearing on this subject.

         18  We're not going to be voting the resolution today,

         19  and I think, you know, what we're going to try to do

         20  after this hearing is, you know, kind of assimilate

         21  all the things we've heard, and kind of read through

         22  all of the good documents and follow-up with you

         23  individually as we need it, and, so, it's going to

         24  be a recurring theme, not just to you folks,

         25  everybody who testifies. Let's just put all the play

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            45

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  on the wheel, and like the next hearing we'll make

          3  the clay into like a nice pot or urn or whatever it

          4  is like we're going to make. So, I can't make a

          5  finished vase, let's just get the clay on the wheel.

          6  And, so, we want to know essentially, as fast as you

          7  can move to your conclusion section, that would be

          8  great, because to the extent that you guys are on we

          9  prevent other people, and we've got me and other

         10  people who want to get a broad spectrum of what's

         11  going on here, so we've got to move it along.

         12                 MR. MEEHAN: I'll talk first about the

         13  reliability results, and then David can talk about

         14  the price impacts.

         15                 In terms of reliability, we looked at

         16  our study what would happen with and without Indian

         17  Point, and we concluded that reliability would

         18  deteriorate significantly by a factor of five as the

         19  chart --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, if you

         21  could speak right into the microphone.

         22                 MR. MEEHAN: By a factor of five, as

         23  the chart up there shows, that from an expected

         24  situation with Indian Point of having to resort to

         25  some type of emergency measure, some type of -- I
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          2  mean, it ranges all the way from inadequate reserves

          3  to rolling blackouts, that would go from two days a

          4  year from 11 days per year. So, without Indian

          5  Point, we believe there wouldn't be enough

          6  generating capacity in the years 2003, '4 and '5.

          7  There would be a significant decrease in

          8  reliability.

          9                 We don't believe that that decrease

         10  could easily or effectively be made up by

         11  conservation measures. Conservation is a good

         12  long-term solution. But if you look at California

         13  before they had conservation measures, they had

         14  blackouts and they had 50 percent increases in

         15  prices, and what we believe with Indian Point is the

         16  thing to do is to avoid getting into that situation,

         17  rather than have to --

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, let's talk

         19  about here, not California. Right here, right now,

         20  what we've got on the table.

         21                 MR. MEEHAN: Well, that sums it up. We

         22  believe there would be a five times decrease in

         23  reliability that would be difficult to ameliorate in

         24  the short-term.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Mr. Chairman?
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes?

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Could you

          4  just ask the witness to explain what he means by

          5  reliability?

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes.

          7                 Would that be the end of your

          8  testimony?

          9                 MR. MEEHAN: No. That will take me

         10  about 30 seconds.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: All right.

         12                 MR. MEEHAN: Reliability just means

         13  the ability to supply adequate electricity. A lack

         14  of reliability means that the system doesn't have

         15  enough power, that customers have to be curtailed

         16  involuntarily, or the system has to be operated in a

         17  less secure fashion, with less operating reserves

         18  with voltage reduction, which could damage

         19  equipment.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

         21                 Did you have any closing remarks, or

         22  did you want to proceed with a little bit of your

         23  presentation? Or that was the presentation?

         24                 DR. HARRISON: Well, no, I think, as I

         25  said, there was three issues.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Sure.

          3                 DR. HARRISON: One is that this is a

          4  detailed study.

          5                 Two, that the reliability impacts we

          6  modeled.

          7                 And, three, that we modeled effects

          8  on prices and consumer expenditures.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Talk about the

         10  prices for a second.

         11                 DR. HARRISON: So, what this slide

         12  shows is, and if you're looking at the handout it's

         13  on page 18, it shows increases in wholesale prices

         14  in consumer expenditures. And I think since you're

         15  really, you know, bottom line oriented, I think the

         16  way to summarize these results are that if that if

         17  Indian -- our estimate is that over the course of

         18  the three and a half period from June 2002 to 2005,

         19  the added expenditures on electricity would be about

         20  $3 billion if Indian Point were removed from the

         21  system.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: So that's how

         23  much more consumers would have to pay, you know, no

         24  Indian Point versus having Indian Point. That's your

         25  --

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            49

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2                 DR. HARRISON: Right. Based on the

          3  detailed model, our estimate is that the added

          4  consumer expenditures would be about $3 billion.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: And that would

          6  be borne by people in and out of New York City?

          7                 DR. HARRISON: That's right. And we

          8  also have, you'll see, in the handout that those

          9  were born more than proportionally by the downstate.

         10  So, we have --

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: "Downstate"

         12  meaning New York City, or "downstate" meaning

         13  Westchester?

         14                 DR. HARRISON: Meaning New York City.

         15  So, for example, the estimate for the increased

         16  expenditures were in Con Ed, the Con Ed service

         17  territory would be about 20 percent, rather than

         18  about five percent upstate.

         19                 So, the details of this study allow

         20  us to estimate the differential effects of shutting

         21  down Indian Point in different regions within the

         22  state.

         23                 So that that really, in terms of the

         24  conclusions, really there are essentially two

         25  conclusions, one is that if Indian Point were
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          2  removed, were shut down, that there would be major

          3  effects on reliability. The reliability of the

          4  system would deteriorate.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes.

          6                 DR. HARRISON: And, secondly, that

          7  there would be price impacts, that there would be

          8  increases in prices, and that those increased prices

          9  would translate into increased expenditures. Our

         10  quantitative estimate would be that those would be

         11  about $3 billion over the three and a half year

         12  period, from June 2002 to 2005.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: If you had to

         14  put that in percentage terms of how much more people

         15  have to pay for their electricity, could you take a

         16  stab at that in New York City?

         17                 DR. HARRISON: That's in our study. I

         18  think the average yearly expenditures would go up

         19  for wholesale, would be about between 11 and 16

         20  percent.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I'm talking like

         22  your average person who lives in Woodside who pays a

         23  utility bill?

         24                 DR. HARRISON: We would expect that

         25  the average expenditures over the course of the year
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          2  may be around half of that, or between five and

          3  eight percent.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: So, between five

          5  and eight percent, you know, added to average

          6  utility bill, average person.

          7                 DR. HARRISON: Over the course of the

          8  year.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Over the course

         10  of the year.

         11                 This is to say that some parts of the

         12  year wouldn't be so bad, some parts of the year

         13  would be worse, and whatever?

         14                 DR. HARRISON: That's right.

         15                 And also, that in some regions that

         16  it would be substantially more than that.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         18                 Okay, thanks very much. I think what

         19  we'd like to do is just proceed with sort of like

         20  the question segment of this panel.

         21                 We're joined by Council Member

         22  Vallone, and if I could, let me just ask one of the

         23  questions that I had.

         24                 When I took my tour last week, it

         25  seemed as though there was, I mentioned ways to make
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          2  the nuclear -- and, again, this would be to --

          3  whoever wants to take the question, go ahead -- but

          4  there seemed to be a recognition on the part of

          5  people that gave you my tour of the plant, that they

          6  were somewhat concerned about the security of the

          7  spent fuel pools, notwithstanding everything that

          8  we've heard today from you folks about its, you

          9  know, relative security. They seemed a little bit

         10  concerned about it and they had some ideas on how to

         11  make it a little more secure. I had some ideas

         12  myself, if I could be so presumptuous as to have

         13  ideas in this area when I'm not a nuclear engineer,

         14  but it seemed to me that something that was on the

         15  table that they were considering, that I was talking

         16  about with them, was the prospect of using the, you

         17  know, Indian Point 1 containment dome, that's been

         18  in mothballs for, you know, a long period of time,

         19  although I understand it hasn't been fully

         20  decommissioned. I don't know if there's a

         21  radioactive core in there that would have to be

         22  removed or whatever. But that seemed, you know,

         23  perhaps a more secure site for the location of the

         24  spent fuel pools, and I guess my question would be,

         25  what would it take to take the spent fuel storage
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          2  facilities as you have them now in three different

          3  places and organize them under one roof, that being

          4  the roof of the Indian Point 1 containment dome, you

          5  know, get them out of where they are now, construct

          6  a new facility under the roof of Indian Point 1. I

          7  guess you would have to do something to that

          8  containment zone in order to make it, you know,

          9  ready to have that. And they were also indicating

         10  that they wanted to go to dry cask storage as well.

         11                 It seems that the spent fuel within

         12  dry casks and under the protective cover of the

         13  Indian Point 1 dome would make a much more secure

         14  arrangement than that, which we have right now. They

         15  weren't able to sort of quantify how long that would

         16  take or how much it would cost, but I put that

         17  question to you now, and you can take a stab at it

         18  now, it was like a rough guess. And also if you can

         19  characterize the extent to which this has been

         20  discussed by you folks I'd appreciate it.

         21                 Anything you could tell me about the

         22  movement of the spent fuel pools under the roof of

         23  IP 1 dome, and going to dry cask storage.

         24                 I guess you could treat them

         25  separately. Dry cask, which I guess you folks want
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          2  to do anyway, I think, as well as moving it under

          3  Indian Point 1, which I think is just something in

          4  my mind and some other people's minds now as

          5  something of interest to me.

          6                 MR. KNUBEL: Yes, let me address that

          7  a couple of ways. First of all, the spent fuel pool

          8  areas have always been part of our defensive

          9  strategy, even before 9/11. Since 9/11 the NRC has

         10  put out several advisories requiring us to relook at

         11  the fuel pools. If you want to talk specifics --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Pardon me. I

         13  missed that last sentence. Sorry about that.

         14                 MR. KNUBEL: No --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: And once again,

         16  right into the microphone so that we can all hear

         17  you.

         18                 MR. KNUBEL: Okay.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Get up close.

         20  It's not going to hurt you.

         21                 MR. KNUBEL: That's all right.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

         23                 MR. KNUBEL: First of all, the fuel

         24  pool has always been part of our defensive strategy.

         25  We've always had a strategy to defend the fuel pool.
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          2  Since 9/11, the NRC has required us to relook at

          3  that. We've done that, we've been inspected by the

          4  NRC, and they're comfortable now as to protection

          5  from the air --

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I'm not.

          7                 MR. KNUBEL: -- Which seems to be the

          8  issue that you're uncomfortable with. We would have

          9  to look at that and conclude that it was safer to go

         10  through the process, to move all of that fuel out of

         11  the water, okay, take it out from under the 25 feet

         12  of water, load it in casks, which we are not

         13  licensed to do today, and if I use Fitzpatrick plan

         14  up in northern New York as an example, it took us

         15  about five years to get the license to do that, we

         16  can remove approximately, about one core or one

         17  equivalent core a year from the plant, which would

         18  take us about ten years to off-load the core from

         19  each one of those pools.

         20                 I haven't done an economic study, and

         21  I don't know what that would take to do that.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: So, we're

         23  dreaming here. I mean, this is not going to happen

         24  over short term.

         25                 MR. KNUBEL: In the short term that's
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          2  not going to happen. Yes, sir.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: What would have

          4  to be done to the Indian Point 1 reactor dome in

          5  order to make that able to house it? I guess, is

          6  there still like a radioactive nuclear core in there

          7  that would have to be commissioned and yanked out of

          8  there and all that?

          9                 MR. KNUBEL: Again, this is the first

         10  time I've heard of that idea, and we've really never

         11  looked at that and I'm really not prepared to

         12  address that right now.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay. It seemed

         14  like that idea was further along conceptually, you

         15  know, at least with the guys on site there that I

         16  had spoke to.

         17                 MR. KNUBEL: I'm not aware of that.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes, that was a

         19  question.

         20                 Just to revisit the issue of the

         21  reactor domes being able to sustain the impact of

         22  some sort of jumbo commercial airliner. Could you

         23  sort of go over that with us again?

         24                 MR. KNUBEL: Yes.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: This is really
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          2  the first time that I've heard it asserted.

          3                 Essentially make your statement again

          4  on that and back it up.

          5                 MR. KNUBEL: Yes, let me try to break

          6  it in two parts. When you look at an impact of an

          7  aircraft into a containment building or any

          8  structure, for that matter, there's two effects; one

          9  is the additional load, or the impact load that the

         10  missile, the plane imparts on the building; and the

         11  second part is the ability of parts of the plane,

         12  different parts of the plane, mainly it turns out

         13  the engine shafts on the turbines, to independently

         14  moving with their own speed and momentum of the

         15  impact to then penetrate.

         16                 It's quite easy to analyze the

         17  containment for the impact of a plane. And the total

         18  impact of a plane crashing into it will not collapse

         19  containment. So, it will not fold in on itself or

         20  fall over or get knocked over like you could knock

         21  over a sign or one of these, you know, stands or

         22  something.

         23                 But separate and distinct --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: However, it

         25  seems that there was never any study, or any kind of
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          2  design criteria for the design of the reactor domes

          3  provided for that kind of --

          4                 MR. KNUBEL: Well, that's a partially

          5  true statement.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes.

          7                 MR. KNUBEL: You're right from the

          8  perspective of a 767 or a 747. But the plane was

          9  looked at, for a 707, which was the biggest plane at

         10  the time, had substantial margin. When I say

         11  substantial, it could withstand two of those things

         12  running into it.

         13                 So, it's clear to me that -- and when

         14  I look at the tooling (phonetic) and when I look at

         15  the loads, and when I look at some studies some

         16  other people have done, the building itself will not

         17  collapse, will not be overstressed by the impact of

         18  the plane.

         19                 Now, to look separately at the

         20  potential for a part of the plane penetrating,

         21  regardless of that load as some kind of a missile or

         22  projectile going into the building, the Sandia test

         23  used an F4 jet, and launched it at a concrete wall

         24  and it penetrated about two and a quarter inches.

         25  Somebody will say, well, it's not as big. It doesn't
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          2  matter, the engine is as big, the mass of the rotor

          3  and the impact speed of the rotor is what matters

          4  for penetration, and in that particular test it did

          5  not penetrate, and we did not believe, and I did not

          6  believe based on my engineering judgment, that the

          7  rotor from a 767, which is comparable to F4, at the

          8  same speed would penetrate.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         10  you.

         11                 MR. KNUBEL: Okay.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Now, of course,

         13  when you apply the same logic of a plane going into

         14  the spent fuel pools, although it couldn't be

         15  perhaps -- I mean, the amount of precision you would

         16  need to pilot an aircraft of that size into the

         17  spent fuel pool, would, you know, somebody would

         18  have to have somebody that could, like, thread the

         19  needle.

         20                 However, something of a smaller

         21  variety, you know, packed with explosives, certainly

         22  could sound a little preposterous to even be

         23  speculating something like that, but in the

         24  post-September 11th world, I mean this is the kind

         25  of thing we're talking about, and so I don't know
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          2  that we have to revisit that, but I just wanted to

          3  go over the reactor dome thing with you, and thank

          4  you for that.

          5                 And I have another follow-up

          6  question. Hold on a second.

          7                 MR. KNUBEL: Well, the only comment I

          8  would make is that if you look at the plant picture,

          9  if you could show me where a fuel pool is, then you

         10  could hit it, and the answer is you can't.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: The bad guys

         12  know where it is. I was there, I saw it. I mean, you

         13  know, from this angle --

         14                 MR. KNUBEL: You can't see it.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes, I was at

         16  the site, I saw where it was, I was in it. You know,

         17  it was also nice of your folks to take me for a

         18  little swim in the pool too. It wasn't as warm as I

         19  thought. It wasn't as warm as I thought, it was

         20  okay.

         21                 I'm kidding. They did not put me in

         22  the fuel pool. They didn't do that. They were very

         23  careful with me. I was grateful for the opportunity

         24  to see what it was like. You know, they showed me

         25  where all of it was, how deep it was, and the
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          2  thickness of the walls and they were very thorough

          3  and terrific, and I was grateful for the

          4  opportunity.

          5                 MR. KNUBEL: Well, I don't know if it

          6  would give you any more comfort, but the NRC is

          7  doing a full-blown review of the site, all the

          8  sites, as a matter of fact, and they're looking at

          9  containments and fuel pools and a susceptibility to

         10  attack from the air.

         11                 I am not in control of that study,

         12  and I don't know when it will be issued.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Speaking of the

         14  NRC, I was just on the phone two days ago with I

         15  guess the regional director, I guess from King of

         16  Prussia, or whatever, in Pennsylvania? Very gracious

         17  gentlemen who wasn't able to make this hearing, he

         18  was very apologetic, he was very busy. I tried to

         19  prevail upon them to send someone so we could have

         20  posed questions to them. I think the hearing is

         21  suffering a little bit from the fact that they're

         22  not here, but maybe we'll get them next time around.

         23                 What I'm going to do now, although I

         24  have other things I'd like to, I have my colleagues

         25  here who are patiently waiting for the opportunity
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          2  to pose some questions to you. So, I recognize

          3  Council Member Lopez.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: I was wondering

          5  if when you take a swim in that pool, you will come

          6  out looking green like when you take a swim in the

          7  ocean where Vieques is? And when you go in there you

          8  come looking green, neo, in there. I don't know if

          9  in this pool that would happen.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Any time you

         11  want to go for a swim, Margarita, just let me know.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Let's not go to

         13  Vieques, because in there, there's a lot of

         14  pollution in there.

         15                 I have just a question.

         16                 In your testimony, you said that the

         17  people who work at the plant get processed with a

         18  certain vigorous procedure taking the fingerprints,

         19  getting investigated by the FBI, et cetera, et

         20  cetera.

         21                 Once all that happens and the person

         22  begins working there, you don't continue having

         23  routine monitoring of the employees? Not internal

         24  drug testing, I'm talking about to make sure that

         25  the individuals that you have inside continue to
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          2  work with you, are loyal to this country.

          3                 MR. KNUBEL: Generally speaking,

          4  before 9/11 the answer to that question was, no, we

          5  did not do follow-up background checks on

          6  individuals, expect in very specific cases where we

          7  had reason to believe or we were made aware of an

          8  arrest or something of that nature.

          9                 As a result of 9/11, we routinely get

         10  notified by the FBI and through the NRC of people to

         11  check for. And we are required to go and we check

         12  our current roles of employees, anyone who has

         13  visited the site, even members of the Council, and

         14  we have to report, if anyone who is on the list that

         15  the FBI gives us has been at the plant either as an

         16  employee or as a visitor or as a contractor, but we

         17  do not routinely update the background checks.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: I want to

         19  suggest that I think that that's a bad practice.

         20                 I mean, since that change in our

         21  country, and we should recognize that, and the

         22  reality is, and I'm not trying to offend any of the

         23  individuals who work there, I believe that all of

         24  them are trustworthy, but live has difficulties, and

         25  sometimes people can change. And I believe that one
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          2  of the things that should be looked into is to

          3  continue a monitoring of the people who work in this

          4  place, because nobody can predict that 9/11 was

          5  going to happen in the way that it happened. And it

          6  happened. Then what you describe here as monitoring

          7  the employees, in my opinion, is not sufficient.

          8                 MR. KNUBEL: Well, two things: One is,

          9  we have what's called a behavioral observation

         10  program, where we look for changes in behavior or

         11  any changes in patterns that people exhibit, and

         12  then we do reject people when we observe that,

         13  number one.

         14                 And then, number two, as I mentioned,

         15  we do -- every person, you cannot get on that site

         16  without being searched. Every time you go there.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Yes, but I'm

         18  not thinking about the people who come in who don't

         19  work there. And I'm very serious about what I'm

         20  telling you right now. I was here in 1993, and when

         21  that incident occurred in '93, after that I believed

         22  that my government was going to take care of us, and

         23  then 9/11 came.

         24                 I never, never in my wildest dreams,

         25  thought that my federal government was not taking
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          2  care of me and my City, and that did not happen.

          3  Then I'm telling you right now, when you speak about

          4  the security and the way that you conduct routine

          5  checks on the employees that are there today, what

          6  you describe, in my opinion, is not sufficient. And

          7  in my opinion, you should revisit the policy that

          8  you have in that area.

          9                 MR. KNUBEL: Okay, I appreciate that.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Then the last

         11  question, in your testimony you said that since 9/11

         12  we have to spend an additional 4 million in plant

         13  security. We intend to invest approximately another

         14  3 million in security this year. Why do you have to

         15  put 4 million since 9/11 and then put three more

         16  million? What was wrong that you were not doing

         17  before?

         18                 MR. KNUBEL: Well, I guess I wouldn't

         19  characterize it as wrong. I think we've heard here

         20  today.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Then let me

         22  change this statement.

         23                 MR. KNUBEL: Okay.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: What was

         25  insufficient?
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          2                 MR. KNUBEL: Our view of the world was

          3  different before 9/11, and we believe that, and I

          4  honestly believe that we met all the NRC

          5  requirements, we were fully compliant, we've been

          6  inspected by the NRC. When we look in light of 9/11,

          7  what the capabilities of terrorist groups have, we

          8  believed we had to take additional action.

          9                 I mentioned to you that the

         10  controlled area used to only be posted as private

         11  property, and that was the only requirement that

         12  existed. Since 9/11 it's not just posted as private

         13  property, it's patrolled with National Guard, armed

         14  people from our security force and with the National

         15  Guard. So, what we decided was that in light of what

         16  we knew based on 9/11, it would be prudent, and we

         17  did this before the NRC gave us any direction, to

         18  increase the number of people who were physically

         19  on-site, increase their capability as far as their

         20  training, their armament and their ability to

         21  respond to what we knew at this point was a greater

         22  threat.

         23                 So that's why we spent that extra

         24  money. The $4 million is primarily in extra people,

         25  and extra overtime we've spent to have more people
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          2  physically on site in the security arena.

          3                 The $3 million we're spending now is

          4  to try to get back, if I could say, to more normal

          5  -- but to invest money in hardware, physical

          6  barriers, things that will stop trucks, things that

          7  will stop, I guess give us better detection and

          8  capability to stop people, and that's what the

          9  additional $3 million is for.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: In other words,

         11  you had to increase by $7 million the security in

         12  there?

         13                 MR. KNUBEL: If you add up the people

         14  side and the hardware side, yes.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: And you plan to

         16  sustain that increase?

         17                 MR. KNUBEL: Yes, we do.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Indefinitely?

         19                 MR. KNUBEL: That's true.

         20                 Well, the hardware, once we buy it

         21  it's bought and we have --

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: I understand.

         23  But the other one, it's indefinite?

         24                 MR. KNUBEL: That's correct. Yes,

         25  Ma'am.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Thank you.

          3                 MS. GILLMAN: If I could add

          4  something?

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Yes.

          6                 MS. GILLMAN: I want to answer your

          7  first question a little bit more.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Before you say

          9  anything, I am so impressed that you are a woman and

         10  you are in that position. I'm a tough cookie here in

         11  the Council about women being in power.

         12                 MS. GILLMAN: Yes.

         13                 I just want to answer your first

         14  question a little bit better, because I do work at

         15  the plant every day, and I do operate the plant.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Yes.

         17                 MS. GILLMAN: And some of the issues

         18  that we deal with in operations, where the slightest

         19  position of a valve, a pump, anything that's out of

         20  normal is questioned by operators, and always viewed

         21  as a potential sabotage event, and we've always

         22  viewed things like that prior to 9/11. If we find

         23  something in the plant that we can't explain, we

         24  call security and investigate it fully.

         25                 All the people that work there, their
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          2  supervisors have received training on aberrant

          3  behavior, how to recognize it so that the employees

          4  that you're dealing with every day, you know them,

          5  you know how they behave, if they are starting to

          6  act in an aberrant manner, you're able to recognize

          7  what the signs are and what to look for.

          8                 Coming into the plant in the morning,

          9  you drive in, at the gate there is the National

         10  Guard, the State Police, armed security. Coming into

         11  the plant you have to put your hand in a hand reader

         12  which recognizes your palm. You go through a metal

         13  detector, explosive detector, all your bags are

         14  going through an x-ray machine, cell phones, beepers

         15  have to be turned on, palm pilots. So, there's lines

         16  of people that come into the plant every day that

         17  know the security guards, but yet every day I go in

         18  there, it's stop, turn on your beeper, turn on your

         19  phone, and they check each individual.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: I hear you.

         21  It's not that I don't believe that you don't have

         22  security in there. It's that our lives have changed

         23  permanently and forever, and I think it's for the

         24  good, because in may ways we pretend that life has

         25  not changed and that was the reason we were caught
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          2  with the pants down.

          3                 MS. GILLMAN: Right.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you,

          6  Council Member Lopez.

          7                 Council Member Koppell has questions.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Have you done

          9  the computer modeling tests of things like airplanes

         10  going into the plant? Or has the NRC done them?

         11                 MR. KNUBEL: That was the study I

         12  referred to the NRC is currently doing.

         13                 We had done a study, and as I

         14  mentioned earlier, unfortunately it was based on the

         15  largest plane that existed at the time, which was a

         16  707. So, yes, we have a study that looked at a 707.

         17                 The NRC has currently chosen to do a

         18  modeling and a look at all plants. But they're not

         19  just looking at containment, but they're looking at

         20  the control room, they're looking at the spent fuel

         21  pool area, and other areas of the plant that also

         22  might be susceptible where there's safety equipment

         23  and that kind of thing. But it hasn't been done I

         24  guess to use today's aircraft in a sophisticated

         25  way, and that's what's currently underway.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Well, I would

          3  suggest that it should be done. I'd be interested in

          4  our receiving the results of those computer modeling

          5  studies to see, because what would the consequence

          6  of a fully loaded 767 crashing into -- fully fuel

          7  loaded 767 crashing into the plant?

          8                 I don't know how many people

          9  realistically thought the World Trade Center Towers

         10  only a few blocks from here would come down, but

         11  they did.

         12                 MR. KNUBEL: I understand.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: The other

         14  thing is, I was wondering what precautions or what

         15  studies you've done of an attack from the river?

         16  Because I notice the plant is right on the river.

         17                 MR. KNUBEL: Yes, there seems to be a

         18  misperception. First of all, we don't control

         19  traffic on the river, that's subject to the Coast

         20  Guard.

         21                 We do, and we have always been,

         22  protected from the river. By protected I mean we

         23  have the ability to repel and deal with any

         24  intruders that come from the river.

         25                 We also have the ability to deal
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          2  with, and I can't discuss the size, but with anyone

          3  who would choose to place an explosive device in a

          4  river. And that has been looked at and we are

          5  sufficiently protected.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Are there

          7  devices to prevent barges or ships from coming close

          8  to the plant?

          9                 MR. KNUBEL: Well "devices" maybe is

         10  too strong a word. We are in the process of

         11  installing a buoy system that will clearly delineate

         12  an area around the plant on which traffic is not

         13  permitted to enter, if it does we would call the

         14  Coast Guard.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: I would

         16  suggest you might want to discuss with the NRC and

         17  others some sort of blockading system to prevent a

         18  ship which could be loaded with explosives from

         19  getting close to the plant. Just as a thought,

         20  because that's certainly a conceivable scenario.

         21                 The other question goes to the

         22  economics. What is the total megawatts that are used

         23  in the state?  When you talk you have 2,000

         24  megawatts I think, how many megawatts are we talking

         25  about statewide?
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          2                 MR. MEEHAN: The peak demand would be

          3  approximately 30,000 megawatts, a little more than

          4  that.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: So, you're

          6  talking the plant has something on the order of,

          7  what, seven percent?

          8                 MR. MEEHAN: That's approximately

          9  right, yes. Seven, eight percent.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Seven, eight

         11  percent.

         12                 And isn't it possible to purchase

         13  that power from the grid in the summertime, if your

         14  power were not there?

         15                 MR. MEEHAN: Well, on many days it may

         16  be possible, but at a much higher cost. And the

         17  point of the reliability study, though, is that on

         18  the hottest days other areas are going to need their

         19  own power and the power may not be available to

         20  purchase from the grid, that's what's quantified in

         21  that study.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Does your

         23  study show that on the hottest days there would be

         24  brownouts or blackouts if the 2,000 megawatts were

         25  not available?
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          2                 MR. MEEHAN: Yes. It shows that there

          3  would be a significant increase in the probability

          4  of brownouts or blackouts.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Okay.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you very

          7  much. Important phone call, sorry about that.

          8                 Thank you, Council Member Koppell.

          9                 Council Member Vallone.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: I thought you

         11  were taking a swim for a second.

         12                 Margarita, first of all, I have to

         13  disagree with you. I'm not surprised that a woman

         14  runs this plant. I have two daughters and I fully

         15  expect women to run the entire world.

         16                 Let me thank you for coming down.

         17  First, as you know, I'm Chair of the Public Safety

         18  Committee, and I've had meetings with

         19  representatives of your company already about

         20  concerns I've had and I'll be brief now for fear of

         21  incurring the wrath of our Chairman, and just ask

         22  one quick question. It's a basic question which I'm

         23  still confused about. Does it make a difference,

         24  from a public safety standpoint, whether or not your

         25  plant is operating or not?
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          2                 What I mean is, would the affect of

          3  any attack be different whether or not you were

          4  providing electricity at the time or whether you

          5  were shut down?

          6                 MR. MEEHAN: Mr. Vallone, the

          7  radioactivity that's at Indian Point is there

          8  whether the plant is operating or not. That's

          9  certainly in the case of the fuel pool. In the

         10  reactor core, the radioactivity level decreases once

         11  the plant is shut down but does not go away. What

         12  does go away is the thermal energy, the heat energy

         13  to propel anything outside the plant and it

         14  decreases pretty rapidly, but also does not go away

         15  after the plant is shut down.

         16                 So, I think the simple answer to your

         17  question is, once the plant is shut down, the

         18  hazard, the potential hazard, the risk is still

         19  present.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: The thermal

         21  energy needed to propel something, what does that

         22  mean in layman's terms?

         23                 MR. MEEHAN: The steam, the steam

         24  energy that is in the plant goes away once the plant

         25  is shut down. That energy would be very important if
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          2  there were to be an accident to cause radioactivity

          3  to go into the environment.

          4                 Once the plant is shut down, that

          5  substantially decreases.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Okay, I have

          7  many other questions. I know we have other

          8  witnesses, so I'll wait til we get to those. Thanks.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Whether or not

         10  the plant exists?

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: No, I'm

         12  sorry, that wasn't my question. Not whether or not

         13  the plant exists; whether or not it's operating,

         14  whether or not it's sitting there and actually

         15  providing electricity or not, and apparently it will

         16  make a difference.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: In terms of

         18  electricity?

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: No, not in

         20  terms of electricity; in terms of the affect of an

         21  attack on the plant, whether or not it makes a

         22  difference whether it's shut down or providing

         23  electricity.

         24                 MS. GILLMAN: Can I answer your

         25  question a little bit there?

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            77

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: In the event

          3  of a security attack, if we're operating at 100

          4  percent power, putting electricity on the grid, the

          5  first action that we get in the control room in the

          6  event of a credible security threat is trip the

          7  reactor. So, you're operating 100 percent, in two

          8  seconds you're at zero power.

          9                 It takes about 20 minutes for all the

         10  thermal energy in the core, in the radiation to go

         11  to basically non-operating levels. So, at

         12  post-security, pre-security, you're looking at two

         13  seconds to go to zero percent power and about 20

         14  minutes for most of the decayee (phonetic) to be

         15  removed.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Maybe I'm

         17  wrong, but that's provided you have notice of a

         18  credible threat? If you didn't, and there was some

         19  sort of attack without notice, what would the affect

         20  be?

         21                 MS. GILLMAN: If we didn't have

         22  credible threat via the phone from security, and we

         23  received reports in the plant, every vital parameter

         24  that we have that is providing cooling, any

         25  safety-related equipment, there's alarms in the
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          2  control room, for something like a jet or big

          3  security event you'd receive multiple alarms in the

          4  control room at which point the operators are

          5  trained to trip the reactor and place the plant in a

          6  safe condition.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Again, you

          8  would have some notice if a jet were coming, but

          9  following up on what Margarita said, if there was an

         10  employee who possibly decided to do some type of

         11  damage and you had no notice, again, the effect of

         12  whether the plant was operating or not, what would

         13  be the difference?

         14                 MS. GILLMAN: It would have no

         15  difference, in terms of the radioactivity at the

         16  plant right now there would be no difference. It

         17  would take one person an incredible amount of action

         18  to pose a real threat to an operating plant, because

         19  there's so much redundancy in the safety-related

         20  systems at the plant.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: I will follow

         22  up with that later on. Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you,

         24  Council Member Vallone.

         25                 I just have one last item for Mr.
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          2  Harrison. Mr. Harrison, right?

          3                 You mentioned a report and an energy

          4  report which you referred to in your testimony; was

          5  that this report? I just wanted to make sure that we

          6  have all the reports that you referred to in your

          7  testimony. You made reference to a report.

          8                 DR. HARRISON: Yes, we referenced the

          9  report, this is the report. In addition, there are

         10  some slides that reference the testimony.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Is that this

         12  report? Is that the one I'm looking at here? Is that

         13  the same one?

         14                 DR. HARRISON: Yes, it's the same one.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

         16                 DR. HARRISON: It's supplemented by

         17  the slides, which developed some comments on some

         18  other --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay. Do we have

         20  copies of the slides? Are they part of the report?

         21                 DR. HARRISON: I believe those were

         22  given to you this morning.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, fine. I

         24  just wanted to make sure that we got everything that

         25  you made reference to.
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          2                 That's all I have for this panel. If

          3  anyone else has anything else? Okay, I would like to

          4  thank you very much for your testimony. Thank you

          5  for coming. Please hang around and hear what else is

          6  going to be said by our folks, we'd certainly

          7  appreciate that. And we want to call, the next

          8  witness will testify by himself, William Museler,

          9  President and CEO of the New York Independent System

         10  Operator.

         11                 And just to get other panels sort of

         12  lined up, once Mr. Museler testifies will be the

         13  Environmental Panel, and you know who you are; and

         14  then after that will be the Labor Panel, and you

         15  know who you are. And, so, I just want to get people

         16  lined up. Thanks very much.

         17                 I'll let my Counsel, Donna

         18  DeCostanzo, take over. She'll administer the oath

         19  and ask you to identify yourself and then you can

         20  proceed with your testimony. Thank you very much.

         21                 Donna.

         22                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Can both of you

         23  please state your names for the record.

         24                 MR. MUSELER: My name is William J.

         25  Museler.
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          2                 MR. SULLIVAN: My name is Steven C.

          3  Sullivan.

          4                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: And can you both

          5  raise your right hands?

          6                 Do you swear or affirm that the

          7  testimony you're about to give is the truth, the

          8  whole truth, and nothing but the truth?

          9                 (Witnesses sworn.)

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you very

         11  much. You may consider yourselves under oath, and I

         12  would be happy if you could proceed with your

         13  testimony.

         14                 MR. MUSELER: Thank you, Chairman

         15  Gennaro.

         16                 Good afternoon, ladies and gentlemen

         17  of the City Council.

         18                 My name is William J. Museler, and

         19  I'm the President and CEO of the New York

         20  Independent System Operator, sometimes called NYISO.

         21                 Thank you for the invitation to

         22  testify concerning your Resolution Number 64,

         23  calling for the shutdown of the Indian Point Nuclear

         24  Facility.

         25                 NYISO is a not-for-profit
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          2  organization based just outside of Albany. It is

          3  responsible for maintaining the reliability of New

          4  York State's bulk electric power system and

          5  administering the State's wholesale electric

          6  markets.

          7                 It was established in December of

          8  1999 to help facilitate restructuring of the

          9  electric power industry in the State of New York.

         10                 In offering my comments today, I must

         11  first point out that NYISO has no position on this

         12  issue, and I am not here to argue either for or

         13  against your resolution. Because of NYISO's

         14  responsibilities regarding statewide reliability and

         15  the administration of the state's wholesale electric

         16  markets, we are in the position to provide the

         17  Council with information limited to the Resolution's

         18  impact on those areas of responsibility.

         19                 In the area of electric reliability,

         20  because of the currency of this issue, the NYISO

         21  recently examined the impact of the State's electric

         22  -- excuse me -- the impact on the State's electric

         23  reliability. We had also been asked to provide this

         24  assessment to the State Senate Committee on Energy

         25  by Senator Wright, and we did so last month.
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          2                 This examination evaluated the loss

          3  of the full capacity of Indian Point Units 2 and 3

          4  on the State's ability to meet projected electric

          5  demand reliably in the Years 2002 and 2003.

          6                 In order to assure a reliable supply

          7  of electricity, the universal practice in the

          8  industry is to have available generating capacity in

          9  excess of projected demand. Those "reserves" supply

         10  a crucial cushion against plant breakdowns, routine

         11  maintenance and unanticipated demand, such as we had

         12  last summer.

         13                 That cushion, which we call a

         14  capacity reserve margin, is required in New York and

         15  in neighboring states, to be about 18 percent above

         16  the forecast peak demand for electricity.

         17                 The closure of Indian Point would

         18  leave the State 1,121 megawatts short of its

         19  required 18 percent capacity reserve margin for the

         20  year ending April 30, 2003.

         21                 Some of this deficiency could be

         22  replaced by imports from neighboring states.

         23  However, because nearly two-thirds of New York

         24  State's load is concentrated in Eastern New York,

         25  imports can replace capacity from Indian Point 2 and
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          2  3 generally only if they come from the New England

          3  area, assuming that similar shutdowns did not take

          4  place in New England.

          5                 Imports from Canada and from the

          6  Pennsylvania Jersey Maryland Interconnection, the

          7  control area to the south of us, cannot be

          8  significantly increased because the transmission

          9  system in those areas is already utilized to its

         10  fullest capacity.

         11                 For purposes of the examination, we

         12  assumed that New York would be able to contract for

         13  the full 1,120 megawatts of deficient capacity from

         14  resources in New England. Even under this

         15  assumption, however, the probability of New York's

         16  being unable to meet peak demand was doubled, also

         17  causing the state to fall out of compliance with

         18  applicable reliability requirements. These

         19  requirements are imposed by the Northeast Power

         20  Coordinating Council and the New York State

         21  Reliability Council.

         22                 By way of background, reliability is

         23  measured by the quantification of the threat of a

         24  blackout due to insufficient generating capacity. It

         25  is secured in the New York market by the requirement
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          2  that Load Serving Entities, such as Consolidated

          3  Edison, purchase 18 percent more capacity than their

          4  forecast peak demand. This 18 percent level of

          5  reserve capacity results in a probability of such a

          6  blackout occurring of no more than one day every ten

          7  years.

          8                 With the loss of Indian Point 2 and

          9  3, but including the 1,120 megawatts of imported

         10  capacity from New England, New York's capacity would

         11  theoretically prevent a blackout for all but one day

         12  in five years. If New York were unable to purchase

         13  such capacity from New England, reliability would

         14  drop to one day in every two years. Again, as

         15  contrasted to the reliability standard of one day in

         16  ten years.

         17                 Again, in both cases, New York would

         18  be out of compliance with the reliability

         19  requirements to which we are subject.

         20                 More importantly, the State's

         21  residents would receive a lower level of service

         22  than currently required.

         23                 The impact on electricity prices. The

         24  NYISO has also estimated the impact on wholesale

         25  electricity prices by calculating what prices would
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          2  have been on two days in 2001, had these facilities

          3  not been available.

          4                 We re-ran the State's largest

          5  wholesale electricity market, the day head market,

          6  for December 13th, 2001, which is a nominal day,

          7  normal load, and for August 9th, 2001, which was

          8  last year's peak day. We then compared the

          9  recalculated prices to the actual prices for those

         10  days when the plants were running, so we were

         11  comparing calculating prices under the same system

         12  conditions and the same weather conditions, to the

         13  actual conditions and the actual prices that

         14  occurred on those days when the plants were running.

         15                 Without Indian Point 2 and 3 in

         16  service, the average daily wholesale energy crisis

         17  in this market for August 9th, the peak day in

         18  Upstate New York, rose by 60 to 70 percent.

         19                 In New York City, the area about

         20  which you are obviously most concerned, prices

         21  nearly doubled.

         22                 On Long Island, prices rose by 121

         23  percent. For that one day, load weighted energy

         24  costs for New York State as a whole increased from

         25  $189.1 million, which is what they actually were, to
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          2  a theoretical level of $347.1 million, a jump of

          3  $158 million or 83.8 percent.

          4                 Price increases in December 13th,

          5  2001 - the nominal load day - without these

          6  facilities, were also significant, but obviously

          7  much less.

          8                 The average energy cost in the

          9  largest market, again, our day ahead market,

         10  increased between 25 percent and 35 percent for Long

         11  Island and New York City loads respectively. Upstate

         12  the increase averaged between 5.3 and 7.5 percent.

         13                 Given that New York's energy usage

         14  patterns are comprised of a large number of nominal

         15  days, the lower load days, peppered with a few peak

         16  days, we would expect that the wholesale price

         17  impact over the year to New York City of removing

         18  the Indian Point units from service would fall

         19  somewhere between the 35 percent and 100 percent

         20  increase suggested by these two study days, with the

         21  likelihood that the blended figure would be closer

         22  to the 35 percent end than the 100 percent end.

         23                 In conclusion, as I stated earlier,

         24  our evaluation is limited to the questions of

         25  reliability of electric supply and the economic
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          2  consequences of the removal of Indian Points 2 and 3

          3  from service.

          4                 The answers are that the removal of

          5  these units from service would result in an increase

          6  in wholesale electricity costs, and a reduction in

          7  reliability of the State's bulk power system.

          8                 However, as the individual

          9  responsible for New York's electric system, I will

         10  say that in a time frame we're discussing, I do have

         11  serious concerns about New York's reliability,

         12  especially New York City, if the Indian Point Units

         13  are removed from service without having replacement

         14  units added in the downstate area for replacement

         15  power.

         16                 It is worth noting that because of

         17  transmission constraints, adding generating units

         18  upstate would do very little to replace the power

         19  loss if the Indian Point units were taken off the

         20  grid.

         21                 Last summer on August 9th, we set a

         22  new peak electricity consumption record in the state

         23  of 30,983 megawatts, and we came perilously close to

         24  using up our reserves. We actually fell below the

         25  required reserve limits on the peak day of August
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          2  9th.

          3                 If we were in the same situation

          4  again, without the Indian Point units, or an

          5  equivalent downstate replacement, we would have a

          6  very serious reliability problem.

          7                 In closing, my purpose here today has

          8  been to try and provide a clear and accurate picture

          9  of the impact of taking Indian Point 2 and 3 off

         10  line so that you may have what you need in order to

         11  make an informed decision about the resolution that

         12  is before you.

         13                 To this end, I hope my testimony has

         14  been helpful, and I would be happy to entertain any

         15  questions you might have.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you very

         17  much. And thank you for your testimony. It seems to

         18  me that your testimony of using the December Day and

         19  the August day, and just say, okay, let's just

         20  figure out what would have happened back then if IP

         21  2 and 3 didn't exist on those days and what the

         22  resulting price spikes would be, but does anyone

         23  think that that's realistic? Because if there were

         24  to be a situation where IP 2 and 3 would come off

         25  line, wouldn't that be done with a view towards
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          2  seeing how we replace that with upstate with New

          3  England power or whatever? So, I don't know as

          4  though it just strikes me that the analysis was not

          5  very real world; am I not getting something here?

          6                 MR. MUSELER: Chairman Gennaro, I'm

          7  sorry if I didn't make it clear, the analysis we did

          8  assumed we could get the 1,120 megawatts from New

          9  England. We did, on the reliability side, we ran it

         10  both ways, with that replacement power from New

         11  England and without that replacement power from New

         12  England. On the economic side we assumed we could

         13  get that replacement power from New England. So,

         14  those economic numbers assume we could buy whatever

         15  was available from New England up to a limit of

         16  1,120 megawatts.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: And, so, we take

         18  the Indian Point power away and then we replace that

         19  with which we need to get to the 18 percent, you

         20  know, cushion, and we're still looking at spikes of

         21  100 percent.

         22                 So, your analysis was much more

         23  draconian than that which provided by the energy

         24  analyst for the Entergy team, which I guess shows

         25  us, you know, what we're trying to sort of wade
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          2  through here in terms of information, and we'll have

          3  a panel that's going to come up after you that's

          4  going to indicate presumably that the impact of this

          5  whole thing is really de minimus, and I'm venting I

          6  guess about what it is to sit up here and have, you

          7  know, competing analyses that are not even in the

          8  same ball park as one another.

          9                 This is not to say that you're not

         10  the one who's right and the other folks are wrong,

         11  but it's difficult to kind of make sense of this all

         12  sometimes.

         13                 MR. MUSELER: Right. I don't envy the

         14  position you're in, Chairman Gennaro. All I can say

         15  is that the analysis we did, which we believe was

         16  appropriate, given the question we were asked.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         18                 MR. MUSELER: Uses the same model that

         19  is used every day to run the power market in New

         20  York.

         21                 And, again, it depends on what you

         22  postulate the situation is. If you postulate new

         23  units are here or there or the other place, you have

         24  a completely different situation.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.
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          2                 MR. MUSELER: But for the situation

          3  that could exist in 2002/2003, where there are not

          4  going to be any new power plants in that area, the

          5  market, the source of replacement energy, assuming

          6  that New England, and they might have it available,

          7  assuming that New England had that generation

          8  available, it would be sold on the market, and it

          9  would be sold into our wholesale market, and that

         10  model we think reflects reality because it's

         11  calibrated every day against the market prices in

         12  New York. But I don't envy you the situation you're

         13  in.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Well, thank you.

         15  And let me ask one follow-up question. When I was

         16  touring the plant last week, I posed a question to

         17  the Entergy folks about whether or not -- because it

         18  was my understanding, you know, I have some basic

         19  understanding of the ISO requirement for the 80

         20  percent in-city generation rule for those that want

         21  to, you know, market power here in New York City,

         22  they have to at least have the capability to

         23  generate 80 percent of the power they market to New

         24  York City, after they have at least the ability to

         25  generate 80 percent of that in New York City. And
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          2  the people from Entergy claim that IP Units 2 and 3,

          3  for the purposes of that calculation, were

          4  considered in-city capacity; is that your

          5  understanding? I mean, it's your rule, it's your

          6  definition.

          7                 MR. MUSELER: No. They're in the zone,

          8  I don't believe their in-city capacity. I'll

          9  doublecheck that for you, and I'll get back to you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         11                 MR. MUSELER: Consolidated Edison, you

         12  know, encompasses Westchester County, and our

         13  electricity grid is arranged in zones.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         15                 MR. MUSELER: But the in-city

         16  requirement, my understanding, which we will confirm

         17  to you in writing, is in the boundaries of New York

         18  City.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right, that's

         20  what I thought. You know, in-city meant, it was like

         21  a literal meaning of, you know, in the city, not on

         22  some other configuration of lines or wires or some

         23  other kind of --

         24                 MR. MUSELER: Yes, sir.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay. Hang on
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          2  one second.

          3                 Council Member Vallone has a

          4  question. Before I turn things over to him I just

          5  wanted to, I guess what your analysis doesn't take

          6  into account would be conservation measures that

          7  could be invoked or whatever.

          8                 I have a suspicion other people are

          9  going to come up here and talk about the impact of

         10  taking Indian Point 2 and 3 off line are going to

         11  talk about conservation measures, and yours would

         12  just be an analysis that doesn't really speak to

         13  that. It just talks about the power is not here,

         14  we've got to get it, and this is what you're looking

         15  at.

         16                 MR. MUSELER: That's correct. We

         17  assumed the forecasted load increase with no

         18  reduction for conservation measures.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, thank you

         20  very much. And I recognize Council Member Vallone.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Thank you,

         22  Mr. Chair.

         23                 Let me first say for the benefit of

         24  the members of this Committee, the title "New York

         25  Independent System Operator" is not accurate. This
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          2  group is in no way independent.  And we should know

          3  that, first of all, it is an arm of Governor Pataki

          4  and has been used that way. And I object to this

          5  name, this "Independent" name, to try to mislead

          6  people to think this is some independent group,

          7  because it is not. I've been dealing with them on

          8  many occasions as counsel, former counsel to CHOCE,

          9  the Coalition Helping Organize a Cleaner

         10  Environment, and in fact your group has been used as

         11  a weapon to put more power plants into my district,

         12  and you've been, in fact, no help at all in

         13  preventing my district from bearing the burden of

         14  close to 60 percent of the power for the entire

         15  City.

         16                 Strangely enough, we have the same

         17  concerns regarding this issue right here. You've

         18  mentioned that closing down Indian Point would

         19  result in increased powerplants. The Siting Board

         20  has already approved two powerplants in my district.

         21  Two out of the five applications have been before

         22  the Siting Board, with your backing, two have been

         23  approved. The other three, there's no reason to

         24  believe there won't be, which is a whole other

         25  topic, which we will be holding hearings on.
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          2                 So, is it your opinion then, I have

          3  to attend to another matter, is it your opinion then

          4  that closing down Indian Point would result in more

          5  traditional powerplants being built in New York

          6  City?

          7                 MR. MUSELER: Council Member Vallone,

          8  the Indian Point location is, you know, further up

          9  the transmission system than the City of New York,

         10  and the decision on siting powerplants is up to the

         11  State Siting Board and the local communities

         12  involved.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: No, I'm

         14  sorry, not the local communities, just the Siting

         15  Board.

         16                 MR. MUSELER: The replacement

         17  powerplants for Indian Point, if they were needed to

         18  achieve the same -- if you look at achieving the

         19  same impact on the electric system and on electric

         20  prices, they could be located in New York City, but

         21  they could also be located in the Indian Point area

         22  and have the same effect as the existing unit. So,

         23  they wouldn't necessarily have to be located in the

         24  City of New York.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Are there any
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          2  powerplants currently under review by the Siting

          3  Board in the Indian Point area?

          4                 MR. MUSELER: If you mean the local

          5  area around Indian Point, to my knowledge, no, sir.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: And there are

          7  five in my district.

          8                 Okay, thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you,

         10  Council Member Vallone.

         11                 We've been joined by Council Member

         12  Jennings. I should have recognized him earlier. I

         13  apologize for that slight.

         14                 Does anybody have any more questions

         15  for these witnesses?

         16                 Okay, thank you very much for your

         17  testimony. We greatly appreciate it.

         18                 MR. MUSELER: Thank you, Chairman

         19  Gennaro.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: And we're

         21  calling up our next panel, Charles Komanoff. This is

         22  the Environmental Panel; Legislator Michael

         23  Kaplowitz; Alex Matthiessen of Riverkeeper; and

         24  Linda Jain representing Richard Brodsky.

         25                 And the next panel will be Mark
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          2  Williams of Local 1 and 2, and Ed Ott from the

          3  Central Labor Council.

          4                 Thank you all very much. I'd like to

          5  thank these witnesses and all the witnesses to

          6  follow for your patience. We greatly appreciate

          7  that.

          8                 There are people here of usually busy

          9  schedules and high stature in their various

         10  communities who are spending a lot of hours here.

         11  We're grateful for your patience. I'm trying to move

         12  things along as quickly as I can. I'm sorry for the

         13  pace, but we'll see what we can do. And, so, I'd to

         14  ask this once again, I'll turn it over to Donna

         15  DeCostanzo, who will administer the oath, and we

         16  look forward to your testimony.

         17                 Donna.

         18                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Can you all please

         19  raise your right hand.

         20                 Do you swear or affirm that the

         21  testimony you're about to give is the truth, the

         22  whole truth and nothing but the truth?

         23                 (Witnesses sworn.)

         24                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Okay, thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: We understand
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          2  that Mr. Komanoff has a time constraint; is that

          3  right?

          4                 MR. MATTHIESSEN: Chairman Gennaro, if

          5  I may say, Charlie Komanoff had to leave. He had a

          6  medical urgency that he had to deal with. David

          7  Schlissel, who is also an independent economist, is

          8  going to testify. As well, he's already on the

          9  panel, but if he could testify with us we'd

         10  appreciate it.

         11                 Also, Ashook Gupta from the Natural

         12  Resources Defense Council is also here. We would

         13  appreciate it if he could be part of our panel, if

         14  that's possible.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay. We'll do

         16  that but we've got to move it along, because I was

         17  going to split it up a little differently.

         18                 Mr. Gupta can join you, but we'll

         19  have to move things along all the more quicker

         20  so-to-speak.

         21                 And, so, you know what we'll do?

         22  Perhaps we'll have Mr. Gupta go separately. It will

         23  work out in the longrun. It will be okay. It will

         24  give you more time up there. How's that?

         25                 MR. MATTHIESSEN: I would certainly
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          2  appreciate that.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: We would like to

          4  ask each of the witnesses to identify themselves for

          5  the record, and you may all consider yourselves

          6  under oath, and then whoever is going to testify

          7  first can proceed with their testimony.

          8                 MR. KAPLOWITZ: Good afternoon, Mr.

          9  Chairman. Michael Kaplowitz, County Legislator,

         10  Westchester County, District Number 4.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: It's a pleasure

         12  to have you.

         13                 You know what? Are you going to

         14  testify first?

         15                 MR. KAPLOWITZ: That would be great.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, then let's

         17  just --

         18                 MR. KAPLOWITZ: I have never said no

         19  to that invitation.  Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay. You're my

         21  counterpart, right? You chair the Environmental

         22  Committee?

         23                 MR. KAPLOWITZ: Yes, sir. Chairman of

         24  the Environmental Health Committee. It's my fifth

         25  year as such. I live 10.4 miles personally from
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          2  Indian Point, just outside the evacuation zone,

          3  though I represent much of the district within the

          4  evacuation zone. I represent portions of the towns

          5  of Sommers, York Town and New Castle, comprised of

          6  the Hamilton, Chapaqua and Millwood.

          7                 I have a home resolution pending

          8  before the Westchester County Board legislators.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I just want to

         10  make sure that I have your testimony here.

         11                 MR. KAPLOWITZ: Yes, sir. You have the

         12  green, which is a "Three Step to a Safe Indian

         13  Point," as well as a more recent resolution, the

         14  second page which I will reference has some

         15  underlined sections.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Fine. So, this

         17  is you, right?

         18                 MR. KAPLOWITZ: That is me. Thank you.

         19                 By the way, before September 11th,

         20  while the County Board of Legislators had reviewed

         21  evacuation issues, Indian Point issues, I and the

         22  board had taken no stand on potentially closing of

         23  Indian Point.

         24                 What we are finding in Westchester

         25  County, and thank you, Mr. Chairman, ladies and
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          2  gentlemen, for the opportunity for brief comment, is

          3  that at least in Westchester County this is now a

          4  soccer mom issue. This is no longer an ideological

          5  fringe issue, but this is a matter of public safety

          6  and concern for many Westchester residents, and dare

          7  say through your hearings today, obviously, to New

          8  York City residents.

          9                 I'm here to support your resolution,

         10  Mr. Chairman, and I think it obviously, despite --

         11  because it's well read and well concerned and well

         12  considered, certainly I think it adds a critical

         13  voice to the issue of the ultimate disposition of

         14  Indian Point.

         15                 Just some brief comments. The pending

         16  Westchester Resolution, which I'm hoping to move

         17  before the full board before consideration, latter

         18  part of this month or early next month, has a few

         19  other facets that you might want to consider in

         20  yours.

         21                 First and foremost, waterways are

         22  potentially affected. I represent a district,

         23  Westchester County has all three, Croton, Delaware

         24  and Catskill Water Systems running through it. If,

         25  in fact, there was a radiological leak for whatever
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          2  reason, or a plume, as indicated perhaps, it would

          3  affect the New Croton Reservoir, providing 12

          4  percent of New York City's water, and the Kensico

          5  Reservoir, which is no more than 17 miles, and all

          6  three aqueducts do run within, with prevailing

          7  winds, you're looking at a very devastating

          8  potential situation.

          9                 The second thing, the resolution that

         10  I've put forward, goes a step further, and it calls

         11  for an orderly closure and decommission. I believe,

         12  many of us believe that both that phrase "closure"

         13  and "decommission" is important.

         14                 Closure is where the plug is pulled,

         15  decommission is a process that takes, as you

         16  obviously know, a period of time.

         17                 I visited Connecticut Yankee. We had

         18  testimony from a Maine Yankee individual, and what

         19  we learned was that in both cases you need to do

         20  both to begin to ensure public safety. You need to

         21  move to modern modalities like dry cask and other

         22  situations, but you need to consider both of those.

         23                 Beyond that, we had testimony from

         24  Assemblyman Brodsky and other representatives who

         25  represent us, particularly the Westchester County,
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          2  and then of course in the State, and what they

          3  indicated to us, in an opportunity today for all of

          4  us, is to move forward together on this, that if we

          5  could speak with one voice, we have the opportunity

          6  to convince and prevail upon our State and federal

          7  representatives that as a matter of public safety we

          8  need to move to orderly closure and decommission.

          9  So, I'm hoping today to be able to coordinate our

         10  efforts and to reach out to our sister and brother

         11  brethren down here. We have also engaged in, and I

         12  thank you and congratulate you for the process, the

         13  due diligence process that you're engaged in.

         14                 What we found out with great

         15  diligence, in listening to 11 hours of testimony at

         16  the county center, employees, residents of Buchanan

         17  who basically wanted to keep the plant open

         18  substantially, and non-residents and non-employees

         19  who believed that we needed to close the plant, that

         20  in essence we need a transition plant. We need state

         21  help, we need federal help for the power, the jobs

         22  and the taxes. And what you'll see in the pending

         23  resolution as amended is a calling for a transition

         24  plant in all those areas. There were 1,500

         25  employees, many of them, some of them are my
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          2  constituents. I am not insensitive to their plight;

          3  however, public safety prevails. We need to find an

          4  opportunity through decommissioning and its

          5  attenuated process, through other circumstances, to

          6  find some state help for them.

          7                 The power grid ISO indicated

          8  pressure, you'll hear from economists, we engaged in

          9  the same process. Certainly if you want us, we can

         10  share some testimony with you.

         11                 The bottom line, and you'll see it in

         12  my resolution, is I believe we have a prime site to

         13  put, as Councilman Vallone talked about, are there

         14  other sites being considered, it's called Indian

         15  Point. It's a 230-acre site. The transmission lines

         16  already run to it. We can, I believe, through

         17  political pressure, through prevailing upon the NRC,

         18  move to close, suspend, decomission Indian Point,

         19  and then at the same time create the opportunity to

         20  rebuild a power plant through alternative fuels or

         21  natural gas on site.

         22                 There is the Algonquin Pipeline that

         23  runs under, literally under Indian Point, as we

         24  speak. There is an application in Article 10 early

         25  process whereby Entergy themselves want to build two
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          2  365, total 330 megawatts of power, using natural

          3  gas, in peaking fashion for sure, but nonetheless,

          4  they recognize the viability of it, and the

          5  Millenium pipeline is being proposed to run four and

          6  a half miles just south of the facility itself.

          7                 I believe that we need NYSERTA, we

          8  need Public Service Commission, we need leadership

          9  at the State to recognize that this is a prime site

         10  the community would want to have, and wants to have

         11  a powerplant, and Buchanan is very pleased to have

         12  the powerplant, unlike other locations. They want

         13  the job and the taxes, and if you fuel it by another

         14  modality, I think in fact you can create a viable

         15  situation.

         16                 A few more very brief comments.

         17  Evacuation plan. Despite Indian Point's and

         18  Entergy's concerns and contention, I believe you

         19  absolutely have to come up with an evacuation plan,

         20  certainly the consideration within yourselves.

         21                 Pose what would happen if you lost

         22  the ability to drink New York City water? How fast

         23  would civilization as we know it end? And DEP's

         24  plans, as we understand it, are either to dam up the

         25  reservoirs and stop the water flow, or dump the
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          2  water, if, in fact, something occurred, you can ask

          3  DEP yourself that, but we're not that far away

          4  without water from being able to continue to live

          5  life as we know it.

          6                 You're well within the entire City of

          7  New York without Staten Island of course, within the

          8  15 miles. Senator Clinton believes it should be

          9  extended, that's something within due course you can

         10  certainly consider at that point.

         11                 Energy in general, I'll leave the

         12  consideration here, but photovoltaic conservation,

         13  other alternatives, natural gas, we are looking at,

         14  you are obviously looking at, there are other

         15  alternatives, there are efficiencies and technology

         16  different today than there were five, ten, 20 years

         17  ago. Photovoltaic, interesting enough, we had a

         18  gentleman yesterday who showed that New York City is

         19  the epicenter on the East Coast of photovoltaic sun,

         20  solar possibilities, and one that we're going to

         21  certainly consider on our buildings in Westchester

         22  County.

         23                 The plume, I think the plume is an

         24  opportunity for those who want to support the

         25  ongoing operation to use it as an excuse to minimize
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          2  any potential danger, to say it would be simply a

          3  plume that would meander through. Well, in the

          4  testimony, that when they came to us they brought

          5  material, and when I leafed through it, on the very

          6  first page of the meteorological material, it showed

          7  a picture of wind current basically going in three

          8  directions at the same time at the same location.

          9  And when you recognize that material has different

         10  weight, you clearly realize that that is a public

         11  relations, not a scientific process that I think you

         12  need to examine as we clearly have examined.

         13                 In conclusion, I think we in

         14  Westchester have the opportunity to work with the

         15  City Council of the City of New York. Thank you for

         16  your due consideration.

         17                 I believe that we should upgrade,

         18  hopefully you will consider upgrading your

         19  resolution to a closure, and a decommissioning

         20  resolution, hopefully consider some of the

         21  alternatives, certainly the protection of the spent

         22  fuel rods, and the pools, as you've indicated, and

         23  also give us some support, if you are so inclined,

         24  to lend some weight to a feasibility study. It's a

         25  radical idea, the revolutionary thought that we

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            109

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  should study the non-nuclear process and consider an

          3  alternative fuel at Indian Point, you can replace

          4  the 1,900 megawatts. That is a fear that is put in

          5  by Entergy for their own pecuniary interest, and one

          6  that I and you certainly will consider as a matter

          7  of public safety is certainly obviated in that

          8  weight.

          9                 Thank you, sir.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you very

         11  much, Mr. Kaplowitz. I appreciate your being here.

         12  Thank you. And we'll get back to questions once we

         13  have everyone.

         14                 Mr. Matthiessen.

         15                 MR. MATTHIESSEN: Thank you, Chairman

         16  Gennaro. First of all, my name is Alex Matthiessen,

         17  I'm the Executive Director of Riverkeeper. We're one

         18  of the leading organizations leading a coalition

         19  movement of, as Legislator Kaplowitz said, soccer

         20  moms and others who are attempting to shut down the

         21  Indian Point Nuclear Powerplant.

         22                 I do want to emphasize, as Legislator

         23  Kaplowitz said, that we are not an anti-nuclear

         24  movement by any stretch. Of the 40 or more groups

         25  that are involved in our coalition, only a fraction
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          2  of them are traditionally anti-nuclear. Most of them

          3  are either community organizations comprised of

          4  soccer moms and concerned parents and others who

          5  have just formed, since 9/11, or there are other

          6  environmental groups like Riverkeeper and others

          7  that have never traditionally been anti-nuclear.

          8  We've been fighting Indian Point for a long time,

          9  but not because of the kind of fuel that they use,

         10  because of the number of fish that they kill. And I

         11  do want to remind you that of all the powerplants on

         12  the Hudson River, no plant kills as many fish as

         13  Indian Point, and that's a whole other reason to

         14  shut that plant down.

         15                 They've been abusing their Clean

         16  Water Act license conditions for about ten or 20

         17  years, and it's time that they are required to build

         18  the necessary infrastructure, at the very least, to

         19  mitigate those fish kills.

         20                 First, I don't need to remind you but

         21  it's just important and worth mentioning that New

         22  York City, as we've heard countless times and again

         23  from our elected officials and leaders in

         24  government, and the Defense Department, New York

         25  City is a favorite target and a possible target
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          2  again of another terrorist attack. Eight percent of

          3  the U.S. population lives within the New York

          4  Metropolitan area. The threat of a terrorist attack

          5  here is very real. It's arguable that there is no

          6  more attractive site than the Indian Point Nuclear

          7  Powerplant.

          8                 And, again, President Bush and his

          9  other leaders of the security agencies have

         10  confirmed that the Al Qaida network does possess

         11  diagrams of U.S. nuclear facilities.

         12                 One other thing I want to acknowledge

         13  before I go forward, that is that you've heard

         14  Entergy say today that they are working to improve

         15  security at the plant. We want to make it very

         16  clear, we have no doubt that they're doing that. Of

         17  course it's expected that they should do that,

         18  especially in light of 9/11, so we have no doubt

         19  that they're making a generally good faith effort to

         20  improve security, but the problem is is they can

         21  only do it around the margin. The issue is to what

         22  extent can they really defend against the 9/11 type

         23  of attack.

         24                 And likewise, I would say about the

         25  workers, we trust completely that the workers work
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          2  very hard, that they do their best to make sure that

          3  plant is run safely, and we mean that, and we have

          4  no reason to suspect that that's not the case.

          5                 And moreover, we are very committed

          6  to working with the workers to make sure that should

          7  there be a shutdown of Indian Point, that they are

          8  subjected to an easier transition and that there are

          9  jobs and retraining available to them.

         10                 So, essentially for us the question

         11  comes down to two issues: Is there a significant

         12  risk of a catastrophic release of radiation at

         13  Indian Point?

         14                 And, secondly, assuming that there

         15  is, do we actually need Indian Point?

         16                 Let me cover the first issue first --

         17  the first question first.

         18                 First of all, in terms of the

         19  traditional concern of a reactor meltdown,

         20  everything that Entergy tells you in terms of not

         21  being possible to have any kind of attack that would

         22  penetrate the containment domes is just frankly way

         23  beyond what the average person is led to understand,

         24  based upon the facts before them.

         25                 First of all, the NRC itself has
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          2  acknowledged that these containment zones are not

          3  designed to withstand a major crash of an airline,

          4  especially one loaded with fuel.

          5                 The other thing is that there are

          6  many vulnerable, vulnerabilities and targets at the

          7  site, you've referenced a few yourself. But the

          8  control room and the transmission lines and the

          9  cooling water intakes are three other ways that you

         10  could potentially precipitate a meltdown at the

         11  plant. You don't just have to have to have an attack

         12  on the containment zone.

         13                 Likewise, as you've made reference

         14  to, the spent fuel pools are extremely vulnerable.

         15                 Again, I would just remind the

         16  Committee that there is more radioactive material

         17  contained in those spent fuel pools at Indian Point

         18  by far than was released from Chernobyl. So, they

         19  say quite often you can never have a Chernobyl event

         20  at this plant. Well, what they mean is that the

         21  series of events that would lead to a meltdown, as

         22  occurred at Chernobyl, would not typically happen at

         23  a U.S. nuclear reactor. They're right about that,

         24  but what they failed to mention is that you could

         25  have an accident and a release of radioactive
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          2  material, every bit as destructive as Chernobyl was,

          3  if not worse. Again, there is a lot more radioactive

          4  material there.

          5                 Again, as you have pointed out

          6  yourself, these containment facilities for the spent

          7  fuel pools, are very poorly protected, easy to

          8  breach, and if you did, God forbid, have some kind

          9  of spent fuel fire there, there is no way to contain

         10  that radioactive material from being released. And

         11  scientists, leading experts have said, if you had a

         12  spent fuel fire in one of the pools, you would have

         13  a fire involving 100 percent of the rods in that

         14  spent fuel, and you would have a close to 100

         15  percent release of that radioactive material.

         16                 Regarding the enhanced security

         17  they're talking about, first of all, the security

         18  that they're talking about is minor modifications to

         19  the site. I think that they've improved some of the

         20  barrier systems, they have brought on more national

         21  security guards, but I think there's a real question

         22  as to whether it's a sufficient and robust enough

         23  security force to repel a 9/11 attack, and by that I

         24  mean at least 19 sophisticated suicidal terrorists

         25  making an attack on the plant possibly from four
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          2  directions.

          3                 There's a real question, as well, as

          4  to whether these National Guard has the adequate

          5  training to be able to combat or repel a terrorist

          6  attack. I think a lot of these folks are reserve

          7  units and they do not have the necessary training.

          8  That was my understanding. It's hard to know based

          9  on the secrecy, but I do understand given national

         10  security issues.

         11                 But I think when we think about the

         12  vulnerability of the plant overall, we really have

         13  to take a look at the ability of the plant to defend

         14  against an aerial attack.

         15                 First of all, there is no no fly zone

         16  in effect, which means that you're going to have

         17  less time to be warned of a possible intrusion into

         18  the air space.

         19                 Secondly, Entergy often in debates

         20  that we have with them publicly makes the claim

         21  that, listen, we don't have to worry about an aerial

         22  attack because regardless of whether the containment

         23  zones could withstand a crash, the fact is that the

         24  Home Land Security Office and the FAA and others are

         25  taking care of that problem by improving security at
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          2  the airport.

          3                 So, let me just cite to you some

          4  recent studies based on what's happened in terms of

          5  security since 9/11.

          6                 The FAA issued a report in April that

          7  said that there was nearly 600 violations of

          8  protected air space since 9/11, including five

          9  incidents over the White House, Pentagon and the

         10  Vice President's residence.

         11                 One, a former FAA security chief,

         12  Bill Vincent, said "practically speaking, by the

         13  time the violation was discovered, it would be too

         14  late to do anything."

         15                 So, again, there was an article a

         16  couple of weeks ago in the New York Observer, where

         17  the reporter called Entergy, called the FAA, called

         18  all the other security agencies that presumably

         19  might be responsible for protecting the air space,

         20  and all of them pointed the finger at each other, in

         21  terms of when they were asked the question who is

         22  ultimately responsible for protecting the air space

         23  or protecting the plant from an airline attack.

         24                 Again, another report came out in

         25  March from the Department of Transportation, they
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          2  said they continue to witness problems with the

          3  airport security, that there is a failure to detect

          4  knives, and these were mock security breaches, there

          5  was a failure 70 percent of the time to detect

          6  knives, 30 percent of the time to detect guns, and

          7  60 percent of the time to detect explosives.

          8                 Again, the water-based attack

          9  protection they talk about, there's been an

         10  intermittent inconsistent presence by the Coast

         11  Guard and there's a real question, especially with

         12  the buoy system that these guys are talking about of

         13  really realistically being able to repel any kind of

         14  water-based attack.

         15                 We have heard from nuclear engineers

         16  and experts that if you were to have an explosion in

         17  the intake structures, that you could potentially

         18  make unavailable all the cooling water that is

         19  required and relied upon to keep the reactor cool.

         20                 Just quickly in terms of other

         21  vulnerabilities, there's a lot of questions as

         22  you've referred to earlier about the operations and

         23  the safety of the plant. There's also concerns about

         24  earthquakes. The plant was only designed as far as I

         25  know for a 5.0 maximum Richter scale earthquake,
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          2  and, in fact, we had something that I think was a

          3  5.1 just north of the Indian Point plant. And,

          4  again, Indian Point is built right over a fault

          5  line.

          6                 The evacuation plan Legislator

          7  Kaplowitz made reference to before, but the bottom

          8  line is that for most of us in the 50 mile radius,

          9  or what the NRC calls the "peak injury zone," there

         10  is no evacuation plan whatsoever. And for those who

         11  are lucky enough to live within the ten-mile radius,

         12  which is also within the peak fatality zone, the

         13  plan is by all accounts a useless plan.

         14                 It's based on all kinds of

         15  assumptions that are not real world assumptions,

         16  which were further verified by an independent poll

         17  that we did polling people on what they would likely

         18  do in the event of an accident.

         19                 The consequences of health and

         20  economic, I won't go into great detail there. You

         21  know them all, I'm sure you're familiar with the

         22  number, but suffice it to say, that if there were a

         23  major release of radiation from Indian Point, you

         24  would have a major economic catastrophe for New York

         25  City.
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          2                 As Legislator Kaplowitz made

          3  reference to earlier, even if the 50 percent of the

          4  year prevailing winds that come north to south and

          5  typically travel down the Hudson Valley and down the

          6  Hudson River Valley didn't actually descend upon New

          7  York City and contaminate the City, you would likely

          8  have a contamination of 90 percent or more of the

          9  City's water supply, thus effectively causing the

         10  necessary evacuation perhaps permanent of New York

         11  City.

         12                 I'm not going to go into any great

         13  detail on the energy issue, because we have other

         14  expert witnesses who can cover that. But I will say

         15  very briefly, that first I just want to affirm what

         16  Councilman Vallone said earlier, the NYISO is not

         17  necessarily a very independent agency. I just want

         18  to point out to you, in case you were not aware of

         19  it, that five of the ten of their Board members are

         20  associated with one-third of the nuclear industry in

         21  this country. So, to say that they do not have an

         22  interest in seeing Indian Point protected goes

         23  beyond what we can possibly believe.

         24                 Again, the entire nuclear industry is

         25  taking a very close look at Indian Point, because
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          2  they are worried that this might be the writing on

          3  the wall for this industry that, frankly, is a long

          4  time coming.

          5                 Let me see if I can wrap up my

          6  remarks.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Please.

          8                 MR. MATTHIESSEN: Again, I want to

          9  address the jobs issue. There are currently 1,500

         10  jobs.

         11                 It's important to note that Entergy

         12  itself has publicly admitted that they are not

         13  committed to retaining a full 1,500 employees, they

         14  have said that there could be as little as a

         15  thousand employees over the next couple of years or

         16  a reduction to 1,000 employees. But beyond that, as

         17  Legislator Kaplowitz mentioned, decommissioning

         18  typically preserves about half the number of jobs

         19  and that lasts typically about ten years.

         20                 Not only that, but if you do convert

         21  the site, as Legislator Kaplowitz mentioned, that

         22  would create a lot of jobs energy efficiency

         23  programs, which we strongly recommend also are labor

         24  intensive, and, finally, the fact is that the other

         25  plants are being built in the area, which will
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          2  provide additional jobs.

          3                 On the tax issue, as Legislative

          4  Kaplowitz said, that's something the state needs to

          5  get involved in, but I just want to remind you that

          6  currently in Buchanan and the town of Cortland and

          7  the local school district there, are enjoying the

          8  lowest tax rates in all of Westchester County,

          9  they're essentially being subsidized. And I'm not

         10  faulting them for that, but to say that they're

         11  going to lose those tax revenues means that they're

         12  going to be paid, or be paying about the same level

         13  of taxes as the rest of this county.

         14                 In conclusion, I would say first and

         15  foremost, Entergy will not and cannot guarantee the

         16  plant's security.

         17                 Secondly, as I pointed out before, no

         18  single agency or entity is responsible for

         19  protecting the plant from an aerial attack. There is

         20  at the very least confusion among federal agencies

         21  and the company itself, as to who was ultimately

         22  responsible.

         23                 Third, I think that we have seen from

         24  the independent reports that you will hear about

         25  today that we have done and based largely on NYISO's
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          2  own figures that in fact we do not have a

          3  reliability problem, even if you shut down Indian

          4  Point 2 and 3, and that the price effects will be

          5  fairly marginal.

          6                 And, finally, I think it's very

          7  important for all of us to remember, that if this

          8  plant was proposed today, the NRC, given their

          9  current regulations, would never in a million years

         10  build that plant where it is. Not in such a densely

         11  populated area where 20 million people live and the

         12  World Financial Centers.

         13                 So, as far as I'm concerned, we've

         14  enjoyed this plant for 25 or 30 years, we've gotten

         15  some useful power out of it. There's some real

         16  concerns about the structural integrity and the

         17  operations of the plant, there's a whole new threat

         18  that these guys aren't owning up to in terms of the

         19  9/11 type of threat, and bottom line is, if you

         20  wouldn't build it today, there's absolutely no

         21  justification for continuing to operate it tomorrow.

         22                 And just on a final couple of

         23  footnotes, I do want to re-emphasize what legislator

         24  Kaplowitz said, it is vitally important that New

         25  York City, as the most densely populated of the
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          2  City's in the 50 mile radius sign onto this

          3  resolution, and call on Governor Pataki and others

          4  in our leadership to begin expeditiously to close

          5  the plant and decommission it.

          6                 Secondly, I would also concur with

          7  Legislator Kaplowitz that I would strongly encourage

          8  you to amend the resolution to include immediate

          9  closure and decommissioning, and I think I'll end

         10  there.

         11                 Thank you very much.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         13  you very much.

         14                 The next witness, please once again

         15  identify yourself. Oh, Linda Jain, I've identified

         16  you, for Richard Brodsky.

         17                 MS. JAIN: Yes, I'm Linda Jain, and

         18  I'm representing State Assembly Member Richard

         19  Brodsky.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: And to the

         21  extent that you have anything different to add that

         22  hasn't been stated, please --

         23                 MS. JAIN: Well, my remarks are

         24  specifically about the evacuation plan. So, I will

         25  go through them very briefly. I think most people
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          2  haven't really touched on some of the important

          3  points of that, and I will do them as quickly as I

          4  can.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Great.

          6                 MS. JAIN: The interim report on the

          7  evacuation plan for Indian Point Nuclear Facility

          8  was written by the Assemblyman when he was Chair of

          9  the Assembly Committee on Environmental

         10  Conservation.

         11                 The report concludes that the plan is

         12  grossly inadequate to protect the health and safety

         13  of our communities and our families, even those most

         14  hostile to the report have not challenged any of the

         15  facts or conclusions therein and stand

         16  uncontroverted.

         17                 These inadequacies, most importantly,

         18  fail to take into account the needs of the City of

         19  New York, residents who are south of the southerly

         20  prevailing wind, and whose water supply is just a

         21  few short miles from Indian Point.

         22                 The current emergency planning zone

         23  of ten miles is clearly inadequate. The NRC has the

         24  peak fatality zone at 17 and a half miles, the peak

         25  injury zone at 50 miles. There is clearly a need for
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          2  a plan to move people from New York City as well.

          3                 The plan makes some very dangerous

          4  assumptions about how systems will work and how

          5  people will respond in the event of a serious

          6  emergency. I will quickly go through them.

          7                 It assumes that in the event --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Alex mentioned

          9  those, right? Alex mentioned that there it makes

         10  assumptions that wouldn't make sense, right?

         11                 MS. JAYNE: Right. But he didn't

         12  actually say what they are.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Oh, okay.

         14                 MS. JAYNE: I'll quickly go through

         15  them.

         16                 The plan assumes there will be no

         17  evacuation of people outside the ten mile EPZ, also

         18  known as shadow evacuation.

         19                 New York City must be included in any

         20  of those evacuation scenarios.

         21                 It fails to consider a radiation

         22  release from the spent fuel pool.

         23                 It assumes that parents are going to

         24  evac separately from their children. Evacuate

         25  separately from their children.
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          2                 The plan assumes that most of the

          3  emergency workers, including school personnel and

          4  bus drivers, will return to the EPZ both before and

          5  during an actual radiation release.

          6                 It also assumes that there will be a

          7  significant amount of time between notification of

          8  government officials and the need to evacuate.

          9                 It also assumes that officials can

         10  control the evacuation information to the general

         11  public. I think that's highly unlikely.

         12                 And it also assumes that sheltering,

         13  in other words, staying indoors, will adequately

         14  protect the public in the event of quick release.

         15                 The plan also uses 1990 census

         16  figures, 1990 road and development figures,

         17  configuration figures and 1994 evacuation trial time

         18  estimates. Now, those estimates are being redone,

         19  but they're not going to be done for another year.

         20                 The plan is currently using very

         21  outdated information. It's also unclear whether or

         22  not to what extent the county is really verifying

         23  the vehicles that they're using in the plant, or

         24  vehicle-dependent folks, transit-dependent folks, 50

         25  percent to use public county buses, the other 50

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            127

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  percent are assumed that people are going to take

          3  them.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: If you can, I'm

          5  really interested in New York City stuff.

          6                 MS. JAIN: Okay.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I mean,

          8  Westchester has elected officials who can handle

          9  Westchester's problems. But I'm concerned like New

         10  York City impacts and the reservoir.

         11                 MS. JAIN: Okay. I'm going to just

         12  then cut to the conclusion.

         13                 The resolution today before you calls

         14  for an immediate shutdown of Indian Point, the

         15  Indian Point Nuclear Facility in a review of safety

         16  and security measures are completed.

         17                 This is a good resolution, but

         18  there's another resolution out there, and I urge the

         19  Committee to adopt the most current resolution, and

         20  join the growing coalition of municipalities in

         21  Westchester, Rockland and Putnam Counties, calling

         22  for the immediate shutdown and orderly

         23  decommissioning of Indian Point.

         24                 I would also ask you to urge the

         25  Committee to call upon Governor Pataki and
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          2  Westchester County Executive Spano to withdraw their

          3  letters of certification. Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. And

          5  we have a copy of the resolution, because it's a

          6  resolution that was put forward in Mr. Kaplowitz'

          7  testimony, right?

          8                 MS. JAIN: That's correct.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, great.

         10  Thank you so much, I appreciate it.

         11                 Mr.--

         12                 MR. SCHLISSEL: Schlissel.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Schlissel.

         14                 MR. SCHLISSEL: My name is David

         15  Schlissel. I'm a consultant with the firm of Synapse

         16  Energy Economics in Cambridge, Massachusetts. I will

         17  be very brief because I just spilled my cup of water

         18  in my lap, so you have no problems about me talking

         19  slowly.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay. I'll have

         21  to remember that for the witnesses.

         22                 MR. SCHLISSEL: Excuse me?

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I'll have to

         24  keep that in mind for other witnesses.

         25                 MR. SCHLISSEL: Yes, it's a good --
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Who's on water

          3  duty?

          4                 MR. SCHLISSEL: Yes, the cup with the

          5  hole in the bottom.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

          7                 MR. SCHLISSEL: We were retained by

          8  Riverkeeper and Pace Law School Energy Project to

          9  look at the reliability consequences of permanently

         10  closing Indian Point.

         11                 We did analysis that looked at how

         12  much capacity could reasonably be expected to be

         13  available to serve loads in New York City,

         14  Westchester County and New York State as a whole,

         15  and we compared that to reasonably projected future

         16  customer demands.

         17                 And our conclusions are, quite

         18  simply, first is that from the years 2002 to 2007,

         19  which we believe is the relevant time frame to

         20  examine, there will be enough capacity available

         21  without Indian Point 2 to serve the loads that are

         22  projected by the New York ISO, by Mr. Museler's

         23  organization, and have thousands of megawatts of

         24  reserve capacity, that reserve margins will be more

         25  than adequate in New York City.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: That's for IP 2

          3  or IP 2 and 3?

          4                 MR. SCHLISSEL: That's for both

          5  powerplants out of service.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I've got to get

          7  all these people together in one room. I've got to

          8  get all these guys together in one room and no one

          9  is leaving til --

         10                 MR. SCHLISSEL: Well, I'm going to

         11  finish commenting on the Entergy study, you won't

         12  need to put us in the same room. You may not want to

         13  when I get done.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: We're going to

         15  hold this meeting in the spent fuel pool area. Okay?

         16  That's where we're going to have it. Which is a safe

         17  room. I was there. It's safe. It's a safe room. I

         18  was there, I was in it. They scanned me before,

         19  scanned me afterward, no radiation. I was fine.

         20                 MR. SCHLISSEL: Our conclusion agrees

         21  with what Mr. Museler said, that reserve margins for

         22  the next few years will drop below the ISO's

         23  targeted 18 percent level, but we believe that that

         24  issue can be addressed with first by buying power

         25  from New England or PJM, Pennsylvania, New Jersey,
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          2  Maryland, that's your big electric system to the

          3  south of here, both of which, both New England and

          4  PJM are projecting very high reserve margins.

          5                 New England is projecting four or

          6  five-thousand megawatts of excess capacity at the

          7  time of summer peak.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: They did mention

          9  that bringing power for the south was a problem

         10  because of transmission, overload, and all that.

         11                 MR. SCHLISSEL: You can bring plenty

         12  of power into New York City and New York State from

         13  the south.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay. Well, that

         15  will be for that meeting that we all have. We'll

         16  work all that out.

         17                 MR. SCHLISSEL: Correct.

         18                 So, you can address lower than

         19  desired reserve margins, either through bringing in

         20  power that will be available from outside New York,

         21  certainly from New England, there's no doubt about

         22  that, or by implementing an aggressive conservation

         23  program.

         24                 It's not a question of coming up with

         25  enough capacity to replace 2,000 megawatts of Indian
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          2  Point. Mr. Museler mentioned that over the next two

          3  years you only need 1,100 megawatts or something

          4  like that. I believe Entergy has done an add in the

          5  New York Times --

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: He also

          7  mentioned that even with that power rate is still

          8  going up 100 percent.

          9                 MR. SCHLISSEL: Well, I don't know

         10  rates -- he mentioned 16, I couldn't follow all the

         11  numbers. But, again, you have to realize that a

         12  wholesale rate going up doesn't translate all the

         13  way through to a retail rate going up by that same

         14  amount, and generation is only a portion of the bill

         15  that retail customers pay, so it doesn't flow all

         16  the way through.

         17                 So, in conclusion, w don't see a

         18  major problem, in terms of reliability, from closing

         19  Indian Point Units 2 and 3 today. Our analysis, I

         20  just want to mention, we used reputable sources, New

         21  York ISO data.  We made conservative assumptions,

         22  and our methodology is the generally accepted

         23  methodology for doing these kinds of analyses.

         24                 Now, I'd like to finish by commenting

         25  on the Entergy study briefly. We got it last week
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          2  and prepared a critique of it, a short critique.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Could you

          4  provide that to the Committee?

          5                 MR. SCHLISSEL: It's summarized at the

          6  end of my testimony. And we can also provide copies

          7  of the critique and our study.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Donna is going

          9  to be very busy over the next couple of weeks.

         10                 MR. SCHLISSEL: Firstly, the Entergy

         11  Study uses reserve margins that are roughly six to

         12  nine-hundred megawatts a year higher than the New

         13  York ISO currently forecasts.

         14                 What the Entergy study ignores is the

         15  impact of the events of September 11th, the economic

         16  recession that's been going on; and, third, briefly

         17  for technical reasons, 435 megawatts a load that

         18  used to be considered in New York State is now

         19  considered to be in New Jersey. They didn't reflect

         20  those changes.

         21                 Also, at the same time that they

         22  overstate the demand, the starve the system of

         23  capacity.

         24                 They ignore hundreds of megawatts, up

         25  to perhaps 1,000 megawatts of existing generating
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          2  facilities. They then retire some of these existing

          3  generating facilities, which would never happen if

          4  Indian Point were retired. These are additional

          5  retirements other than at Indian Point.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

          7                 MR. SCHLISSEL: Third, they reflect

          8  some of the new plants that have been approved by

          9  the Siting Board and that are in Mr. Vallone's

         10  district. I've actually been working for CHOCE for

         11  the last year, 75 percent of my time as their

         12  consultant on these very issues.

         13                 But the Entergy study ignored one of

         14  the Upstate plants, the Bethlehem Energy Center.

         15  That's a repowering, you take an old facility --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes, we know.

         17                 MR. SCHLISSEL: They ignored that one.

         18                 If there's questions about the

         19  financing of some of the new projects in New York

         20  State, there's no question about Public Service

         21  Electric and Gases' intention of going ahead with

         22  that one. But that's ignored by the Entergy study.

         23                 And then just finally, one of the

         24  plants that the Siting Board approved for Mr.

         25  Vallone's backyard is the SCS Astoria facility,
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          2  1,000 megawatt plant.

          3                 The Entergy study only modeled it as

          4  a 500 megawatt plant. If you're going to include it,

          5  you need to do the correct size.

          6                 So, basically they've starved

          7  capacity, overstated demand, which leads to their

          8  reliability problem. No surprise.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: No, all of your

         10  critiques of the Entergy study are included in part

         11  of your written testimony?

         12                 MR. SCHLISSEL: Yes, and we will

         13  submit the memo I prepared on that study.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right. I want

         15  everyone criticizing each others' studies so we can

         16  see what's what there.

         17                 MR. SCHLISSEL: I'm sure they will be

         18  happy to criticize my study.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Sure.

         20                 MR. SCHLISSEL: And that I think is

         21  basically what I have to say, other than I have two

         22  degrees in engineering and I've studied nuclear

         23  engineering and reviewed nuclear powerplant

         24  operations for 25 years, and I have no doubt that

         25  Entergy is working as hard as they can to control
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          2  the plant, given anticipated problems. The danger of

          3  terrorism, though, and the areas of the plant that

          4  you went to, is that the systems to control the

          5  plant will themselves be knocked out.

          6                 So, it's not just you breach

          7  containment or you don't breach containment. It's

          8  that the systems that the operators need to control

          9  the plants, in fact the very lives of the operators

         10  may not exist after a terrorist event, so it may not

         11  be able to do what they are adequately trying to do,

         12  given the postulated events.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you very

         14  much.

         15                 I will recognize Council Member

         16  Vallone who has questions for someone.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Actually,

         18  they were pretty much answered, and I know that the

         19  hour is getting late, but let me just thank my CHOCE

         20  associate of Riverkeeper for coming down here. We've

         21  been working so closely to prevent the proliferation

         22  of powerplants, and you know obviously my concern

         23  here is that I don't want -- I agree, we cannot take

         24  these statistics at their face value regarding the

         25  need for new power. They've completely lied to us, I

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            137

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  have no compunction about saying that. Comparing New

          3  York to California to try to scare people into

          4  accepting new powerplants, and that's completely

          5  untrue.

          6                 However, I am concerned about the

          7  removal of 2,000 megawatts from the system, when

          8  only 500 can be made up by conservation measures,

          9  which I obviously approve of.

         10                 You have answered my questions

         11  regarding the ways to make up for this power, and I

         12  thank you all for coming down.

         13                 MR. SCHLISSEL: Well, just briefly, we

         14  believe that more than 500 megawatts of capacity

         15  could be -- well, conservation can reduce peak loads

         16  by far more than 500 megawatts. The 500 megawatts is

         17  Entergy's guess. We believe that upwards of 1,000 or

         18  more, 1,500 megawatts of conservation could be

         19  implemented on a relatively short time frame. So,

         20  the 500 number is Entergy's number, not ours.

         21                 MR. MATTHIESSEN: But Council Member

         22  Vallone, I just want to point out, too, that

         23  Entergy's number of 500 megawatts represents about a

         24  three percent reduction in consumption. Again, look

         25  to the California model, they avoided a single
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          2  blackout last summer, after they had had problems

          3  the previous winter, by implementing an aggressive

          4  conservation program, they reduced their consumption

          5  by as much as 14 percent in June, the peak months,

          6  and ten percent over the summer. So, if we do the

          7  same kind of measures here that they did there, we

          8  should certainly at least be able to get ten

          9  percent, and that's a lot more than 500 megawatts,

         10  that's roughly 1,500 to 2,000 megawatts.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: I agree. And

         12  I'd love to sit down to discuss those with you. I

         13  would recommend that we do those now, regardless of

         14  what happens with this powerplant, and I'd like to

         15  assist you with that.

         16                 Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you all

         18  very much. Let me just take this opportunity to say

         19  that, and this goes for this panel, as well as for

         20  the other panel, we do have follow-up questions and

         21  we will be getting back to folks, but this panel

         22  particularly has been very helpful to me in the days

         23  and weeks leading up to this hearing. We received a

         24  lot of information from you. We deeply appreciate

         25  that, and we look forward to continuing working with
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          2  you. Thank you, once again, for your patience and

          3  thanks so much for being here.

          4                 And now our next panel, the labor

          5  panel, Mr. Ed Ott, from the New York Central Labor

          6  Council. And Mr. Mark Williams from Local 1 and

          7  Local 2.

          8                 Thank you all very much for your

          9  patience. I need just a 60-second break. I'll be

         10  back in one minute, 60 seconds. In the meantime,

         11  Donna can administer the oath.

         12                 (Recess taken.)

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: If everyone can

         14  please take their seats, we have two very important

         15  witnesses, and I want to make sure that everyone has

         16  their full attention.

         17                 Okay, are we all settled down? Sorry

         18  about that, I had to take a little break.

         19                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Okay, can you both

         20  please state your names for the record, please.

         21                 MR. OTT: Edward F. Ott. I'm the

         22  Director of Public Policy for New York City Central

         23  Labor Council.

         24                 MR. WILLIAMS: Mark Williams. I'm the

         25  Deregulation Coordinator for Local 1-2 Utility
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          2  Workers Union of America. We represent about 600

          3  members up at Indian Point.

          4                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Okay, and if you can

          5  both please raise your right hands.

          6                 Do you swear or affirm that the

          7  testimony you're about to give is the truth, the

          8  whole truth and nothing but the truth?

          9                 MR. WILLIAMS: I do.

         10                 MR. OTT: I affirm.

         11                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Thank you.

         12                 (Witnesses sworn.)

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you very

         14  much. And before I ask you to start your testimony,

         15  I'd like to indicate the respect that I have for

         16  this panel of witnesses. I'm a member of the union

         17  movement myself. I'm a member of the Professional

         18  Staff Congress of CUNY. I'm one of the few Council

         19  members who's currently working his union job. So,

         20  as a proud union member, I welcome my union brothers

         21  to the table and I eagerly await your testimony.

         22                 I want to thank you very much for

         23  being here. I want to thank you for your patience.

         24                 Thanks for being with us, you both

         25  have a lot of things to do, and it's great that
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          2  you're here. Welcome, and please proceed with your

          3  testimony.

          4                 MR. WILLIAMS: Since most of the

          5  issues I think have been thoroughly covered, I'll

          6  move forward through this very fast.

          7                 Thank you, Chairman Gennaro, and the

          8  members of the Environmental Protection Committee

          9  for giving me this opportunity to address you this

         10  afternoon.

         11                 I come before you, not only as a

         12  labor leader, but as an educator with almost 20

         13  years' experience in the nuclear power industry. I

         14  have lived in the shadows of Indian Point my entire

         15  life. I currently live well within the ten-mile

         16  evacuation zone with my wife and three small

         17  children.

         18                 I no longer work at the plant daily,

         19  but I can tell you I am not about to move because of

         20  it. The reason - the plant is safe. Our members

         21  would not work there if it were not.

         22                 I came here to talk about four

         23  different issues, but I'm going to move along to

         24  just talk about the myths and some of the

         25  half-truths about Indian Point.
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          2                 Anti-nuclear opponents of Indian

          3  Point have been trying to close the plants for over

          4  30 years, and for a myriad of reasons. In the late

          5  1970s and early 1980s, it was because of the fish

          6  that were being killed due to cooling water being

          7  drawn off the Hudson River. Technology solved that

          8  problem and the fish are doing better than ever.

          9                 In the mid-eighties to early

         10  nineties, it was based on a cancer scare that could

         11  never be substantiated, because cancer rates are

         12  lower for plant workers than the general population.

         13                 Then came September 11th, 2001. To

         14  quote an anti-nuclear member from the Park Slope

         15  Greens, and I quote, "We have an opportunity with

         16  9/11 to finally get Indian Point and we must use

         17  it." That is exactly what they have done. They have

         18  used a horrific national tragedy to advance their

         19  anti-nuclear agenda through fear and misinformation

         20  in order to scare the public and convince political

         21  leaders that they have a mandate, when, in fact,

         22  they do not.

         23                 There have been numerous rallies held

         24  by the anti-nuclear groups. At the most, they're

         25  able to generate maybe 100 people. At every rally
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          2  they have held since February of this year,

          3  pro-nuclear people have outnumbered them, and in

          4  some cases by as much as eight to one.

          5                 They have a website that has been up

          6  for years with about 4,000 signatures, most are from

          7  out of state. Our website, which has been up for

          8  about four months, is closing in on over 8,000

          9  signatures.

         10                 In regards to misinformation and

         11  taking data out of context, the most egregious is

         12  what is referred to as the Sandia report of 1982. In

         13  this report they quote from appendix B: Consequences

         14  of a Nuclear Accident for US Nuclear Power Plants,

         15  which was actually an appendix to a Greenpeace

         16  report entitled, "Risky Business: The Probability

         17  and Consequences of a Nuclear Accident."

         18  Anti-nuclear groups, based on the unexplained data

         19  in the appendix, tell everyone that if a major

         20  accident happens at Indian Point, there will be

         21  46,000 peak early fatalities; 141 peak early

         22  injuries; 13,000 peak cancer deaths. All this will

         23  be worse, they argue, because the population has

         24  grown since 1982.

         25                 Sounds convincing, but not reality,
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          2  because of what is not said. What is not said is

          3  this: The context of the appendix is a worst case

          4  scenario, in order to assess and determine future

          5  safety considerations.

          6                 It was written to assist regulators

          7  in their cost benefit analysis of increased safety

          8  measures. The appendix states, and I quote: "The

          9  figures provided here are based on a core melt down

         10  in which the reactor containment is breached

         11  directly to the atmosphere, and all installed safety

         12  mechanisms fail."

         13                 The appendix never mentions how this

         14  is to occur. It assumes no proactive steps taken by

         15  plant personnel. They simply watch the plant destroy

         16  itself. That is what a worst case scenario is all

         17  about. This is not reality.

         18                 But of even more importance is what

         19  the anti-nuclear groups do not say about the other

         20  numbers in the appendix.

         21                 For instance, that the peak early

         22  fatalities for the Peach Bottom plant, which is

         23  located in a very low-populated area, within a

         24  15-mile radius of the plant, is actually 26,000 peak

         25  early fatalities higher than Indian Point. That the
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          2  Salem plant is 54,000 fatalities higher, and that

          3  the Waterford Plant near New Orleans, surely with a

          4  much lower population than New York City, is 50,000

          5  higher.

          6                 The same holds true in an even larger

          7  degree for peak early industry and cancer deaths.

          8                 The truth is that this appendix is

          9  not germane to any real accident situation. It is

         10  only being misused for the purpose of creating fear

         11  and anxiety in the public by those with a less than

         12  honest agenda.

         13                 To that end, I heard some of the

         14  panelists that were up here talking about some of

         15  those issues, and I would just like to sort of just

         16  go down what I have written.

         17                 I agree with Legislator Kaplowitz,

         18  that this is basically a "soccer mom" issue, because

         19  there really is no mandate. Informal polls are

         20  starting to show that people that support the

         21  closure of the plants are environmentalists, liberal

         22  men and women, and, of course, there are 37

         23  politicians in Westchester that also want it closed.

         24                 The people who are in favor of that

         25  plant are Republicans, conservatives, men on either
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          2  side of the political spectrum, working class

          3  democrats and people who served in the military.

          4                 This is an educational issue. This is

          5  a political issue. This is not a safety issue.

          6                 Some of the other things that were

          7  mentioned up here were that non-residents want the

          8  plant closed. We were just a part of the CNN

          9  documentary that was aired last week, one of our

         10  members was involved with it.

         11                 We handed out over 600 talking points

         12  at the Croton Harmon Train Station in Upstate New

         13  York, a hot bed for anti-nuclear activity. The

         14  reporter, who was doing the filming, made the astute

         15  observation, she said, "Where is the opposition?" We

         16  handed out over 600 talking points that were

         17  pro-Indian Point, not one person took them, refused

         18  to take them, not one person crumpled them up, not

         19  one person threw them in the garbage or had any kind

         20  of dialogue.

         21                 She was there with two film crews

         22  looking for that sort of opposition, and it just

         23  never materialized.

         24                 The Algonquin Pipeline, which

         25  currently runs through Indian Point, is way too
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          2  small to support 2,000 megawatts. The Millennium

          3  Pipeline, which the anti-nuclear people are also

          4  against, cannot support 2,000 megawatts of a

          5  gas-fired plant.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: When you say

          7  that, you mean that the pipeline is not sufficient

          8  to produce the amount of gas necessary to run a

          9  2,000 megawatt --

         10                 MR. WILLIAMS: That is correct.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, fine.

         12                 MR. WILLIAMS: Even the Millennium

         13  Pipeline, because that gas is already earmarked for

         14  other ventures down in Lower Westchester and New

         15  York City.

         16                 They questioned the fish killed, I

         17  heard that mentioned by Mr. Mattheissen. One of the

         18  reasons why Indian Point uses Hudson River water to

         19  cool the plant is because of an agreement that was

         20  worked out between the environmentalists during the

         21  building of that plant.

         22                 Originally Indian Point was to have

         23  cooling towers, like you might see at Three Mile

         24  Island. That was scrapped in order to avoid Con

         25  Edison from building a hydroelectric plant on top of
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          2  the storm king mountain. So, it's the

          3  environmentalists that actually have all the blame

          4  so-to-speak for allowing us to use the river water

          5  as we are now.

          6                 "They bring up problems versus

          7  solutions." That's a quote from County Executive

          8  Andrew Spano. He's basically getting fed up with the

          9  rhetoric that he hears because he's looking for

         10  solutions.

         11                 It's very easy to keep coming up with

         12  new problems, new problems, new problems day after

         13  day. What are the solutions? Wind is not the

         14  solution, solar is not the solution. We just can't

         15  -- those power sources are just not viable.

         16                 With the no fly zone, we don't

         17  control that; that is the FAA. We assume that the

         18  government has looked at this issue and made a

         19  determination that it's okay to have that fly zone

         20  back -- or that no fly zone rescinded.

         21                 The jobs. They mention the 1,500 jobs

         22  that would be replaced if there was a gas fire plant

         23  up there. The truth is that to get a 2,000 megawatt

         24  gas plant built at that site, it would take about $3

         25  billion. That money is just not there, it's not
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          2  available. Especially since the Enron situation

          3  where the capital markets are drying up. And that's

          4  pretty much all I have.

          5                 Actually, I take that back. There is

          6  one thing, if I could have the Sergeant-At-Arms come

          7  over here, and the pictures that I'm going to show

          8  you are construction pictures of the plant during

          9  when it was actually being constructed.

         10                 The pipe I am giving you is a section

         11  of Rebar. What you can see through those pictures is

         12  rebar on the outside of the domes. There is actually

         13  multiple layers of that Rebar that go into that

         14  plant, which the walls are anywhere from three and a

         15  half to seven and a half feet thick.

         16                 This is not a World Trade Center

         17  building. This is a very robust, as most of the

         18  buildings are on that site, and a very strong

         19  building.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you very

         21  much.

         22                 Can I keep this?

         23                 I'm only kidding.

         24                 MR. WILLIAMS: I had a hard time

         25  getting it through security.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I hope you

          3  didn't mention my name when you were bringing it in.

          4                 MR. WILLIAMS: No. Just Council Member

          5  Vallone.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

          7                 MR. WILLIAMS: They said he had more

          8  clout than you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Ooh,

         10  that hurt.

         11                 Thank you very much for your

         12  testimony, Mr. Williams. I appreciate it.

         13                 Mr. Ott.

         14                 MR. OTT: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I'm

         15  going to be brief.

         16                 Mr. Chairman, and members of the

         17  Committee, the New York City Central Labor Council

         18  appreciates the commitment and effort this Committee

         19  has made over the years to improve the environment

         20  of the City.

         21                 The work of this Committee has always

         22  been marked by a seriousness that issues of the

         23  environment deserve.

         24                 We engage the resolution before you

         25  at a very difficult moment for this country and this
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          2  City. We also have to keep in mind that there is a

          3  long and contentious history attached to the Indian

          4  Point Power Plant.

          5                 When the Central Labor Council

          6  decided to testify today, we had to consider this

          7  history and weigh it in the context of the current

          8  situation. Anyone who was in this City on September

          9  11th, knows that terrorism is not just an act of

         10  violence. It lingers longer than the smoke and the

         11  smells. It lingers in the minds of people who must

         12  decide how to live their lives after such a horrible

         13  act.

         14                 The objective of the terror was

         15  certainly to kill, but also to disrupt and destroy

         16  our economy.

         17                 In the aftermath of September 11th,

         18  we lost thousands of jobs, some permanently, and

         19  billions of dollars have been lost through the

         20  disruption and dislocation.

         21                 We have absorbed the effects better

         22  than anyone could have hoped for, and this City is

         23  starting to turn a corner and regain its economic

         24  momentum.

         25                 This has happened precisely because
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          2  we did not panic.

          3                 If in the days after the attack we

          4  ordered people out of high-rise buildings and

          5  evacuated people living adjacent to power plants or

          6  transportation facilities, we would have spread

          7  panic over the entire nation.

          8                 This resolution should be

          9  reconsidered because it lends itself to a process

         10  that allows terrorists to win over reason. It sends

         11  a wrong message about this region as a good place

         12  for investment.

         13                 Furthermore, the immediate closing of

         14  Indian point would cost thousands of lost jobs and

         15  place undue burdens on the backs of working

         16  families.

         17                 I would be remiss if I did not

         18  address the issue of safety. Everything I have seen

         19  about Indian Point tells me that it is secure from

         20  terrorist attack. The facility's own security has

         21  been augmented by military and local authorities and

         22  New York State security and anti-terrorist experts

         23  say the plant is secure.

         24                 Fourteen-hundred people work in that

         25  plant, and 700 are union workers. We believe that
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          2  its operation and its security -- that in its

          3  operation and its security, that plant is safe.

          4                 The public, however, is entitled to

          5  feel safe and be secure. While we oppose the

          6  particulars of this resolution, we welcome the idea

          7  of an ongoing dialogue that reassures the workers

          8  and the people of this region.

          9                 As a labor council, we are committed

         10  to any reasoned approach to improving safety and

         11  security. It is our hope that by a second round of

         12  hearings, we are discussing a much different

         13  approach than this resolution offers.

         14                 The notion of shutting this plant

         15  down as the beginning of a process is absurd to us.

         16  It would be exactly the wrong message to send at

         17  this moment.

         18                 It would mean that the normal

         19  discourse of this oversight process would be

         20  suspended, and it would mean the bad guys won.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you, Mr.

         22  Ott.

         23                 As you know, as I stated before, I've

         24  got the greatest respect for the union workers and

         25  for the union movement and what they've been able to
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          2  accomplish, and what they've done before our eyes in

          3  the World Trade Center clean-up and everything that

          4  they've done to help us get past this terrible

          5  chapter in our history, and I have wrestled with

          6  precisely the comments, or the ideas that you put

          7  forward about, you know, where do we draw the line

          8  on acting prudently in response to what we perceive

          9  as a threat, and, you know, giving into fear. So,

         10  this has been very much on my mind, as I know it is

         11  on yours and the minds of the Central Labor Council

         12  and the good men and women that you represent in the

         13  union movement. And it, you know, occurs to me that

         14  some of the suggestions that have been made here

         15  today, regarding how the plant could be made safer,

         16  in terms of moving the spent fuel pools, or using

         17  the dome of Indian Point Number 1, could very much,

         18  and will and would, if they come to pass, involve

         19  union workers. So, I'm hopeful and confident that

         20  the ultimate solution to the dilemma that we face

         21  here would, you know, very much involve union

         22  workers, and what they can provide to us, and how

         23  they've always been the ones that we go to, who

         24  have, you know, gotten us through many of our trials

         25  and who built this City and built the things that we
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          2  rely on.

          3                 So, perhaps there is a way for, you

          4  know, union workers, to build us additional margins

          5  of safety that some believe we need, and, quite

          6  frankly, what the people at Indian Point candidly

          7  expressed to me when I toured the facility last

          8  week, and they had some ideas for how we could do

          9  things a little better, and all of the ideas that

         10  they came up with certainly would involve union

         11  workers.

         12                 So, one thing that you asked for was

         13  an ongoing dialogue, you know, with the union

         14  community; I can guarantee you that will continue,

         15  and I'm very grateful for your patience in waiting

         16  so long to testify, and for, you know, giving us the

         17  benefit of your good views - we do value them, we do

         18  appreciate them.  We will continue to work with you

         19  on this terrible problem, and I'm grateful that you

         20  stayed this long and thank you very much.

         21                 MR. OTT: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         22                 MR. WILLIAMS: Thank you, Mr.

         23  Chairman.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: So, thank you

         25  both very much, and please give my regards to
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          2  President McLaughlin.

          3                 MR. WILLIAMS: Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.

          5                 Okay, next is Richard Anderson and

          6  Steve Spinola. Richard Anderson and Steve Spinola,

          7  and I would just like to indicate that we have some

          8  students who will be coming on right after, it looks

          9  like we have one witness. Okay, and after this will

         10  be Kathleen Sullivan, looks like Ms. Cruz. Oh, okay,

         11  and I guess these names of the students perhaps.

         12  Okay. And, so, you'll be up next. We thank you

         13  dearly for your patience and we know it's a school

         14  night and all that, and we're grateful for your

         15  patience.

         16                 So, Donna will do the honors.

         17                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Can you state your

         18  name, please, for the record?

         19                 MR. SPINOLA: Steven Spinola.

         20                 MS. DeCONSTANZO: Okay, can you raise

         21  your right hand?

         22                 Do you swear from the testimony you

         23  are about to give is the truth, the whole truth and

         24  nothing but the truth?

         25                 MR. SPINOLA: I do.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you very

          3  much for your patience, Mr. Spinola. I appreciate

          4  the long hours you've spent here.

          5                 MR. SPINOLA: My pleasure.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: And grateful to

          7  have the benefit of your views.

          8                 MR. SPINOLA: Thank you for the

          9  opportunity to speak on this important issue. I am

         10  Steven Spinola, President of the Real Estate Board

         11  of New York, 5,500 members who represent the real

         12  estate industry, owners, brokers, financial

         13  institutions, and so forth.

         14                 It is imperative to New York City's

         15  economic recovery and to New York State that we keep

         16  the Indian Point Energy Center in operation.

         17                 The Real Estate Board, along with the

         18  Association for a Better New York, the New York City

         19  Partnership, the New York Building Congress,

         20  Building and Construction Trades Council and the

         21  Natural Resources Defense Council, recently issued a

         22  report on electric power needs in New York City.

         23                 There is an urgent need for an

         24  additional 3,000 megawatts of new electric capacity

         25  within New York City over the next five years.
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          2                 The Business Council of New York

          3  State, through its research affiliate, the Public

          4  Policy Institute, finds that the State as a whole

          5  needs at least a dozen new plants with 90 to 100

          6  megawatts of additional capacity. And these figures

          7  assume that the Indian Point Energy Center will

          8  remain open.

          9                 While the demand for electricity

         10  after the tragic events of September 11th remains

         11  unchanged, despite initial projections, the

         12  conditions for the financing, construction and

         13  completion of new plants have worsened severely,

         14  making it all the more important to keep our

         15  existing plants in operation.

         16                 Last summer, the real estate industry

         17  and the business community participated in

         18  aggressive energy conservation measures during the

         19  week of August 6th, when temperatures were in the

         20  high nineties, to ensure that power supplies were

         21  adequate to avoid outage. Conservation measures

         22  reduce demand by 160 megawatts when the system was

         23  under the greatest strength.

         24                 We have alerted our members that we

         25  will need their cooperation again this summer, and,
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          2  in fact, I think it was only three weeks ago, in the

          3  middle of April, when we were asked by Con Ed to

          4  send out the message to our owners and our managers

          5  to please take the conservation measures because

          6  otherwise there was a severe potential of a brownout

          7  or a blackout.

          8                 Energy conservation measures,

          9  however, are not a long-term solution. We must

         10  ensure that we have reliable capacity to meet the

         11  growing demand for electricity.

         12                 Given the urgent need for new power

         13  plants, it makes no sense to close a facility that

         14  contributes so much to the power supply.

         15                 I appreciate your concern for safety,

         16  and we must hold the owners of the plants fully

         17  responsible for making sure that they operate them

         18  safely and that the plants have adequate security.

         19                 I feel assured that federal and State

         20  authorities are addressing this issue in cooperation

         21  with the plant's operators and a thorough and

         22  responsible manner.

         23                 I see that the energy corporation has

         24  an excellent record of operating nuclear plants, and

         25  in particular, of improving the performance of the
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          2  ones it acquires.

          3                 Those trying to close the plants are

          4  using September 11th to prey upon the fears and

          5  emotions of residents. They are attempting to steer

          6  us away from facts and common sense.

          7                 You should rely on the opinion of the

          8  team of security experts led by James Kallstrom,

          9  Director of the New York State Office of Public

         10  Security, who recently looked at the matter closely.

         11                 They reported this center is the most

         12  secure industrial site in the country.

         13                 I hope the City Council will carry

         14  out its responsibility to make rational decisions

         15  based on facts and ignore the false alarms being

         16  spread about Indian Point.

         17                 The plant's opponents say they want

         18  to protect New York City, but closing Indian Point

         19  could instead do the City great harm.

         20                 Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you very

         22  much. I just wanted to reflect a little bit on your

         23  remarks, which I appreciate and I value. And it's

         24  your contention that the demand for electricity

         25  after September 11th has not abated?
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          2                 MR. SPINOLA: I think the initial

          3  reaction was that it was going to be abated because

          4  we lost 15 million square feet of space and so

          5  forth. But, fortunately, two-thirds of the tenants

          6  that were occupied in that space have relocated

          7  within New York City. So, the demand basically

          8  continues, and then the demand has continued to grow

          9  dramatically every single year.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes. And one

         11  concern that I have, I guess I didn't give as much

         12  voice to it as I could have, was my concern for the

         13  protection of the City's water supply, which is

         14  right nearby, which I know would have great bearing

         15  on your members, as well. So, I'm trying to sort of

         16  tiptoe a fine line here and do what I can to create

         17  a safer set of circumstances than we have now.

         18                 MR. SPINOLA: I think you're totally

         19  right in ensuring, or in insisting that the state,

         20  the city, the federal government assure you of the

         21  appropriate steps have been taken to protect that.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: But the

         23  watershed is my job, though. I mean, that's in my

         24  lap.

         25                 MR. SPINOLA: Understood. But I

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            162

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  believe we have to make sure they're safe. I don't

          3  believe we have to start closing.

          4                 I mean, we can sit here and list all

          5  kinds of targets of terrorism, and say should we

          6  close that tunnel, should we close that building,

          7  should we close grand central station and so forth,

          8  where do we end?

          9                 I think we end by saying we're

         10  standing up to terrorism, and we're going to

         11  continue in this function in this City and in this

         12  state.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Sure. And I

         14  thank you for the benefit of your comments and all

         15  that you and your members do for the City and mean

         16  for the City. And thanks for answering the call to

         17  cut back on energy when Con Ed gives you the word.

         18                 MR. SPINOLA: Unfortunately we're

         19  going to have to continue to do it.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Well, I greatly

         21  appreciate your cooperation on that.

         22                 MR. SPINOLA: I thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: And without the

         24  cooperation of your members, it's nice to have you

         25  to call when we need to make power for other people,
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          2  your members I know have been most cooperative in

          3  working with the City on these power issues and your

          4  presence here today is another example of your

          5  ongoing spirit of cooperation to help us get through

          6  these issues and I thank you for also spending such

          7  a long time waiting to testify.

          8                 MR. SPINOLA: I'm used to it.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: We gladly

         10  appreciate the benefit of your views, and thanks for

         11  the value added that you bring to this discussion.

         12                 MR. SPINOLA: Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: We appreciate

         14  it.

         15                 Okay, Kathleen Sullivan, and I guess

         16  her students, right? Kathleen Sullivan and students.

         17                 Okay, because you're very special

         18  witnesses, we're going to suspend the protocol of

         19  putting you under oath, how's that?

         20                 MS. SULLIVAN: Oh, we would like to be

         21  under oath.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: You would like

         23  to be under oath. Can I legally put people under age

         24  under oath? Can I do that?

         25                 MS. SULLIVAN: We're just going to
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          2  tell the truth.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, we believe

          4  you.

          5                 I'll tell you what - everybody raise

          6  their right hand.

          7                 Do you folks promise to tell me the

          8  truth up here or what?

          9                 STUDENTS: Yes.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay. Consider

         11  yourselves obliged to tell the truth. Thank you very

         12  much.

         13                 We're going to ask you to identify

         14  yourselves for the record, and because this is all

         15  being recorded, and we ask you to proceed with your

         16  testimony.

         17                 Perhaps we can ask your teacher to

         18  identify the school, or whatever, that they're from,

         19  okay? Can we do that?

         20                 MR. MACKAY: She is not a teacher in

         21  our school. This is a program. She's going to

         22  actually explain what the program is.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay. Okay,

         24  briefly, let's just hear where you all came from and

         25  then you can give us the benefit of your views.
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          2                 MS. JEREZ: All right. This is a group

          3  called SANITY, which stands for Students Against

          4  Nuclear Insanity for Tomorrow's Youth.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: We would like to

          6  ask you and everyone else who speaks into the

          7  microphone, when they first speak to give your name

          8  for the record.

          9                 MS. JEREZ: Oh. My name is Naihomy

         10  Jerez.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay. Then you

         12  can talk, and the next person who speaks will

         13  identify themselves before speaking.

         14                 MS. JEREZ: Okay.

         15                 As I was saying, SANITY is a group

         16  against nuclear weapons. And we would like to thank

         17  you for this opportunity and hope that the right

         18  actions are taken to ensure our future.

         19                 Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you very

         21  much.

         22                 MR. McKAY: Okay. My name is Joseph

         23  McKay.

         24                 Indian Point needs to be closed. The

         25  reason are obvious: It's very dangerous and if

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            166

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  anything were to happen there, we would surely feel

          3  the effects.

          4                 The closeness of the danger and the

          5  realization that we are in danger shouldn't be the

          6  main or only reason to close down Indian Points.

          7  This would be a step in the right direction for our

          8  nation and maybe later for the entire world.

          9                 You ask why close down Indian Point?

         10  And I say for our future so we can all live

         11  relatively safe in a world without nuclear energy,

         12  weapons or plants.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         14  you very much.

         15                 MR. McCRAY: Hello. My name is Omar

         16  McCray, and I'm a senior at Flaggs High School.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Welcome, Omar.

         18                 MR. McCRAY: The Indian Point Power

         19  Plant I believe from the facts make it a power plant

         20  hazardous to our environment. Children, I believe,

         21  should be our primary concern. They are the ones

         22  that can be and are exposed to this radioactive

         23  environment that can cause bodily harm to them.

         24                 Allowing this power plant to remain,

         25  it will only cause a slow destruction to our
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          2  environment and slow extinction to our own species

          3  and all living things.

          4                 With relevance to the previous panel,

          5  the statement that was made about Three Mile Island

          6  was false, and thank you, to the Chair, for your

          7  questioning.

          8                 Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: That was the

         10  statement that he indicated there were no injuries

         11  from Three Mile Island.

         12                 MR. McCRAY: Yes.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay. I

         14  questioned them on that.

         15                 MR. McCRAY: Yes. And we do have

         16  facts, but we don't, like, have them with us right

         17  now. We have like photographic evidence that genetic

         18  mutations have occurred.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: We'd be happy to

         20  have you send us anything that you want, and we'll

         21  take a look at anything that you wish to provide the

         22  Committee.

         23                 MR. McCRAY: We'll be happy to submit

         24  it to you. Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.
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          2                 MS. CRUZ: Hello. My name is Luz Cruz.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I didn't get the

          4  name. Speak closer.

          5                 MS. CRUZ: Luz.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Oh, that's

          7  right. I saw your name on a slip. Right.

          8                 MS. CRUZ: There is a great risk that

          9  humans are bringing upon themselves. When nuclear

         10  energy is produced, plutonium is also produced. As

         11  we know, plutonium is the source of a nuclear bomb.

         12  Not only are we intensifying the weapons race, but

         13  we are also threatening our lives in multiple ways.

         14                 The contamination of our environment

         15  is at stake, our water, our earth. A nuclear power

         16  plant cannot be guaranteed protection from

         17  terrorists.

         18                 If terrorists were to strike, it

         19  would be disastrous because of the radiation and

         20  possible explosion.

         21                 Consider the proximity of certain

         22  nuclear power plants to large population centers.

         23                 Consider the laughable lack of

         24  fall-out shelters in the area.

         25                 Consider also what would happen if a
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          2  terrorist were to fly a 747 into the Indian Point

          3  Nuclear facility.

          4                 Finally, consider how much we'd

          5  regret not shutting it down now.

          6                 Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you very

          8  much. Thank you very much.

          9                 MS. JEREZ: We also realize that the

         10  closing of Indian Point would cause a lot of people

         11  to lose their jobs, but this is not our goal. We are

         12  trying to protect humanity from itself.

         13                 People losing their jobs for the

         14  betterment of society is a cost we should all be

         15  willing to pay.

         16                 We also believe that workers should

         17  be retrained to do the important work of cleaning up

         18  Indian Point.

         19                 As another previous statement that

         20  was made by the gentlemen, involving the plane

         21  hitting the plant. He says that nothing could damage

         22  the plant or it can't fall over or anything like

         23  that, but they also said that in the World Trade

         24  Center, and it did collapse. It also is a shame that

         25  it had to be proven that way, that it can collapse
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          2  by falling down, and it would be a shame also if we

          3  saw that the contamination of everything that has

          4  been said will also happen if a plane also hit

          5  Indian Point.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

          7  you very much.

          8                 Okay, are we going for a second round

          9  here?

         10                 MR. McCRAY: No, we had wrote down

         11  notes from things people said, and we kind of had

         12  reactions to them.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

         14                 MR. McCRAY: Well, to the

         15  computer-generated simulation of, you know, certain

         16  accidents, I said, computer-generated simulations

         17  are just that, computer-generated. It's just a

         18  visual, not a fact. Many things need to be taken

         19  into account, and the slightest miscalculation can

         20  result in a simulation that isn't accurate. And even

         21  if it was accurate, there is no proof until the

         22  plant is actually hit with a plane that the

         23  calculations were correct.

         24                 So, I mean, there's no way to prepare

         25  against any attack.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: We're trying to

          3  do the best we can. It's a big issue. It's a big

          4  issue.

          5                 MS. JEREZ: And one more thing that I

          6  would like to address is that a gentleman said that

          7  $4 million are being spent on protecting Indian

          8  Point, plus an extra 3 million. Why do we need to

          9  spend all this money protecting nuclear weapons? Why

         10  can't we use this for child care, for sheltering the

         11  homeless and teachers' salaries.

         12                 MR. McCRAY: HEOP and EOP (phonetic)

         13  programs that are being cut, you know, the

         14  Educational Opportunity Program.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: All right,

         16  here's what I want to do to kind of bring you guys

         17  further into the loop. I want to make sure that you

         18  have access to us, as well as -- is anyone still

         19  here from the Environmental Coalition? Okay, I want

         20  you to be in touch with these youngsters. And from

         21  Entergy? Hale, are you still here? Okay, great.

         22  There's a nice man over there, you can have the

         23  benefit of information from all the various players,

         24  and, so, if you want further information about what

         25  they're doing on computers, you want to get the
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          2  benefit of what the people on the environmental side

          3  and people from Entergy, because I'm really grateful

          4  for your involvement, and we thank you for your

          5  testimony on the record.

          6                 Oh, Kathleen Sullivan, are you going

          7  to present testimony as well?

          8                 MS. SULLIVAN: Yes.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, you're on.

         10                 MS. SULLIVAN: Thank you.

         11                 Thank you very much for this

         12  opportunity, and I applaud the City Council for

         13  bringing forward this resolution. And I have the

         14  privilege of working with these young friends of

         15  mine, and more, and we do a lot of education with

         16  each other.

         17                 One thing that I would like to bring

         18  to your attention, just a few items -- I have a

         19  written testimony which I will give you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.

         21                 MS. SULLIVAN: I know there are other

         22  people that are waiting to testify --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes, we have a

         24  lot more people who wish to testify as well.

         25                 MS. SULLIVAN: So, I will --
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: We wanted to

          3  give a special consideration to the youngsters --

          4                 MS. SULLIVAN: I know.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Because we have

          6  to move along, we have other people that we have to

          7  get on as well.

          8                 MS. SULLIVAN: I will move quickly

          9  through just a few points, if I may?

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Please. Thank

         11  you.

         12                 MS. SULLIVAN: I would like to talk

         13  about, although it's been reiterated time and again,

         14  the possibility of a terrorist attack on Indian

         15  Point. I draw your attention to the Bulletin of

         16  Atomic Scientists, which is a very reputable

         17  magazine.  This is an issue from last, from actually

         18  January of this year, where -- and one of the

         19  gentlemen I believe from Entergy was speaking about

         20  the Nuclear Regulatory Commission, one of the things

         21  that he neglected to mention, and I would like to

         22  present this as testimony, is that the Nuclear

         23  Regulatory Commission does not account for more than

         24  three intruders into a nuclear power facility. Even

         25  since September 11th, there has been no change for
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          2  the current measures that they use to protect

          3  nuclear power plants all over the country. This is a

          4  very vital bit of information that I think is

          5  extremely germane to the --

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: We'd be happy to

          7  have it.

          8                 MS. SULLIVAN:-- Conversation we're

          9  having today.

         10                 Another point that I would like to

         11  make is that, apart from the obvious terrorist risk,

         12  including not only a September 11th-type event at

         13  Indian Point, but also the proliferation risk that

         14  is involved in every nuclear power station. Because

         15  one of the sorely neglected facts about nuclear

         16  power is that nuclear reactors create fissile

         17  materials which are used in nuclear weapons.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I understand

         19  that, but I'm not going there.

         20                 MS. SULLIVAN: Okay.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Because my view

         22  of this issue is sort of like in a post-September

         23  11th context, and all those kinds of materials all

         24  existed post-9/11, and so I'm there because of the

         25  additional risk or whatever, to use the plant, as
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          2  those who might want to intentionally release

          3  radiation by trying to compromise the plant, and

          4  people stealing nuclear materials and making bombs,

          5  that's not something that I'm really considering.

          6                 MS. SULLIVAN: Okay. Well, it is a

          7  further risk.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I understand

          9  that. But I mean, I have to limit the scope a little

         10  bit, otherwise I'll be solving the entire world's

         11  nuclear problems --

         12                 MS. SULLIVAN: I appreciate that.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: And I'm just a

         14  little old committee trying to get to the goal line

         15  on something.

         16                 MS. SULLIVAN: Okay. You'll read about

         17  that in my testimony.

         18                 I also make a reference to the

         19  Chernobyl reactor. Now, the woman who is working at

         20  Indian Point did rightly point out that Indian Point

         21  has a containment building where the Chernobyl

         22  reactor didn't have a containment building. But I

         23  think that it's a very important point to make,

         24  because accidents happen, and accidents can happen

         25  in the U.S., as well as they did in the Ukrane.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            176

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

          3                 MS. SULLIVAN: One last point people

          4  previously have not made.

          5                 The knowing observers will recall

          6  that in the Year 2000 Con Edison admitted to a leak

          7  of radioactive gas from the Indian Point facility.

          8  Although the public was assured that this leak was

          9  at such a low dose, that it should not cause any

         10  alarm, as much as we know about radioactive

         11  exposure, it is extremely controversial as to

         12  whether or not it is harmful at a low dose.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right. But once

         14  again, I mean, releases from the routine operation

         15  from the plant are not my -- are, you know, not what

         16  I'm speaking to. I mean, that's for the NRC and

         17  others. I'm thinking about bad guys who want to

         18  crash a flying rider truck into the spent fuel pools

         19  and all that. But just, you know, routine

         20  operational issues of the plant, you know,

         21  necessarily -- because I have a high degree of

         22  confidence that the people who are running the plant

         23  can run it under routine operating conditions in a

         24  safe manner.

         25                 MS. SULLIVAN: All right.
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          2                 The point that I want to make, if I

          3  can complete this idea.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Final thought,

          5  okay.

          6                 MS. SULLIVAN: Is that what we once

          7  regarded as safe we now know not to be safe. And

          8  this is why there is such a great controversy around

          9  low-level radiation. Just one example.

         10                 We used to measure radiation in a

         11  measurement called "rads." We then moved to "rems"

         12  and we then moved to "milirems." Basically this is

         13  because "rads" are too large a dose to measure

         14  so-called safe levels of radiation.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         16                 MS. SULLIVAN: This is an indication

         17  that over time we've learned more about radiation,

         18  we've learned more about the affects of radiation.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Got it. I'm way

         20  ahead of you.

         21                 MS. SULLIVAN: So, the question is,

         22  it's hard for the public to trust industry officials

         23  and government officials that are in the nuclear bis

         24  to tell us how safe "safe" is. And I think that's an

         25  extremely important point to take into your
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          2  deliberations.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right. Surely.

          4                 MS. SULLIVAN: And I thank you for

          5  listening.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you very

          7  much. Appreciate it.

          8                 How about a round of applause for our

          9  young people who came out and waited so long.

         10                 Thank you very much for your

         11  testimony.

         12                 Ashook Gupta, from NRDC.

         13                 Ashook, just hang on one second.

         14  We're going through our deck here for the people who

         15  are going to be going after you.

         16                 Settle in, and spill some water into

         17  your lap, just like the other guy did, and, you

         18  know, that will be the ritual.

         19                 MR. GUPTA: There's still some water

         20  here.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, we're

         22  going to hear from Mr. Gupta, and our next panel is

         23  after this, it's going to be Mr. Norris McDonald,

         24  Jose Fernandez, Arthur Levy, David Grant. They will

         25  be the next panel after Ashook, after Mr. Gupta. And
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          2  then the panel after that will be Joseph Mangano,

          3  Ms. Shanklin, and Ann Warner Arland. Ann Warner

          4  Arland. Those will be the panels in succession.

          5                 Mr. Gupta, we're going to give you

          6  the real oath, okay?

          7                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Do you swear that the

          8  testimony that you're about to give is the truth,

          9  the whole truth and nothing but the truth?

         10                 MR. GUPTA: I do.

         11                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you very

         13  much. You may consider yourself under oath, and we

         14  await your testimony.

         15                 Do you have a hard copy of your

         16  testimony?

         17                 MR. GUPTA: No, I do not. I have some

         18  notes.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, that's

         20  great. Just by way of preface to your remarks, I,

         21  you know, thank you for your many years of help to

         22  this Committee. You're well known to all of us and

         23  we greatly appreciate your ongoing efforts in all

         24  areas energy. And, so, we greatly appreciate your

         25  presence here today and I thank you for that. Thank
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          2  you for your patience and I ask you to proceed with

          3  your testimony.

          4                 MR. GUPTA: Happy to do so. And it's a

          5  real pleasure to be here, and pleasure to have you

          6  as Chairman Gennaro.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Aah, shucks.

          8  Thank you very much.

          9                 MR. GUPTA: And it has been a long

         10  time that we've worked together, and I really do

         11  appreciate the opportunity to be here, and that

         12  you're having this hearing.

         13                 Just for the record, my name is

         14  Ashook Gupta (phonetic). I'm with the Natural

         15  Resources Defense Council. We're headquartered here

         16  in New York City, and have been here -- I forget how

         17  many years now, over 25 years. We have 500,000

         18  members nationally and about 50,000 in New York

         19  State, and this issue, as all the other energy

         20  issues we work on, and recycling issues, and

         21  watershed issues, are of critical importance to the

         22  City and this Committee, and we look forward to

         23  working with you on all of those issues, and I will

         24  briefly talk about nuclear issues and energy policy,

         25  and I will focus my remarks primarily on the issue
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          2  of, you know, where do we get our energy from, and

          3  what situation would we be in if Indian Point was

          4  shut down, and make sure that that issue has been

          5  addressed before this Committee.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right. Well, it

          7  means you're going to be in the room when we get all

          8  these competing study people together or whatever.

          9                 MR. GUPTA: Right.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: You can be in

         11  there with them.

         12                 MR. GUPTA: The first thing I want to

         13  make sure is the shared goals -- I think no matter

         14  what side you're on, everybody wants and shares the

         15  goal of reliable power. Nobody is talking about

         16  doing anything to jeopardize the reliability of the

         17  system. New York City has one of the most reliable

         18  electric systems in the world, and we want to keep

         19  it that way. I mean, that's kind of a given from

         20  everybody's perspective. The question is how do we

         21  do it? What is the mix of resources that gets you

         22  there? But it's not an issue of, you know, one side

         23  wants brownouts and blackouts, and the other side

         24  wants to keep the lights on. So, it's really choices

         25  we have to make and risks we have to manage and
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          2  figuring out how to have a reliable system.

          3                 So, reliability, safety, clean power,

          4  affordability, these are shared goals, so I have no

          5  reason to impugn anybody's motives in terms of these

          6  shared goals. And I think the question is, what is

          7  the strategy, how do we achieve those goals.

          8                 The second point I want to make sure

          9  everybody understands is, we think in order to

         10  manage risk, you need to have a variety of

         11  solutions, you need to have a portfolio approach.

         12  Just like an investment you diversify, you want to

         13  do a lot of different things and have a portfolio

         14  approach to solving this problem, which includes new

         15  powerplants.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I just want to

         17  say that my neck is crooked a little bit. I'm just

         18  going to stand up for a second and sort of relieve

         19  my back.

         20                 MR. GUPTA: Okay.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: So, please

         22  continue.

         23                 MR. GUPTA: So, basically, we have

         24  supported new power plants. As Steve Spinola pointed

         25  out earlier in his testimony, we joined the Real
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          2  Estate Board and the Building Congress in their

          3  report, which called for new power plants, but I

          4  think they also called for energy efficiency, and

          5  distributed generation, and the idea was to not

          6  divide this up into yes new power plants, no new

          7  power plants, or to basically where you are. So, we

          8  have supported and will continue to support new

          9  power plants as a way to meet our energy needs;

         10  repowering of existing plants, which means really

         11  you can double the capacity and clean up the old

         12  power plants and improve the efficiency of those

         13  power plants, so when it's in Queens you've got old

         14  power plants, we could actually increase their

         15  capacity and reduce their emissions, and we need to

         16  be able to have that as part of the solution.

         17                 Energy efficiency is a critical part

         18  of the solution. We still waste 20, 30 percent of

         19  our electricity that we generate, and we have to

         20  have a policy and a strategy that really reduces

         21  demand through efficiency.

         22                 The things we did in our office 12

         23  years ago most buildings are still not doing, in

         24  terms of more efficient windows and lighting and air

         25  conditioning. So, the potential there is huge, and
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          2  efficiency still is the fastest, cheapest, cleanest

          3  way to meet our energy needs, and, yes, it takes

          4  time, but we should start now and figure out how to

          5  deal with our demand and deal with demand growth in

          6  the smartest way possible.

          7                 There's also cogeneration and

          8  distributor generation and new technologies such as

          9  fuel cells, and of course solar and wind are part of

         10  the solution. No one thing is the answer. Nobody can

         11  say let's not do solar or wind because it's not

         12  going to be enough. Yes, by themselves, you know, no

         13  one technology is the answer, but our approach is a

         14  portfolio approach where you have new natural gas

         15  combined cycle plants, repowering cogen, solar,

         16  wind, fuel cells, and energy efficiency at the heart

         17  of it.

         18                 We have generally been underinvesting

         19  in all these technologies as a society. We

         20  basically, if you look at our old power plants,

         21  they're still around 30, 35 percent efficient.

         22  Basically they're wasting two-thirds of the fuel

         23  that goes in as emissions and also wasted money,

         24  because you're paying for the fuel and not putting

         25  it to good use.
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          2                 If you can improve the efficiency of

          3  the power plants to even 50 or 60 percent, you would

          4  be getting a lot more capacity, a lower emissions,

          5  and be able to meet all the energy needs.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Just for my own

          7  information, how efficient are sort of the most

          8  efficient state-of-the-art plants now, the one

          9  that's being built? Would it be 50, 60, 70 percent

         10  efficient?

         11                 MR. GUPTA: If they're not doing

         12  cogen, if they're not recovering the steam, then

         13  they're basically probably in the mid-fifties. If

         14  they recover steam, do steam generation as well,

         15  like the KeySpan 250 megawatt addition is doing, you

         16  can get into the seventies. So, you basically can

         17  get much higher than certainly the 30, 35 percent

         18  average of the plants out there right now.

         19                 And the last thing that I want to

         20  conclude on is really this whole issue of how do we

         21  determine whether we have enough power in the City

         22  and how reliable is the system? It can get a little

         23  complicated, but I'll try to keep it fairly simple.

         24  The main rule that we have in New York to determine

         25  whether we have enough power in New York City to
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          2  keep the lights on, and not just keep the lights on

          3  but to make sure that we have at most one possible

          4  outage in ten years, one day in ten years outage,

          5  level of reliability, this was a study done by Stone

          6  and Webster for Con Edison during the restructuring

          7  competition proceeding, and it was determined that

          8  80 percent of New York City's peak demand had to be

          9  in the City for reliability purposes. And it's

         10  important to remember that nothing about Indian

         11  Point, because it's outside the City, will affect

         12  this 80 percent rule. Eighty percent is just about,

         13  if we have 80 percent of our peak demand in the

         14  City, which we do, you know, it's close, but we do

         15  meet that 80 percent rule, that's the thing to keep

         16  your eyes focused on in terms of reliability.

         17                 Does that mean we can have nothing on

         18  the other -- you know, where do we get our other 20

         19  percent from? And that's where the issue of, we can

         20  import about 5,000 megawatts, which is about 50

         21  percent of our peak demand. And the question is, how

         22  do we -- you know, is there enough power on the

         23  other side of the transmission line for that other

         24  5,000 megawatts? So, if you lose 2,000 megawatts,

         25  would we still have enough power outside the City to
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          2  make sure that we could import as much as 5,000

          3  megawatts, and the answer to that question is yes.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Where did the

          5  5,000 come from again?

          6                 MR. GUPTA: Five-thousand is the

          7  amount of power New York City is able to import from

          8  outside the City.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: So, if you took

         10  all the transmission lines leading into New York

         11  City and you cranked them, you could bring in 5,000

         12  megawatts?

         13                 MR. GUPTA: Yes.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: And that

         15  represents how much in terms of what we use here in

         16  a day, about --

         17                 MR. GUPTA: Let me back up.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

         19                 MR. GUPTA: Let's keep it real simple.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

         21                 MR. GUPTA: The New York City summer

         22  peak demand, on the hottest summer peak day is

         23  around 10,500, it will probably grow another 500

         24  megawatts in the next few years.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Some people told
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          2  me it was like 15,000 or 16,000 - shame on them.

          3                 MR. GUPTA: Again, it depends on what

          4  they were saying, if they were including Westchester

          5  or not.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: No, New York

          7  City.

          8                 MR. GUPTA: I'm talking about New York

          9  City, summer peak demand is around 10,500, it will

         10  grow another 500 megawatts, and 80 percent of that

         11  has to be in the City, and 80 percent of that is in

         12  the City. So, we basically have a little over 8,000

         13  megawatts of power available in the City, okay?

         14                 We have the capability to import

         15  5,000 megawatts. The question is, is there 5,000

         16  megawatts on the other side of the transmission

         17  line.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         19                 MR. GUPTA: And that's where the

         20  Indian Point issue comes in, and if you were not to

         21  have 2,000 megawatts, would we still have 5,000

         22  megawatts available on the other side of the

         23  transmission line to be able to meet New York's

         24  reliability needs, as well as serve Westchester

         25  County. And that's the analysis that I think
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          2  everybody can, you know, ask that question, and

          3  answer that question and say, yes, we will, or won't

          4  we, and our analysis shows that yes, we will. We

          5  have enough power outside on the other side of the

          6  transmission line to be able to import 5,000

          7  megawatts, even without Indian Point. 10,500 is the

          8  peak demand, 10,500 is in the City, 5,000 is

          9  available outside the City.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: How about like

         11  on a real slow, sleeping day, it's not hot, it's not

         12  cold?

         13                 MR. GUPTA: We don't have to worry

         14  about those days.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: No, but I mean

         16  how much do we use. We have 10,500 on a super

         17  scorcher day.

         18                 MR. GUPTA: The system is designed for

         19  the hottest summer peak day, which is what we need

         20  to design it for and we don't need to worry about

         21  any other time of the day or year.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, I'm just

         23  trying to -- go ahead, continue.

         24                 MR. GUPTA: So, I think basically

         25  that's the reliability issue. If you look at 80
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          2  percent, whether we have 5,000 megawatts --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: How about the

          4  cost issue? Do you want to take a whack at that?

          5                 MR. GUPTA: The cost issue is one of,

          6  obviously it's all related to demand and supply. If

          7  you reduce supply and demand stays the same, prices

          8  will go up. So, the question is, two answers to

          9  that: One is, can you do anything about demand, and

         10  energy efficiency to lower the price? Can you

         11  increase supply, and how quickly can you increase

         12  supply to a lower price? Or you have to ask the

         13  question, how much of a price increase will there

         14  really be on a hot summer peak day, because most of

         15  the year, as your earlier question indicated, there

         16  is no problem of supply, because during the winter,

         17  during the evenings, most of the year we don't have

         18  to worry about whether we have enough supply or not.

         19  The price problem is on the hot summer peak day. If

         20  you have a significant increase on that hot summer

         21  peak day and you average it out over a period of a

         22  year, how much would an average residential

         23  customer's bill go up, five to ten dollars a month.

         24  If you don't do any mitigation through energy

         25  efficiency.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: That's your

          3  assessment. That's saying that the price spike

          4  issue, or whatever, you're thinking $5 or $10 a

          5  month?

          6                 MR. GUPTA: If you don't do anything

          7  on the demand side. And we, of course, recommend --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: That you could

          9  do something on the demand side?

         10                 MR. GUPTA: Exactly.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: And, so, this is

         12  an analysis that NRDC did or you did specifically

         13  about the Indian Point situation?

         14                 MR. GUPTA: This is an analysis that

         15  was done, earlier discussed by Riverkeeper and the

         16  Pace Energy Project.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: And this

         18  essentially is the report that was issued today?

         19                 MR. GUPTA: Correct.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, got it. I

         21  just wanted to make sure which report you were

         22  focusing on.

         23                 MR. GUPTA: Correct.

         24                 So, I think the price issue is --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: And you were a
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          2  part of that study?

          3                 MR. GUPTA: We worked with the

          4  consultants.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, got it.

          6                 MR. GUPTA: So, I think it is

          7  important to put the price issue in context in terms

          8  of how much increase, if you do nothing else to

          9  mitigate those price impacts.

         10                 So, reliability, price, are the

         11  questions that people are raising about what would

         12  happen if Indian Point was shut down.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         14                 MR. GUPTA: And there is the

         15  transition issue. The question is, you know, how

         16  much time does it take to put the energy efficiency

         17  programs together, to mitigate the price impacts,

         18  when will the new powerplants be ready, in terms of

         19  new supply. And we have supported five new power

         20  plants, both in the City and on the Hudson River, as

         21  a way to clean up some of the older power plants.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         23                 MR. GUPTA: So, I think combination of

         24  new supply and energy efficiency can help you keep

         25  the reliability at the highest levels and mitigate
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          2  whatever price impacts there would be.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

          4                 And, so, you're not weighing in on

          5  whether the plan should or shouldn't close, you're

          6  just bringing the information to the table.

          7                 MR. GUPTA: We have taken the position

          8  that it should be shut down as soon as possible.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: So that is the

         10  NRDC position on Indian Point, it should be closed?

         11                 MR. GUPTA: It is our position. We

         12  have focused our attention on the energy issues in

         13  terms of where would we get our energy from, what

         14  are the price impacts, how do we mitigate them.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

         16                 MR. GUPTA: I'll conclude there and

         17  answer any questions you have.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

         19                 Has NRDC looked at the prospect of

         20  doing the conversion of Indian Point to some other

         21  kind of facility? I guess that would be to say to

         22  build a new facility on site, right next door, or

         23  right on the same 200-acre campus or something?

         24                 MR. GUPTA: We have not studied that

         25  issue in any detail. I mean, I think that's an issue
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          2  of whether you want to build new natural gas plants

          3  there or at other sites --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

          5                 MR. GUPTA: Is something that I think

          6  --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: But you would be

          8  in favor if Indian Point were to close, of replacing

          9  that capacity over some term.

         10                 MR. GUPTA: Absolutely.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes.

         12                 I really appreciated your

         13  illuminating testimony regarding this study. Now

         14  that we have it, it will very much be a part of our

         15  thought process as we figure out where we go from

         16  here. And I thank you very much for your patience.

         17                 MR. GUPTA: Yes, but I think the key,

         18  again, is to make sure, you know, we shut it down in

         19  a way that meets our reliability needs, mitigates

         20  price impacts, and, you know, how we do it is as

         21  important as doing it.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         23                 MR. GUPTA: And, so, taking a position

         24  saying it should be shut down is married with the

         25  position of saying how do we deal with the
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          2  consequences of making that decision and we have to

          3  start asking that question and answering that

          4  question and say, if we do these things, we can

          5  address those concerns that everybody has about

          6  meeting our power needs, making sure prices don't

          7  spike, making sure we deal with the tax revenue

          8  issue and the jobs issue.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes.

         10                 MR. GUPTA: We have to deal with all

         11  of those issues, because if we don't deal with them,

         12  the plants won't be shut down.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right. Thank

         14  you.

         15                 Would you be able to tell us, it

         16  seems to be kind of a tricky question, how much of

         17  the power produced by the Indian Point 2 and 3

         18  specifically goes to New York City?

         19                 We know that the IP 3 is formerly I

         20  guess the Power Authority thing and they had

         21  contracts with the City, or it goes into the grid

         22  and the grid does what it does, and it's like.

         23                 MR. GUPTA: Yes, there is no way to --

         24  I mean, as you said, electricity is generated and

         25  put into the system and taken off the system, it

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            196

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  does not flow from a plant to any particular

          3  location. So, it is part of the system power, and

          4  there may be financial contracts that dedicate that

          5  power, but that's the financial issue and not a

          6  physical transaction issue.

          7                 So, there is no way to say that

          8  Indian Point Power is providing the needs of

          9  governmental customers in the City and, therefore,

         10  we "need" it.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         12                 Okay, thank you very much.

         13                 MR. GUPTA: You're welcome. Good to

         14  see you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: We really

         16  appreciate your patience. Thank you so much for

         17  being part of this process, and I'm personally very

         18  gratified that you're involved in it, and thank you

         19  for the great value added that you bring to this

         20  discussion.

         21                 MR. GUPTA: You're quite welcome.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, as we

         23  said, our next panel, Mr. Norris McDonald, Jose

         24  Fernandez, Arthur Levy, David Grant.

         25                 Okay. Mr. Grant will not be with us.
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          2                 The next panel after this will be

          3  Joseph Mangano, Ms. Shanklin, and Warner -- how big

          4  is this panel? Okay, hang on.

          5                 Okay, so the next panel will be

          6  Mangano, Shanklin, Arland. How is that?

          7                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Can you please state

          8  your name for the record?

          9                 MR. McDONALD: Norris McDonald.

         10                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: And can you please

         11  raise your right hand.

         12                 Do you swear or affirm that the

         13  testimony you're about to give is the truth, the

         14  whole truth and nothing but the truth?

         15                 MR. McDONALD: I do.

         16                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you very

         18  much. You may consider yourself under oath.

         19                 You may proceed with your testimony.

         20                 MR. McDONALD: Thank you for being so

         21  patient, Mr. Chairman.

         22                 My name is Norris McDonald, I'm

         23  Founder and President of the African-American

         24  Environmentalist Association. And we're here to

         25  oppose your Resolution 64. We believe you should
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          2  withdraw the motion for the betterment of New

          3  Yorkers, for the health of the citizens, for the

          4  security of the state and also to protect

          5  emission-free electricity.

          6                 I can get through my statement in

          7  about two or three minutes. I think there are some

          8  high points here.

          9                 According to Columbia University, New

         10  York City has the dubious distinction of having the

         11  highest rate of asthma mortality and some of the

         12  highest rates of asthma morbidity in the country.

         13                 I'm not going to go straight through.

         14  I struck a lot of stuff out because I see you've

         15  been very patient, I'm going to get through it

         16  quickly.

         17                 I've been a chronic acute asthmatic

         18  myself since 1991, and the Indian Point Nuclear

         19  facility does not contribute to asthma in the New

         20  York City region. The emission-free nuclear power is

         21  a God send for asthmatics during the summer. I hope

         22  your City and State will use this fact in trying to

         23  comply with the Clean Air Act in the State

         24  Implementation Plan, the SIP plan. You should pass a

         25  resolution to do so, if you do not utilize
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          2  emission-free electricity capacity in your current

          3  SIP.

          4                 Emission-free electricity also

          5  protects healthy people who have not developed

          6  asthma, and I'm really concerned about the twin

          7  towers coming down and the pollution, and you're

          8  aware of that. I think it's going to generate a lot

          9  more asthmas.

         10                 Mr. Chairman, this is a nebulizer for

         11  asthmatics. If you're inhaler doesn't work, you

         12  hopefully can move to this. This is what they use in

         13  the hospital to prevent you. The next step is

         14  intubation. I've been intubated twice. I've almost

         15  died twice, once in 1991 and once in 1996. So the

         16  issue is near and dear to me, and that's how we came

         17  to the position of supporting not only nuclear

         18  Indian Point, but also nuclear power.

         19                 In my history I've worked with some

         20  of the top anti-nuclear activists in the country.

         21  I've worked in the environmental community for 23

         22  years, the Washington, D.C. base environmental

         23  community, we've cooperated with every single

         24  environmental group in Washington, D.C.

         25                 Again, many people will actually
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          2  suffer and die this summer from smog. It isn't a

          3  hypothetical, it isn't a theoretical threat, it

          4  isn't a foreign terrorist threat. From an air

          5  quality perspective, if you run your air conditioner

          6  this summer, the electricity provided from the

          7  nuclear power plant is superior to the electricity

          8  provided from hydrocarbon fuel plants.

          9                 One fact is irrefutable:

         10  Nuclear-produced electricity reduces smog. New York

         11  City and the northeast corridor are very large

         12  non-attainment areas that violate Clean Air Act

         13  standards. An additional benefit in reduction in

         14  greenhouse gases that contribute to global warming,

         15  you know the pollen levels this year almost hit a

         16  level of 3,000. An unprecedented level. I believe

         17  that's attributable to global warming. I know it

         18  caught me off guard and I had to go to the emergency

         19  room, I think because of the heavy pollen I absorbed

         20  during that particular time.

         21                 Indian Point is also beneficial to

         22  hayfever sufferers.

         23                 AAEA, the African-American

         24  Environmental Association, it has a comprehensive

         25  strategy for cleaning up our environment. That is
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          2  the combined nuclear power with electric and hybrid

          3  vehicles. That way you could get rid of the urban

          4  smog and say we can promote it that way.

          5                 Your resolution will back out 2,000

          6  megawatts, and you've heard all kinds of figures in

          7  here today. The bottom line, I think you should keep

          8  this in mind, you don't want to put yourself in the

          9  position of importing power.

         10                 California went through that. You

         11  don't want to hear about that, but you don't want to

         12  put yourself in the position of relying on the PJM

         13  or other capacity generators to provide you with

         14  electricity, you want to be able to provide your

         15  own. And, unfortunately, I love our country but

         16  we're not necessarily conservation minded. I've

         17  lobbied energy, a policy in alternative technologies

         18  for over two decades, and I've had natural energy

         19  policy pass myself, and it's a tough, tough sell.

         20                 So, we believe that the Indian Point

         21  facility, along with other nuclear generation around

         22  the country, provides clean air benefits through

         23  emission-free electrical generation, reduces global

         24  warming, climate change and acid rain.

         25                 If you combine nuclear power with
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          2  electrics and hybrids, as I said earlier, you can

          3  eliminate smog, reduce our dependence on imported

          4  oil and the risk of war.

          5                 All of these combined, I think make

          6  the case for keeping the Indian Point Nuclear power

          7  plant.

          8                 I only have about two more

          9  paragraphs, Mr. Chairman. I know you're trying to

         10  get out of here and get other people up here.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Please continue.

         12                 MR. McDONALD: Let me get to the

         13  security issue, which is near and dear to your

         14  heart. And I can tell you're really serious about

         15  this issue. I've testified in Congress before, and

         16  people leave, and the Chairman leaves, and you're

         17  just into it, I can tell.

         18                 Using the theoretical threat of

         19  terrorism as an excuse to close the Indian Point

         20  Energy Center, unnecessarily frightens New Yorkers.

         21                 We should not allow the threat of

         22  terrorism to close our nuclear power plants, our

         23  airlines, our skyscrapers, our banks, nor any other

         24  part of our critical infrastructure.

         25                 Indian Point is one of these
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          2  facilities. And our nation's valuable facilities are

          3  not the problem; terrorists are the problem.

          4                 Let's eliminate terrorists, Mr.

          5  Chairman, not priceless American assets.

          6                 No American target, including the

          7  White House, is impenetrable. I was on the capitol

          8  grounds on September 11th, getting ready to go in

          9  for a health vote, and I saw the smoke coming from

         10  the Pentagon. You know what we had to do from the

         11  capitol grounds? You know what the police told us to

         12  do? You know what the defense was? What the offense

         13  was? Run. No target can be totally and completely

         14  protected.

         15                 In a bow to my environmental

         16  colleagues and my own history as a career

         17  environmentalist for 23 years, we must be vigilant

         18  with uranium fuel and the plutonium generation, as

         19  we are with tens of thousands of gasoline delivery

         20  trucks each day, and we must treat radiation with

         21  respect.

         22                 One last paragraph, Mr. Chairman.

         23                 Moreover, while highlighting

         24  theoretical and hypothetical dangers, groups citing

         25  health and environmental concerns to justify closing
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          2  Indian Point, refuse to acknowledge any benefits

          3  provided by nuclear power. And I've been on that

          4  side of the fence in every single category.

          5                 Nuclear power plants have safely

          6  produced a mind-boggling quantity of emission-free

          7  electricity for decades. That's one of the things

          8  that brought me around to supporting nuclear power.

          9                 In 1980, 20 years ago when global

         10  warming wasn't an issue, we had a good point, and I

         11  worked with the top activists. I don't back off of

         12  that or anything we did back then, it was

         13  legitimate.

         14                 Twenty-three years later, it's my

         15  opinion that the nuclear industry, they have proven

         16  themselves, and their safety record. We haven't had

         17  a melt down or the catastrophe that my colleagues

         18  talk about. But asthma deaths are going through the

         19  roof.

         20                 We should give credit where credit is

         21  due. We also respect the oversight, review and

         22  analyses provided by environmentalists and other

         23  nuclear industry critics. It helps to keep the

         24  industry sharp.

         25                 However, calling for closure of these
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          2  valuable facilities when they are operating

          3  effectively is impractical from an environmental

          4  perspective.

          5                 It is time that groups arguing for

          6  Indian Point's closure because of security concerns,

          7  the environment, health and safety, also acknowledge

          8  the great benefits provided to New York by the

          9  facility.

         10                 Again, thank you, Mr. Chairman, for

         11  having me today.

         12                 I'd be happy to try to answer any

         13  questions.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you very

         15  much, Mr. McDonald. I greatly appreciate hearing

         16  your views, particular, you know, one who has

         17  labored in the vineyard for so many years working on

         18  environmental issues, you bring a perspective to

         19  this whole discussion, which is very valuable.

         20                 Now, you're organization, you're

         21  based here in New York City?

         22                 MR. McDONALD: We're not. We're based

         23  in Washington, D.C. We work nationally.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: You're on this

         25  issue --

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            206

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2                 MR. McDONALD: Nationally.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right. Right.

          4                 MR. McDONALD: It's been a very

          5  controversial position coming out supporting nuclear

          6  power, by the way.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Well, you

          8  indicate to me you've been intubated twice, and --

          9                 MR. McDONALD: Theophylline pill here.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Pardon?

         11                 MR. McDONALD: That's a theophylline

         12  pill. Asthmatics have to take it to treat asthma

         13  internally.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I see. I see.

         15                 Yes, I mean, when we talk about

         16  nuclear power, weighing potential risk of things

         17  that could happen, versus conventional plants where

         18  we know precisely what kind of numbers they are

         19  going to be putting up, and I thank you very much

         20  for your testimony.

         21                 Now, will you have contact

         22  information here on how -- okay, so we have

         23  everything we need here in order to further

         24  communicate with you, right?

         25                 MR. McDONALD: Please do.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Caltor Lane,

          3  right? Caltor Lane.

          4                 MR. McDONALD: We have good

          5  information on our web site about nuclear power and

          6  may other issues.

          7                 Mr. Chairman, have you flown since

          8  9/11.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes, I have.

         10                 MR. McDONALD: So have I. Out of

         11  National and out of Dulles.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes, right. I

         13  flew out of National. They went through my shoes,

         14  they went through my hankerchief, they went through,

         15  you know --

         16                 MR. McDONALD: Mine, too. But I trust

         17  our infrastructures. I trust the security personnel

         18  and the hard workers at our nuclear power plants and

         19  at our airlines. I will fly out of Kennedy, I'll fly

         20  out of National, I'll fly out of Dulles. Bring the

         21  terrorists on, I think we're ready for them.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you very

         23  much. I appreciate it. Thank you, Mr. McDonald.

         24                 And Mr. Joseph Mangano, Elizabeth

         25  Shanklin, Laura Miner, Ann Warner Arlen.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            208

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2                 And Donna will swear you in.

          3                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Okay, can you all

          4  please first state your names for the record.

          5                 MR. MANGANO: Joseph Mangano.

          6                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: You need the turn the

          7  microphone on. Yes, just press the button.

          8                 MR. MANGANO: Joseph Mangano.

          9                 MS. SHANKLIN: Elizabeth --

         10                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: You have to just

         11  press the button.

         12                 MS. SHANKLIN: Elizabeth Shanklin.

         13                 MS. MINER: Laura Miner.

         14                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: If you could all

         15  please raise your right hand.

         16                 Do you swear or affirm that the

         17  testimony that you're about to give is the truth,

         18  the whole truth and nothing but the truth?

         19                 (Witnesses sworn.)

         20                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Thank you.

         21                 MR. MANGANO: Good afternoon. I'm

         22  Joseph Mangano, National Coordinator of the

         23  Radiation Public Health Project, a non-profit

         24  research group of health professionals and

         25  scientists based here in New York City.
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          2                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: You might want to

          3  actually wait. Jim will be right back.

          4                 MR. MANGANO: Okay.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Sorry. Please

          6  continue.

          7                 MR. MANGANO: Okay.

          8                 Yes, good afternoon. I'm Joseph

          9  Mangano, National Coordinator of the Radiation and

         10  Public Health Project, a non-profit research group

         11  of health professionals and scientists based here in

         12  New York City.

         13                 Since 1994, we have published 17

         14  medical journal articles and five books on the

         15  health risks of radiation.

         16                 A large-scale release of

         17  radioactivity at Indian Point after a terrorist

         18  attack or mechanical failure would constitute the

         19  worst ecological disaster in U.S. History.

         20                 A meltdown from the loss of cooling

         21  water to either the reactor core, where electricity

         22  is produced, or the spent fuel pools where the waste

         23  is stored, would release massive amounts of airborne

         24  gases and particles to be inhaled by humans.

         25                 Radioactivity would follow prevailing
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          2  winds, which generally move towards New York City in

          3  the winter. With the plant situated just 35 miles

          4  from midtown Manhattan, high levels of radioactivity

          5  would enter the City's air within just a few hours,

          6  making it impossible to safely evacuate the area.

          7                 A 1982 U.S. Nuclear Regulatory

          8  Commission study estimated that core meltdowns of

          9  the two Indian Point reactors would result in

         10  308,000 cases and 96,000 deaths from acute radiation

         11  sickness just within one year and just within 30

         12  miles of the plant.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: That would be

         14  the Sandia report or whatever?

         15                 MR. MANGANO: It's the Sandia report

         16  from '82.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Do you have

         18  that?

         19                 MR. MANGANO: No, I don't.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Nobody has got

         21  that report.

         22                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: I have that.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Donna has it,

         24  I'm sorry. Okay. Sorry about that.

         25                 MR. MANGANO: In addition, a fuel pool
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          2  meltdown would harm many more. Airborne

          3  radioactivity would also enter the diet through

          4  rainfall, causing cancer deaths to an additional

          5  54,000 residents under 50 miles of the plant.

          6                 The Radiation and Public Health

          7  Project does not advocate the closing of nuclear

          8  reactors. However, from a preventive health

          9  standpoint, the most effective way of reducing

         10  casualties after a core meltdown would be to shut

         11  down operations at Indian Point.

         12                 Many radioactive chemicals produced

         13  in the core disappear very quickly. Thus, the

         14  Nuclear Control Institute estimates that closing a

         15  plant just 20 days before an accident --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: If I could just

         17  back up for a second.

         18                 MR. MANGANO: Sure.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Just to make

         20  sure I'm following it.

         21                 MR. MANGANO: Sure.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, "The

         23  Radiation and Public Health Project does not

         24  advocate the closing of nuclear reactors." Fine.

         25  "However, from a preventive health standpoint, the
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          2  most effective way of reducing casualties after a

          3  core meltdown would be to shut" --

          4                 MR. MANGANO: Yes.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: --"Indian

          6  Point." You mean after it melts down you want to

          7  shut the plant down? Or that's not what you mean?

          8                 MR. MANGANO: Before the meltdown, of

          9  course.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay. That's not

         11  what it says.

         12                 MR. MANGANO: All right.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay. So, you're

         14  advocating in this case?

         15                 MR. MANGANO: Sure. And if the plant

         16  was shut down just 20 days before an accident and a

         17  major meltdown, the radiation sickness deaths would

         18  be reduced by 80 percent, and the cancer deaths

         19  reduced by 50 percent.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay. So, if the

         21  plant was shut down, and then something catastrophic

         22  happened, 20 days after the point it was shut off,

         23  then the resulting affect on people would be greatly

         24  diminished.

         25                 MR. MANGANO: Yes.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Eighty percent,

          3  in this case, of deaths.

          4                 MR. MANGANO: Yes. Because a lot of

          5  the chemicals would have disappeared already. Their

          6  half-life is very, very short.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I see. Okay.

          8                 MR. MANGANO: In addition, routine

          9  radioactive emission from Indian Point may also pose

         10  a threat to local health. The two reactors have

         11  admitted over 17 trillion picocuries of airborne

         12  radioactivity, the fifth highest of 72 U.S. plants,

         13  and greater than the 14 trillion picocuries released

         14  during the Three Mile accident of 1979.

         15                 Since 1988, the cancer death rate

         16  among white children in Westchester and Rockland is

         17  26 percent above the U.S. And also the breast cancer

         18  death rate is 19 percent higher among women over 65.

         19  To help find answers to these problems, our group is

         20  testing local baby teeth for levels of radioactive

         21  Strontium-90, only produced in nuclear reactors and

         22  atomic bombs. By October, we will report

         23  Strontium-90 patterns, and examine any possible

         24  linkage with childhood cancer patterns, something we

         25  have already documented in Suffolk County.
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          2                 In closing, I urge the City Council

          3  members to give health risks to New Yorkers the

          4  utmost consideration when making any recommendations

          5  on the future of the Indian Point plant. Thank you

          6  very much.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. I'm

          8  sure we're going to get back to you with questions.

          9  You can bet on that.

         10                 MR. MANGANO: Any time. Any time.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I mean, right

         12  now. I mean once we hear the testimony. So, once we

         13  do the panel, we'll be coming back to you.

         14                 Okay, the next witness, please

         15  continue.

         16                 MS. SHANKLIN: I'm Elizabeth Shanklin.

         17  I'm coordinating the New York City Campaign to close

         18  Indian Point. We are taking the resolution to each

         19  of the 59 community boards. In fact, I'm going to be

         20  leaving shortly to go to a community board in the

         21  South Bronx tonight. We have held six forums so far,

         22  we have one coming up in June in Staten Island.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Have you done

         24  Board 8 in Queens yet?

         25                 MS. SHANKLIN: No.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Oh. I used to

          3  serve on that board.

          4                 MS. SHANKLIN: Oh, good. You'll help

          5  us with it, I hope.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Board 8 is my

          7  board. I represent that board.

          8                 MS. SHANKLIN: Great.

          9                 I want to speak about two facets of

         10  this subject that I think haven't been addressed

         11  directly today. The first is the fact that there's

         12  no evacuation plan for New York City residents, and

         13  the second is, I want to speak to you about the

         14  waste, the idea that this is a clean form of energy

         15  and what the meaning of the waste to all of us is.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: But only the

         17  meaning of the waste in sort of a post-September

         18  11th perspective.

         19                 MS. SHANKLIN: Well, yes and no.

         20  Because transferring the waste now represents a

         21  target for terrorists, as well, the transferral of

         22  the waste, and the proposal, et cetera.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Fine. Looking at

         24  things in sort of a post-September 11th context.

         25  That's where I'm coming from, I've stated that
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          2  several times.

          3                 MS. SHANKLIN: I understand.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I want to make

          5  that clear.

          6                 MS. SHANKLIN: I want to read to you

          7  from the New York Times of April 6th. I said that

          8  members of the U.S. Army and the Coast Guard and the

          9  New York City Police, the Federal Bureau of Prisons

         10  and the Kings County District Attorney's Office met

         11  for a training session, and they focused on the

         12  event of a nuclear disaster here in Kings County.

         13                 The participants discuss nuclear

         14  threats, "in which they offered advice, subways or

         15  basements can be excellent fall-out shelters, and

         16  dispelled misperceptions, do not pack your family

         17  and your worldly possessions into a car and flee the

         18  scene because you'll only clog highways and other

         19  passages for emergency vehicles."

         20                 One very important reason that our

         21  citizens' movement is growing is that citizens are

         22  becoming aware that our government is treating the

         23  lives of New York City residents with contempt.

         24                 The law states that a nuclear reactor

         25  may not open or continue to operate without a viable
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          2  evacuation plan in the event of a catastrophe.

          3  Although the peak fatality zone, according to the

          4  Nuclear Regulatory Commission, is 17.5 miles, the

          5  evacuation plan certified by Governor Pataki is

          6  concerned with removing only those people within the

          7  ten-mile radius.

          8                 Furthermore, the plan certified by

          9  the Governor is preposterous. Under it the public

         10  will not be notified until all school children are

         11  removed to at least 11 miles from Indian Point.

         12  Prisoners in Sing Sing will be locked down and

         13  abandoned. All other citizens, once informed that

         14  there has been a nuclear catastrophe, will leave in

         15  an orderly fashion, on narrow suburban roads. Those

         16  without cars will catch public buses, which of

         17  course will run as if nothing has happened on roads

         18  that are miraculously free from congestion.

         19                 That is where we are. New York City

         20  residents are trapped here, and what they're

         21  offering us is to go into the subways supposedly for

         22  20,000 years because that's how long the land will

         23  be contaminated and we will have to stay

         24  underground. Is that what is being proposed by this

         25  government?
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          2                 We have a website and people from all

          3  over the country are contacting us. And i want to

          4  read something to you that a woman who lives in

          5  Nevada sent us.

          6                 "Sherla Finnegan's daughter and her

          7  children live near Yucca Mountain, the site the

          8  federal government wants to serve as a repository

          9  for the contaminated" --

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: That's a little

         11  off the topic, though.

         12                 MS. SHANKLIN: Well, it is and it

         13  isn't, because we are creating this. We are creating

         14  this for everyone.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I understand.

         16  I'm not going to Yucca Mountain.

         17                 MS. SHANKLIN: All right.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I'm staying

         19  right here.

         20                 MS. SHANKLIN: Okay.

         21                 Well, if you stay right here you're

         22  going to be trapped underneath with all of us.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I'm not going to

         24  use the opportunity of my somewhat narrow interest

         25  of looking at Indian Point in a post-9/11 context to
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          2  visit Yucca Mountain and all other issues that we

          3  could talk about endlessly with regard to nuclear

          4  power.

          5                 I think out of fairness to everyone,

          6  I just don't want to do that.

          7                 MS. SHANKLIN: That's true.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I think you can

          9  appreciate that.

         10                 MS. SHANKLIN: Yes. But she has a lot

         11  to say about us.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I'm sure she

         13  does.

         14                 MS. SHANKLIN: Because she doesn't

         15  want us to send our waste to her.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: And I understand

         17  that, but it's a subject for another setting.

         18                 MS. SHANKLIN: I understand.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you very

         20  much.

         21                 MS. SHANKLIN: Thank you.

         22                 MS. MINER: My name is Laura Miner.

         23  I'm a native New Yorker. I'm not a celebrity, I'm

         24  not an activist, I'm not an environmentalist; I'm a

         25  former Vice President of JPMorgan and Company, and
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          2  I'm currently a lecturer at New York University on

          3  topics including strategic planning.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Welcome.

          5                 MS. MINER: Thank you.

          6                 I'm willing to sacrifice and conserve

          7  whatever is necessary. When I first heard about the

          8  plan to build Shorum, I was living on Long Island at

          9  the time --

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I was, too.

         11                 MS. MINER: I wanted to sign up and

         12  say, oh, I'll live by candlelight one night a week

         13  if that would help take the burden off and prevent

         14  it from being built.

         15                 I just want to make an observation as

         16  a frugal housewife. How many lights are burning in

         17  this building right now in rooms where there is

         18  nobody?

         19                 I was sitting in the audience,

         20  squinting to see because the spotlights were on us

         21  instead of you. So, when one talks about the

         22  sacrifice of conservation and reducing power, it's

         23  easier than people think.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you for

         25  your observations. They're duly noted.
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          2                 MS. MINER: I agree about the need to

          3  shut down the plant, have the no-fly zones. I agree

          4  with the representative who says she couldn't

          5  believe that our federal government wasn't

          6  protecting us better.

          7                 When I was a child, my mother was the

          8  civil defense coordinator on our block on Long

          9  Island, and it strikes me as very odd that we don't

         10  have that here in New York City.

         11                 September 11th happened on a

         12  beautiful day, early enough in the morning it was

         13  very easy to walk around and find out what to do,

         14  the local police were stationed at Broadway, and can

         15  tell us don't go down to donate blood, they won't

         16  need you for three days. I could smell, if the wind

         17  was coming my way, so I knew when to go inside and

         18  sit by the filter. Radiation doesn't have an odor

         19  and I wouldn't know what to do. And I feel that I

         20  haven't seen very much from the government and the

         21  city government telling me just in case there were

         22  any kind of radiological event, should I stay at

         23  home by the air filter? Because I'm an older woman,

         24  should I go out and help -- the safety of pregnant

         25  women or young people? Should I go to one of those
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          2  old buildings that has the rusting nuclear -- I

          3  mean, are they prepared? Or should there be

          4  legislation making people take those signs down so

          5  we don't mistakingly rush someplace where we think

          6  that we're going to be safe.

          7                 So, I would like to know -- millions

          8  of us, I mean New Yorkers are very resourceful,

          9  we're very willing, but we need more guidance on

         10  what to do.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I frankly don't

         12  think that a catastrophic release of radiation from

         13  Indian Point is something that we are able to react

         14  to. The whole idea is to prevent it. You can't react

         15  to it. And, so, this whole notion of -- so, I don't

         16  happen to subscribe to the belief that, as I said,

         17  that any kind of catastrophic release of radiation

         18  from Indian Point is something that can be reacted

         19  to. That's why I'm committed to making sure that

         20  that does not happen, because we're kidding

         21  ourselves to think that there is a reaction to, you

         22  know, catastrophic release. And, you know,

         23  catastrophic release I think is really, you know,

         24  only possible in the context of bad people

         25  intentionally wanting to make it happen, not in the
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          2  routine operations of the plant. I just don't

          3  believe it.

          4                 MS. MINER: I'd like to say something

          5  about that.

          6                 I don't know if you remember the

          7  1965, the big blackout in this area.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I was there.

          9                 MS. MINER: Well, I was in Wisconsin.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: We had a stew

         11  that night that my mom made, okay? The first time

         12  she made it, 1965. I'm like,"Mom, what is this?" It

         13  was like rice and chopped meat, it was just like

         14  whatever, you know, this whole thing, but it was

         15  like tasty. We sat down, the lights went out. For

         16  the next 20 years that was known as "Blackout Stew."

         17  I would say,"Hey, John, what are we having?""Well,

         18  Mom's making'blackout stew,'" I'm like, "All right,

         19  fine," everybody's looking at me like what the hell

         20  is "blackout stew"? That's what "blackout stew" is.

         21  Anyway, so, I remember the blackout.

         22                 MS. MINER: I was in Wisconsin in

         23  college and I got to see on television people trying

         24  to, as the handwritten notes were coming into the

         25  broadcasters and they were trying to figure out what
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          2  was going on, I don't know if you know how that

          3  blackout happened? It was under normal operations.

          4  The operator, who controlled the board, was looking

          5  at the board, and just as he was thinking, gee,

          6  that's odd, I've never seen that pattern before, he

          7  missed the moment to flip the switch, and the whole

          8  system went down. So, when they talk about they were

          9  doing normal operations, I was also very puzzled

         10  when they talked about the structural integrity of

         11  the plant being hit by an airplane. They didn't talk

         12  at all about the fuel and fire, and this was one of

         13  the same things that, I don't know if you saw the

         14  program on TV about the World Trade Center, when

         15  they calculated the structure, they didn't calculate

         16  the heat and temperature of the fuel.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Well, you're

         18  helping to make my point with regard to the

         19  potential vulnerability of the spent fuel pools, you

         20  know, because having a catastrophic fire there, and,

         21  you know, heat from the fuel and all that, it's

         22  something that I have great concern about. But those

         23  comments are within the September 11th context and I

         24  appreciate that.

         25                 Okay, so, now I can go to questions,
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          2  right? Okay, Mr. Mangano, this is from your

          3  statement, "routine radioactive emissions from

          4  Indian Pint may also pose a threat to local public

          5  health. The two reactors have emitted 17 trillion

          6  picocuries," am I saying that right?

          7                 MR. MANGANO: Yes.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:"... Of airborne

          9  radioactivity, the 5th highest of 72 U.S. plants,

         10  and greater than the 14 trillion picocuries released

         11  at TMI."

         12                 Now, the 14 million picocuries at TMI

         13  were released like that, right?

         14                 MR. MANGANO: Within two or three

         15  days, yes.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Within two or

         17  three days.

         18                 And this 17 trillion picocuries is

         19  over --

         20                 MR. MANGANO: Twenty-five years.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Long time.

         22                 Now, are they in trouble because of

         23  this? Is the NRC okay with this?

         24                 MR. MANGANO: These figures still fit

         25  within what they call safe permissible limits,
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          2  however, if you ask a lot of people near Three Mile

          3  Island, they would not consider it safe. In fact,

          4  there's 2,000 plus lawsuits still outstanding

          5  against the utility --

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: With regard to

          7  the statement that they made as a result of TMI

          8  there were no injuries, no adverse effects, nothing

          9  happened?

         10                 MR. MANGANO: Absolutely not supported

         11  by the medical literature whatsoever.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay. Thank you

         13  on that one.

         14                 And oh, with the T thing, that was

         15  you, right?

         16                 MR. MANGANO: Yes.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Now, there was a

         18  report the other day I heard about it, with the

         19  infant mortality; is that tied into this?

         20                 MR. MANGANO: No, that's another

         21  project that we've been doing. A report showing that

         22  in eight out of eight nuclear plants that closed

         23  since '87, the infant death rates in the first two

         24  years after closing went down very sharply and the

         25  childhood cancer went down sharply, as well.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Do we have that

          3  report?

          4                 I'm talking to Donna.

          5                 Do we have that report? Okay, we have

          6  that.

          7                 And you were part of that?

          8                 MR. MANGANO: I'm the principal

          9  author.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Oh, you are the

         11  principal author of that report?

         12                 MR. MANGANO: Yes.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Got it. Okay.

         14                 And, so, you're going to look at --

         15  now, have you done any tooth work with regard to

         16  Strontium-90? Have you done that, maybe not here but

         17  someplace else?

         18                 MR. MANGANO: Yes.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Oh, Suffolk you

         20  said, right?

         21                 MR. MANGANO: Yes, we collected almost

         22  4,000 teeth and we published almost three articles

         23  in medical journals.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: What kind of nuc

         25  do they have at Suffolk?
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          2                 MR. MANGANO: Brookhaven.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Brookhaven.

          4                 MR. MANGANO: And surrounded by

          5  Millstone, Indian Point and Oyster Creek in Toms

          6  River, New Jersey, all within like 50 miles or so.

          7  So, it's probably a mixture of all that, yes.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Oh, because the

          9  Brookhaven Research Reactor, that's like not a big

         10  one, right? Not a big one but like a sloppy one?

         11                 MR. MANGANO: Exactly. It has a long

         12  history.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes, not big,

         14  but sloppy.

         15                 MR. MANGANO: Exactly right, yes.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: And that was

         17  before Dr. Marburger (phonetic) went in there and

         18  straightened them out, right? Wasn't that him?

         19                 MR. MANGANO: Yes.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

         21                 All right, so we look forward to

         22  whatever information you might bring on this tooth

         23  thing.

         24                 MR. MANGANO: Yes, the point being

         25  that this is not a major meltdown from a terrorist
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          2  attack, that you can see over 25 years there was a

          3  Three Mile island accident that occurred from Indian

          4  Point, okay? And there may well have been harm.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Oh, I see,

          6  because of 17 trillion picocuries.

          7                 MR. MANGANO: It's like a slow motion

          8  accident.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I see. I see.

         10                 Okay, hang on one second.

         11                 MS. MINER: Councilman?

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes.

         13                 MS. MINER: There was one other

         14  comment I wanted to make. In connection with the ISO

         15  assessment.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         17                 MS. MINER: I understand that the

         18  research assumed what it was trying to prove, in a

         19  sense that wants to prove that there is an

         20  emergency, and I understand that there are two ways

         21  to purchase electricity; one through the spot

         22  market, and one through contract, and that when you

         23  decommission in an orderly fashion, you are able to

         24  purchase at a lower price through contract, but if

         25  you purchase in an emergency, you purchase on the

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            230

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  spot market, I believe that they assumed that there

          3  was an emergency, and, therefore, their rates were

          4  drawn from the spot market?

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Well, just

          6  between you and me, I thought something was going on

          7  when their own analysis of what the price spikes

          8  were going to be were orders of magnitude more than

          9  Entergy's own people, or the people that they hired

         10  to comment on that. I don't know what to make of all

         11  of that, but certainly that will be for good bedtime

         12  reading for me in the next couple of weeks. But

         13  thanks for that perspective on that.

         14                 With regard to plumes traveling down

         15  the Hudson Valley to New York City, you're confident

         16  that if it were a significant release it could make

         17  its way here?

         18                 MR. MANGANO: Easily. If the colder

         19  six months of the year the prevailing winds come

         20  from the northwest or the southeast, which means

         21  towards us, roughly at about ten miles an hour,

         22  where 35 miles away, it could roughly get here in

         23  about three and a half hours, so making it

         24  impossible to evacuate.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Well, thank you
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          2  all very much for your patience and for your

          3  testimony.

          4                 Did you have anything to add?

          5                 MR. MANGANO: No. Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you very

          7  much. I appreciate it.

          8                 Okay, Mr. Gary Shaw. We'll make a

          9  panel, okay? Mr. Gary Shaw, Mr. Eric -- it looks

         10  like Eric H-i -- Hilltower. Am I saying that right?

         11  Hilltower. And Faye Muir.

         12                 These people are not necessarily

         13  affiliated with each other. So, I appreciate people

         14  going shoulder to shoulder on a panel, a good way to

         15  get to know, to make new friends.

         16                 Okay, and I just want to state for

         17  the record that we've received written testimony,

         18  which is for the benefit of the record, from a Mr.

         19  David O'Neill, Mayor of the town of Buchanan in New

         20  York; Hubred Miller, Regional Administrator of the

         21  U.S Nuclear Regulatory Commission; Dr. Gordon

         22  Thompson of the Institute for Resource and Security

         23  Studies; and from a member of Congress, Elliot

         24  Engel, from the Bronx.

         25                 Thank you very much. I'll let Donna
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          2  Administer the oath.

          3                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Can you both raise

          4  your right hands, please?

          5                 Do you swear or affirm that the

          6  testimony you're about to give is the truth, the

          7  whole truth and nothing but the truth?

          8                 (Witnesses sworn.)

          9                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you very

         11  much. You may consider yourselves under oath.

         12                 I just want to ask Donna, are there

         13  any other witnesses after this? We have one more.

         14                 Mr. Warren Cintron? Is Warren Cintron

         15  still here? Okay, is there anyone else after this

         16  panel who wishes to be heard by the Committee? Okay,

         17  thank you very much.

         18                 I'd like to ask you to proceed with

         19  your testimony.

         20                 MR. SHAW: Thank you very much, Mr.

         21  Chairman.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you for

         23  waiting so long and being so patient. It's greatly

         24  appreciated.

         25                 MR. SHAW: I appreciate this
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          2  opportunity to speak before this Committee.

          3                 My name is Gary Shaw. I live in

          4  Croton on Hudson. I grew up in the Bronx and I work

          5  in Manhattan every day.

          6                 I'm a member of the Steering

          7  Committee of the Croton CIP, which stands for Close

          8  Indian Point, an organization of approximately 300

          9  concerned citizens, only one percent of whom were

         10  ever involved in any nuclear, anti-nuclear

         11  activities prior to September 11th. As you've heard

         12  before, this has become a "soccer mom" and "soccer

         13  dad" issue.

         14                 I come today to speak in support of

         15  Resolution 64 which calls for the immediate closure

         16  of Indian Point, pending further review of its

         17  safety and implementation of appropriate security

         18  measures. While I believe this is an important step

         19  and should be approved, I also believe that the New

         20  York Metropolitan area would be well served to

         21  decommission the plan and study the feasibility of

         22  converting the plan to natural gas or other

         23  alternatives to nuclear fuel.

         24                 These are the recommendations

         25  included in a resolution tendered before the

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            234

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  Westchester County Board of Legislators, by

          3  Legislator Mike Kaplowitz, who you heard before.

          4                 The decisions relating to Indian

          5  Point should be made based on risk assessment.

          6  Indian Point 2 has been labeled the most problem

          7  plagued nuclear facility in the country by the NRC,

          8  who issued a red designation to the plant after a

          9  radioactive steam release into the atmosphere in

         10  February of 2000.

         11                 Until a few weeks ago, Indian Point

         12  was the only facility in the country to have

         13  received that designation, that red designation

         14  remains to this day, as you noted earlier.

         15                 To put this into some context,

         16  historical context, in 1979, NRC Director of State

         17  Programs Robert Ryan stated in public testimony, "I

         18  think it is insane to have a three-unit reactor on

         19  the Hudson River in Westchester County, 40 miles

         20  from Times Square, 20 miles from the Bronx."

         21                 At hearings in White Plains in --

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Can you just

         23  repeat that again? Who made that statement?

         24                 MR. SHAW: NRC Director of State

         25  Programs Robert Ryan, it was in 1979, in light of
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          2  the Three Mile Island.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Oh, I see.

          4                 MR. SHAW: He was referring to

          5  emergency planning. He said, "I think it is insane

          6  to have a three-unit reactor on the Hudson River in

          7  Westchester County, 40 miles from Times Square, 20

          8  miles from the Bronx."

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: And this is

         10  while he worked for the NRC?

         11                 MR. SHAW: Yes. This was in his

         12  official capacity.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: How much longer

         14  did he work for the NRC after that?

         15                 MR. SHAW: I don't know when he left

         16  the NRC.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

         18                 MR. SHAW: But in December of that

         19  year, he also testified at hearings in White Plains,

         20  and I quote, "Indian Point is one of the most

         21  inappropriate sites in existence, and whether it

         22  should continue to operate is an open question. It

         23  may be necessary at some future time to consider

         24  closing Indian Point."

         25                 Certainly Director Ryan's words are
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          2  prophetic in light of the events of September 11th,

          3  when one of the planes that struck the World Trade

          4  Center flew straight down the Hudson, almost

          5  directly over Indian Point.

          6                 President Bush's subsequent statement

          7  that U.S. nuclear plants are primary targets for

          8  terrorists, and that diagrams of U.S. nuclear plants

          9  were found in Al Qaida locations in Afghanistan,

         10  serve to reinforce Director Ryan's foresight. There

         11  can be no more appealing target that Indian Point to

         12  terrorists who see the killing of civilians as a

         13  legitimate strategy and suicide assaults as the

         14  weapon of choice.

         15                 Referring to that CRAC-2 study that

         16  we've just seen, Congress published the results of

         17  that --

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: What study? What

         19  study is that?

         20                 MR. SHAW: That was the 1982 Sandia

         21  Labs CRAC-2 study, where you just noted that the

         22  peak early fatalities of a core meltdown of Indian

         23  Point 2 was 46,000 people, but nobody mentioned that

         24  the property damage estimate was $274 billion. The

         25  estimates for Indian Point 3 were 50,000 people and
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          2  $314 billion. These estimates were based on 1980

          3  population figures and 1982 dollars.

          4                 What would be the cost in 2002

          5  dollars?

          6                 We should also note that these

          7  property damage estimates do not include any

          8  health-related expenses that would be incurred by an

          9  affected population, nor do these estimates include

         10  the consequences if the hundreds of tons of spent

         11  fuel assemblies that are on site in pools of water

         12  were to also become compromised.

         13                 As noted earlier, a large part of the

         14  New York City and Westchester water supply is in

         15  close proximity to these nuclear plants, and Croton

         16  Kensico Reservoirs lie almost due east of the

         17  nuclear plants in line of prevailing winds during

         18  much of the year.

         19                 Entergy, the owner of Indian Point,

         20  has contracted Burson-Marsteller to handle its

         21  public relations dilemma.

         22                 Burson Marsteller is the PR firm that

         23  represented Exxon after the Exxon-Valdez oil spill

         24  and Union Carbide after the Bhopal, India fatal gas

         25  cloud disaster.
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          2                 Entergy has now issued a report from

          3  supposedly independent consultants that estimate

          4  large increases in electric rates that would

          5  accompany closure of their facility.

          6                 It's hard to imagine that consultants

          7  hired by Entergy/Burson-Marsteller organization

          8  would issue any other type of finding.

          9                 In contrast, the Pace University

         10  Energy Project has issued statements based on their

         11  studies that contradict these estimates.

         12                 We should also look at empirical

         13  evidence from nuclear facilities that have already

         14  begun the decommissioning process. A panel of

         15  Westchester political office holders, including

         16  Legislator Kaplowitz, visited the Connecticut Yankee

         17  facility in Haddam Neck, Connecticut. That plant was

         18  taken off line several years ago and is in its

         19  fourth and fifth year of the decomissioning process.

         20  There has been no substantive increase in utility

         21  rates as a result of closure, nor has there been a

         22  massive loss of employment because operational jobs

         23  were largely replaced by decommissioning

         24  construction jobs. Land values have also been

         25  retained, a similar scenario has occurred with the
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          2  decommissioning of Maine Yankee.

          3                 When we look at the economic impact

          4  of the attack on the World Trade Center, we must

          5  realize that a radiologic disaster resulting in

          6  contamination of any part of the New York metro

          7  area, would be unacceptable and the damage,

          8  economically and psychologically irreparable.

          9                 The issue here is how to maximize

         10  protection of approximately eight percent of the

         11  United States' population that includes the

         12  residents of New York City. As a member of that

         13  population base, I urge you to adopt Resolution 64.

         14  And again, I thank you for the opportunity to speak.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you, Mr.

         16  Shaw. Thank you for your compelling testimony and

         17  for your patience in waiting so long. I would like,

         18  if I could, to have a copy of your written remarks?

         19                 MR. SHAW: I made 30 copies, they were

         20  given to the Sergeant-At-Arms earlier, so you do

         21  have it.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Is there a

         23  Sergeant here? Could we have a copy of Mr. Shaw's

         24  testimony? Did I get that?

         25                 MR. SHAW: Yes, the Sergeant-At-Arms
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          2  received several copies.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, because I

          4  want to make sure that we have a copy.

          5                 Okay, Donna DeCostanza will make sure

          6  that we get copies of that testimony. I didn't have

          7  it in front of me, and I certainly want to have

          8  that.

          9                 MR. SHAW: I more than happy to

         10  address --

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Sure.

         12                 MR. SHAW: I'm a layman. I'm not an

         13  energy expert, just a concerned citizen who works in

         14  New York, grew up in New York and lives very close

         15  to the plant.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you, Mr.

         17  Shaw, I appreciate it.

         18                 MR. SHAW: Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, we have

         20  Faye Muir. Last but not least Faye. Thank you so

         21  much. You get the patience award. You get the valor

         22  award for having the most patience, we certainly

         23  appreciate it very much.

         24                 So, we'd like you to once again state

         25  your name for the record, and proceed with your
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          2  testimony.

          3                 And, also, do we have copies of your

          4  statement? Did you give a copy of your statement to

          5  the Sergeant?

          6                 MS. MUIR: I don't have a prepared

          7  statement.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay. No

          9  problem. I'm all ears. And, of course, everything

         10  you say, as you know, goes into the record. It's all

         11  being recorded. We'll get a written transcript of

         12  everything which is spoken here. But I do also like

         13  to have at my disposal a written copy, if they are

         14  available.

         15                 Please proceed with your testimony.

         16                 MS. MUIR: My name is Faye Muir, and

         17  I'm here today as a concerned resident. I live in

         18  the Bronx which is about 25 miles from the plant,

         19  and even though I'm worried about a catastrophic

         20  event, I'm more concerned about the problems that we

         21  face every single day from having the plant there.

         22                 I have been, you know --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Problems from

         24  having the plant there?

         25                 MS. MUIR: Yes.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Now? Right now?

          3                 MS. MUIR: Operating right now every

          4  single day.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: What happens?

          6                 MS. MUIR: Because of the terrible

          7  safety record, and I do not believe they're

          8  forthcoming with everything that happened, and they

          9  will only report what they're forced to report, and

         10  this fall-out goes into the atmosphere, goes into

         11  the water. I have been concerned for many years with

         12  clean, safe and affordable drinking water, and --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Oh, because

         14  you're part of the Bronx Greens? Oh, okay. Yes, and

         15  your group has been active on water quality issues.

         16                 MS. MUIR: Well, actually, I'm a part

         17  of the Croton Watershed Clean Water Coalition that

         18  has been working on water issues.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay. With Karen

         20  Igente (phonetic)?

         21                 MS. MUIR: No, Karen Igente is Friends

         22  of Jerome Park, which is one of the sites.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Oh, okay. I get

         24  confused, sorry.

         25                 MS. MUIR: Yes, a lot of us have been
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          2  working on that watershed issue for many, many

          3  years, and the Croton Watershed Clean Water

          4  Coalition has actually had several things happen,

          5  which we consider in a victorious war, the

          6  preservation of our watershed this past year, and

          7  we're very thankful for that, and the City Council

          8  is a very important part of that and we thank you.

          9                 But like I said, every single day we

         10  have, you know, this is said to be clean and safe

         11  fuel, but, for example, the water that they use for

         12  the spent fuels, those go into the Hudson River

         13  every single day and we're talking about a lot of

         14  fish kill, I think the Riverkeeper has mentioned

         15  that.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: But the water --

         17  no, the water that circulates around the spent fuel

         18  rods, the water that gets circulated to cool the

         19  spent fuel rods --

         20                 MS. MUIR: The plant, right.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right. That goes

         22  into the Hudson, is that your --

         23                 MS. MUIR: That's what I believe to be

         24  the case.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            244

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2                 MS. MUIR: And that water is warmed,

          3  and it's, you know, destroying a part of the

          4  environment basically and is contributing to global

          5  warming, as well as many other parts of operating

          6  that plant. So, when we talk about clean and safe

          7  fuel, even though it doesn't have emissions that

          8  other fuels have, it still contributes a lot of

          9  waste and a lot of problems for the environment, and

         10  also the health problems, which Dr. Mangano

         11  explained.

         12                 So, I just wanted to put my two cents

         13  in for as a resident of this City, that I'm

         14  concerned about not having an adequate evacuation

         15  plan, but I'm also very concerned about the

         16  operation of the plant every day that affects us.

         17                 Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.

         19                 Thank you, Ms. Muir. I appreciate

         20  your advocacy on behalf of the environment and that

         21  of, you know, the group that you're associated with.

         22  Without groups like yours, we couldn't do our job as

         23  well as we otherwise could. I mean, you know, Donna

         24  DeCostanzo and myself can't, and the staff of this

         25  Committee, can't do all the work, we need to present
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          2  sort of like the other side of the equation, and

          3  your viable testimony helps us to do that.

          4                 And we have your information here and

          5  we will try to make you aware of future hearings

          6  that we have on this topic.

          7                 MS. MUIR: Thank you.

          8                 One other comment?

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Sure.

         10                 MS. MUIR: I believe there were some

         11  information about the corrosion of this field that

         12  is the liner, and they have had problems in other

         13  part of the country with the steel actually

         14  corroding and then not being aware of it, and, you

         15  know, that's another possibility that wasn't

         16  mentioned before that is also a source of disaster.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Your being that

         18  the plant is old, it's been operating since the

         19  early seventies, and some of the pipes, some of the

         20  fittings, some of the wells, some of the apparatus

         21  has seen a lot of service. I know that this plant I

         22  think has operating permits through -- you know, IP

         23  2 opened, I think one is in '74, one is in '76, so

         24  they've been at it a long time. I know they are

         25  operating permits through I think the mid of next
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          2  decade or something, the middle of next decade, and

          3  they're seeking to extend it beyond that. It seems a

          4  long time for a plant to operate. So, that fact is

          5  not lost on us in our deliberations here. We'll take

          6  that into account, you bet.

          7                 And Mr. Shaw, we do have your

          8  statement, and, so, thank you very much for the

          9  great value added that you brought to the proceeding

         10  today.

         11                 Do you have a last word, Mr. Shaw?

         12                 MR. SHAW: No. Just my appreciation

         13  for the openness of these hearings and the ability

         14  to speak.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Oh, sure. It's

         16  our pleasure and we're grateful that you were able

         17  to come here.

         18                 So, I want to thank everyone who has

         19  testified. I want to thank the folks from Entergy,

         20  who are still here, you know, listening to all of

         21  the testimony. It's a credit to them that they're

         22  still here listening to everything that everyone has

         23  to say, and that's a good thing. Thank you for still

         24  being here, and thank you, all, for coming out and

         25  giving us your views, Mr. Shaw.
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          2                 So, since no one else wishes to be

          3  heard, the hearing is adjourned. Thank you.

          4                 (Hearing concluded at 5:35 p.m.)
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